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Global health developments and economic uncertainty resulting from pandemics such as the COVID- 19 pandemic, and governmental action
related thereto, have adversely affected, and may continue to adversely affect, our business, financial condition and results of operations. ¥a
2020-and-threugh-Through carly 2021, we saw the impact of COVID- 19 in our operations, including significant decreases in sales. While
COVID- 19 did not significantly impact our operations in 2022 and 2023 , the impact of pandemics may have an adverse impact on numerous
aspects of our business, financial condition and results of operations including, our growth, product costs, supply chain disruptions, labor
shortages, logistics constraints, customer demand for our products and industry demand generally, consumer spending, our liquidity, the price of
our securities and trading markets with respect thereto, and the global economy and financial markets generally. We cannot predict the duration
of future pandemics or future governmental regulations or legislation that may be passed as a result of ongoing or future outbreaks. The impact
of pandemics and the enactment of additional governmental regulations and restrictions may further adversely impact the global economy, the
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b ASHM : : b : r-th nt-high : - A shortage ofquallﬁed labor could
ncgatlvcly affcct our business and matcrlally rcducc earnings. Thc futurc success of our opcratlons including the achievement of our strategic
objectives, depends on our ability, and the ability of third parties on which we rely to supply and to deliver our products, to identify, recruit,
develop and retain qualified and talented individuals. As a result, any shortage of qualified labor could significantly and adversely affect our
business. Employee recruitment, development and retention efforts that we or such third parties undertake may not be successful, which could
result in a shortage of qualified individuals in future periods. Any such shortage could decrease our ability to effectively serve our customers
and achieve our strategic objectives. Such a shortage would also likely lead to higher wages for employees (or higher costs to purchase the
services of such third parties) and a corresponding reduction in our results of operations. Unfavorable macroeconomic conditions in the U. S.
may adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. Our operating results are substantially affected by the operating
and economic conditions in the regions in which we operate. Economic conditions can affect us in the following ways: ¢ A reduction in
discretionary spending by consumers could adversely impact sales of Chinese / Asian restaurants, and their purchases from us. Future economic
conditions affecting disposable consumer income, such as employment levels, business conditions, changes in housing market conditions, the
availability of consumer credit, inflation, interest rates, tax rates and fuel and energy costs, could reduce overall consumer spending. ¢ Food cost
and fuel cost inflation experienced by consumers can lead to reductions in the frequency of and the amount spent by consumers for food away
from home purchases, which could negatively impact our business by reducing demand for our products. « Heightened uncertainty in the
financial markets negatively affects consumer confidence and discretionary spending, which can cause disruptions with our customers and
suppliers. * Liquidity issues and the inability of our customers to consistently access credit markets to obtain cash to support their operations can
cause temporary interruptions in our ability to conduct day- to- day transactions involving the collection of funds from such customers. ¢
Liquidity issues and the inability of suppliers to consistently access credit markets to obtain cash to support their operations can cause
temporary interruptions in our ability to obtain the foodservice products and supplies needed by us in the quantities and at the prices requested.
In addition, our existing operations are solely in the Hnited-States-U. S . The geographic concentration of our operations creates an exposure to
economic conditions in the Ynited-States-U. S. and any financial downturn in the Hnited-States-U. S. could materially adversely affect our
financial condition and results of operations. Competition may increase itensively-in the future, which may adversely impact our margins and
ability to retain customers, and make it difficult to maintain our market share, growth rate and profitability. The foodservice distribution
industry , as a whole, in the Dnited-States-U. S. is fragmented and highly competitive, with local, regional, multi- regional distributors, and
specialty competitors. Hewewer-In addition , we believe that the market participants serving Chinese restaurants are alse highly fragmented.
Currently, we face competition from smaller and / or dispersed competitors focusing on the niche market serving Chinese / Asian restaurants,
especially Chinese takeout restaurants. However, with the growing demand for Chinese cuisines, others are operating, or may begin operating
in this niche market in the future. Those potential competitors include: (i) national and regional foodservice distributors, (ii) local wholesalers
and brokers, (iii) food retailers, and (iv) farmers’ markets. The national and regional distributors are experienced in operating multiple
distribution locations and expanding management, and they have greater marketing and financial resources than we do. Even though they
currently offer only a limited selection of Chinese and Asian specialty foods, they may be able to devote greater resources to sourcing,
promoting and selling their products if they choose to do so. Conversely, the local wholesalers and brokers are small in size with a deep
understanding of local preferences, but their lack of scale results in high risk and limited growth potential. If more competitors enter this market
segment aiming to serve Chinese / Asian restaurants in the future, our operating results may be negatively impacted through a loss of sales,
reduction in margins from competitive price changes, and / or greater operating costs, such as marketing costs, due to the increase of
competition. We may not be able to fully compensate for increases in fuel costs when fuel prices experience high volatility, and our operating
results would be adversely affected. Volatile fuel prices have a direct impact on the industry served by us. We require significant quantities of
fuel for delivery vehicles and are exposed to the risk associated with fluctuations in the market price for fuel. The price and supply of fuel can
fluctuate significantly based on international, political and economic circumstances, as well as other factors outside our control, such as actions
by the Organization of the Petroleum Exporting Countries, or OPEC, and other oil and gas producers, regional production patterns, weather
conditions and environmental concerns. The cost of fuel affects the price paid by us for products, as well as the costs we incur to deliver
products to the customers. There is no guarantee that we will be able to pass along a portion of increased fuel costs to our customers in the
future. The conflict in Ukraine led to a significant increase in fuel prices. If fuel costs remain elevated or increase further in the future, we may
experience difficulties in passing all or a portion of these costs along to our customers, which may have a negative impact on our results of
operations. Disruption of relationships with vendors could negatively affect our business. Suppliers may increase product prices, which could
increase our product costs. We purchase our food items and related products primarily from third- party suppliers. Although our purchasing
volume can provide benefits when dealing with suppliers, suppliers may not provide the products and supplies needed by us in the quantities



and at the prices requested. The cancellation of our supply arrangement with any of our suppliers or the disruption, delay and / or inability to
supply the requested products by our suppliers could adversely affect our sales. If our suppliers fail to comply with food safety or other laws and
regulations, or face allegations of non- compliance, their operations may be disrupted. We cannot assure you that we would be able to find
replacement suppliers on commercially reasonable terms. In addition, we purchase seasonal Chinese vegetables and fruits from farms and other
vendors. Increased frequency or duration of extreme weather conditions could impair production capabilities, disrupt our supply chain or impact
demand for our products. Input costs could increase at any point in time for a large portion of the products that we sell for a prolonged period.
Our inability to obtain adequate supplies of food items and related products as a result of any of the foregoing factors or otherwise could mean
that we are unable to fulfill our obligations to customers, and customers may turn to other distributors. The purchase prices of our products vary
from time to time, which is subject to market conditions and negotiation with our suppliers. The prices of some of our products, especially
seasonal products, such as vegetables and fruits, have significant fluctuation. We may not always be able to mitigate the impact of these price
fluctuations, and our performance results could be adversely affected by such fluctuations. As a foodservice distributor, it is necessary for us to
maintain an inventory of products that may have declines in product pricing levels between the time we purchase the product from suppliers and
the time we sell the product to customers, which could reduce the margin on that inventory, adversely affecting our results of operations. We
are dependent upon the timely delivery of products from our vendors. Prolonged diminution of global supply chains may impact the availability
and price stability of future food supplies, which may in turn adversely impact our business. The global supply chain, ranging from consumer
goods, electronics, and industrial raw materials to food supplies, was negatively impacted by the COVID- 19 pandemic, shipping bottlenecks,
and rapidly rising freight costs. We procure the majority of our food supply domestically, which includes certain imported products we purchase
from domestic brokers. Food production is widely dispersed throughout the U. S. and we depend on producers of food and restaurant supply
products to timely deliver these components of our inventory in quantities sufficient to meet customer demand. Any disruptions or delays in our
supply chains as a result of labor shortages, commodity shortages, or inefficiencies in distribution or logistical services could cause delays in the
shipment or delivery of our products to our customers. Any prolonged diminution of global supply chains may impact the availability and price
stability of future food supplies, which may in turn adversely impact our business. Our business has been affected by the COVID- 19
pandemic and may in the future be affected by steps taken by the Chinese government to address the COVID- 19 pandemic or other
pandemics . We purchase a portion of our inventory directly or indirectly from Chinese suppliers. In addition, our two outsourced call centers
are located in China. Beginning with the outbreak of the COVID- 19 pandemic in 2020, quarantines, travel restrictions, and the closure of stores
and business facilities have been imposed in China as part of the government’ s *“ zero- COVID ” policy to limit the impact of the pandemic,
and these measures were not relaxed until the beginning of 2023. As a result of the COVID- 19 pandemic and the Chinese government’ s
responses to the pandemic, certain of our suppliers’ and service providers' operations in China were temporarily disrupted. If the government in
China reinstitutes policies that have been relaxed, or institutes new restrictive policies, we may not be able to procure certain inventory items
from our suppliers, we may experience further supply chain bottlenecks and price increases, or we could have temporary disruptions in the
function of our call centers, any of which could adversely impact our business. Our relationships with customers may be materially diminished
or terminated. The loss of customers could adversely affect our business, financial condition, and results of operations. We have maintained
long- standing relationships with a number of our customers. However, those customers could unilaterally terminate their relationship with us or
materially reduce the amount of business they conduct with us at any time. Our customers may shift their purchase orders from us to other
competitors due to market competition, change of customer requirements and preferences, or because of the customer’ s financial condition.
There is no guarantee that we will be able to maintain relationships with any of our customers on acceptable terms, or at all. The loss of a
number of customers could adversely affect our business, financial condition, and results of operations. We We-rely on technology in our
business and any cybersecurity incident,other technology disruption or delay in implementing new technology could negatively affect our
business and our relationships with customers.We use technology in our business operations,and our ability to serve customers most effectively
depends on the reliability of our technology systems.We use software and other technology systems,among other things,to generate and select
orders,to make purchases,to manage warehouses and to monitor and manage our business on a day- to- day basis.Further,our business involves
the storage and transmission of numerous classes of sensitive and / or confidential information and intellectual property,including customers’
and suppliers’ personal information,private information about employees,and financial and strategic information about us and our business
partners.These technology systems are vulnerable to disruption from circumstances beyond our control,including fire,natural disasters,power
outages,systems failures,security breaches,espionage,cyber- attacks,viruses,theft and inadvertent releases of information.Any such disruption to
these software and other technology systems,or the technology systems of third parties on which we rely,the failure of these systems to
otherwise perform as anticipated,or the theft,destruction,loss,misappropriation,or release of sensitive and / or confidential information or
intellectual property,could result in business disruption,negative publicity,brand damage,violation of privacy laws,loss of customers,potential
liability and competitive disadvantage,any or all of which could potentially adversely affect our customer service,decrease the volume of our
business and / or result in increased costs and lower profits.A significant breaeh-ef-cybersecurity incident invelving our cybersecurity
infrastructure may fath-te-inerease-result from actions by our employees, suppliers, third- party administrators, or maintain-unknown third
parties or through cyber- attacks. The risk of such an incident can exist whether software services are in our technology systems or are
in cloud- based software services. Intrusions and the-other highest-marginpertions-incidents have occurred, and may occur again, in our
systems and in the systems of our suppliers and third- party administrators. Any such incident could result in operational impairments,
significant harm to our reputation and financial losses. A significant cybersecurity incident could affect our data framework or cause a
failure to protect the personal information of our customers, suppllers or employees, or sensitive and conﬁdentlal mformatlon
regarding our business ;ineladingsales-and could give rise to legal res

fesfauraﬂfs—@ufabrhﬁy—llablhty and regulatory actlon under data protectlon and prlvacy laws te—eeﬂﬁn&e—te—g&m—maﬂeet—shafe—ef
S Any such cybersecurlty mc1dent mvolvmg our Changes

i : o1 deereases
tour supphers cybersecurlty 1nfrastructure sa%es—te—t-his—ﬁype—ef—eustemeﬁcould have a materlal ﬂegaﬁve—nﬂpaet—adverse effect on our
profitability-enreur-business,results of operations and financial condition.Further,as we pursue our strategy to grow through acquisitions and to
pursue new initiatives that improve our operations and cost structure,we are also expanding and improving our information
technology,resulting in a larger technological presence and corresponding exposure to cybersecurity risk.If we fail to assess and identify
cybersecurity risks associated with acquisitions and new initiatives,we may become increasingly vulnerable to such risks.Information
technology systems continue to evolve and,in order to remain competitive,we need to implement new technologies in a timely and efficient
manner.Investments will continue to be made in attracting,retaining,and training our human capital to remain current on the ever- changing
industry best practices related to information security.If our competitors implement new technologies more quickly or successfully than we
do,such competitors may be able to provide lower cost or enhanced services of superior quality compared to those we provide,which could have
an adverse effect on our results of operations . Changes in consumer eating habits could materially and adversely affect our business, financial



condition, and results of operations. We provide foodservice distribution to Chinese / Asian restaurants, primarily Chinese takeout restaurants,
which focus on serving Chinese food to non- Chinese Americans. Changes in consumer eating habits (such as a decline in consuming food away
from home, a decline in portion sizes, or a shift in preferences toward western foods) could reduce demand for our products. Consumer eating
habits could be affected by a number of factors, including attitudes regarding diet and health or new information regarding the health effects of
consuming certain foods. If consumer eating habits change significantly, we may be required to modify or discontinue sales of certain items in
our product portfolio, and we may experience higher costs and / or supply shortages associated with our efforts to accommodate those changes
as our suppliers adapt to new eating preferences. Additionally, changes in consumer eating habits may result in the enactment or amendment of
laws and regulations that impact the ingredients and nutritional content of our food products, or laws and regulations requiring us to disclose the
nutritional content of our food products. Compliance with these laws and regulations, as well as others regarding the ingredients and nutritional
content of food products, may be costly and time- consuming. We cannot make any assurances regarding our ability to effectively respond to
changes in consumer culture preference, health perceptions or resulting new laws or regulations or to adapt our product offerings to trends in
eating habits. We engage in transactions with related parties and such transactions present possible conflicts of interest that could have an
adverse effect on us. We purchase goods and services from related parties of our current and former management team, as well as our largest
shareholder, and sell products to related parties of our current and former management team, as well as our largest sharecholder. These related-
party transactions create the possibility of conflicts of interest with regard to our management, including that: « we may enter into contracts
between us, on the one hand, and related parties, on the other, that are not as a result of arm’ s- length transactions; * our executive officers and
directors that hold positions of responsibility with related parties may be aware of certain business opportunities that are appropriate for
presentation to us as well as to such other related parties and may present such business opportunities to such other parties; ¢ our executive
officers and directors that hold positions of responsibility with related parties may have significant duties with, and spend significant time
serving, other entities and may have conflicts of interest in allocating time; and ¢ such conflicts could cause an individual in our management to
seek to advance his or her economic interests or the economic interests of certain related parties above ours. Further, the appearance of conflicts
of interest created by related- party transactions could impair the confidence of our investors. Our Special Transactions Review Committee
regularly reviews these transactions. Notwithstanding this, it is possible that a conflict of interest could have an adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations. For more information on our related party transactions, see Note +4-13 - Related Party
Transactions in our consolidated financial statements in this Annual Report on Form 10- K. We may in the future be required to consolidate the
assets, liabilities, and results of operations of certain existing and future related party entities, which could have an adverse impact on our results
of operations, financial position, and gross margin. The Financial Accounting Standards Board has issued accounting guidance regarding
variable interest entities (“ VIEs ™) that affects our accounting treatment of our existing and future related party entities. To ascertain whether
we are required to consolidate an entity, we are required to determine whether it is a VIE and if we are the primary beneficiary in accordance
with the accounting guidance. Factors we consider in determining whether we are the VIE’ s primary beneficiary include evaluating the
decision- making authority and management of the day- to- day operations of the related party entity and the obligation to absorb losses or right
to receive benefits from the related party in relation to others. Changes in the financial accounting guidance, or changes in circumstances at each
of these related party entities, could lead us to determine that we have to consolidate the assets, liabilities, and results of operations of such
related party entities. We have determined to consolidate certain related parties as VIEs, see Note 3- Variable Interest Entities in our
consolidated financial statements in this Annual Report on Form 10- K for additional information. The consolidation of other related parties as
VIEs could significantly increase our indebtedness and may have a material adverse impact on our results of operations, financial position, and
gross margin. In addition, we may enter into future affiliations with related parties or make other equity investments, which could have an
adverse impact on us because of the financial accounting guidance regarding VIEs. We may be unable to protect or maintain our intellectual
property, which could result in customer confusion, a negative perception of our brand and adversely affect our business. We believe that our
intellectual property has substantial value and has contributed significantly to the success of our business. In particular, our “ HF ” logo
trademarks and our trade names including “ Han Feng, ”" Rong Cheng" and" Great Wall," are valuable assets that reinforce our customers’
favorable perception of our products. Our trademark rights and related registrations may be challenged in the future and could be canceled or
narrowed. Failure to protect our trademark rights could cause customer confusion or negatively affect customers’ perception of our brand and
products, and eventually adversely affect our sales and profitability. Moreover, intellectual property disputes and proceedings and infringement
claims may result in a significant distraction for management and significant expense, which may not be recoverable regardless of whether we
are successful. Such proceedings may be protracted with no certainty of success, and an adverse outcome could subject us to liability, force us
to cease use of certain trademarks or other intellectual property or force us to enter into licenses with others. Any one of these occurrences may
have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. If we are unable to renew or replace our current
leases on favorable terms, or any of our current leases are terminated prior to expiration of their stated terms, and we cannot find suitable
alternate locations, our operations and profitability could be negatively impacted. We currently have leases for some of our warehouses. Our
ability to re- negotiate favorable terms on an expiring lease or to negotiate favorable terms for a suitable alternate location, and our ability to
negotiate favorable lease terms for additional locations, could depend on conditions in the real estate market, competition for desirable
properties, our relationships with current and prospective landlords, and / or other factors that are not within our control. Any or all of these
factors and conditions could negatively impact our growth and profitability. Failure to retain our senior management and other key personnel
may adversely affect our operations. Our success is substantially dependent on the continued service of our senior management and other key
personnel. These executives have been primarily responsible for determining the strategic direction of our business and for executing our
growth strategy and are integral to our brand and culture, and our reputation with suppliers and consumers. The loss of the services of any of
these executives and other key personnel could have a material adverse effect on our business and prospects, as we may not be able to find
suitable individuals to replace them on a timely basis, if at all. In addition, any such departure could be viewed in a negative light by investors
and analysts, which may cause our stock price to decline. The loss of key employees could negatively affect our business. If we are unable to
attract, train and retain employees, we may not be able to grow or successfully operate our business. The foodservice distribution industry is
labor intensive. Our success depends in part upon our ability to attract, train and retain a sufficient number of employees who understand and
appreciate our culture and are able to represent our brand effectively and establish credibility with our business partners and customers. Our
ability to meet our labor needs, while controlling wage and labor- related costs, is subject to numerous external factors, including the availability
of a sufficient number of qualified persons in the work force of the regions in which we are located, unemployment levels within those regions,
prevailing wage rates, changing demographics, health and other insurance costs and changes in employment legislation. In the event of
increasing wage rates, if we fail to increase our wages competitively, the quality of our workforce could decline, causing our customer service
to suffer, while increasing our wages could cause our profits to decrease. If we are unable to hire and retain employees capable of meeting our
business needs and expectations, our business and brand image may be impaired. Any failure to meet our staffing needs or any material increase
in turnover rates of our employees may adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition. Changes in and enforcement



of immigration laws could increase our costs and adversely affect our ability to attract and retain qualified employees. Federal and state
governments from time to time implement immigration laws, regulations or programs that regulate our ability to attract or retain qualified
foreign employees. Some of these changes may increase our obligations for compliance and oversight, which could subject us to additional
costs and make our hiring process more cumbersome or reduce the availability of potential employees. Although we have implemented, and are
in the process of enhancing, procedures to ensure our compliance with the employment eligibility verification requirements, there can be no
assurance that these procedures are adequate and some of our employees may, without our knowledge, be unauthorized workers. The
employment of unauthorized workers may subject us to fines or civil or criminal penalties, and if any of our workers are found to be
unauthorized, we could experience adverse publicity that negatively impacts our brand and makes it more difficult to hire and keep qualified
employees. We may be required to terminate the employment of certain of our employees who are determined to be unauthorized workers. The
termination of a significant number of employees may disrupt our operations, cause temporary increases in our labor costs as we train new
employees and result in adverse publicity. Our financial performance could be materially harmed as a result of any of these factors. Potential
labor disputes with employees and increases in labor costs could adversely affect our business. A considerable amount of our operating costs are
attributable to labor costs and, therefore, our financial performance is greatly influenced by increases in wage and benefit costs. As a result, we
are exposed to risks associated with a competitive labor market. Rising health care costs and the nature and structure of work rules will always
be important issues. Any work stoppages or labor disturbances as a result of employee dissatisfaction with their current employment terms
could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. We also expect that in the event of a work
stoppage or labor disturbance, we could incur additional costs and face increased competition. If we fail to comply with requirements imposed
by applicable law and other governmental regulations, we could become subject to lawsuits, investigations and other liabilities and restrictions
on our operations that could significantly and adversely affect our business. We are subject to regulation by various federal, state, and local
governments, applicable to food safety and sanitation, ethical business practices, securities, transportation, minimum wage, overtime, other
wage payment requirements, employment discrimination, immigration, and human health and safety. While we attempt to comply with all
applicable laws and regulations, we cannot represent that we are in full compliance with all applicable laws and regulations or interpretations of
these laws and regulations at all times or that we will be able to comply with any future laws, regulations or interpretations of these laws and
regulations. If we fail to comply with applicable laws and regulations, we may be subject to investigations, criminal sanctions or civil remedies,
including fines, injunctions, and prohibitions on exporting. The cost of compliance or the consequences of non- compliance, including
debarments, could have an adverse effect on our results of operations. In addition, governmental units may make changes in the regulatory
frameworks within which we operate that may require us to incur substantial increases in costs in order to comply with such laws and
regulations. If the products distributed by us are alleged to have caused injury or illness, or to have failed to comply with governmental
regulations, we may need to recall our products and may experience product liability claims. We, like any other foodservice distributor, may be
subject to product recalls, including voluntary recalls or withdrawals, if the products we distribute are alleged to have caused injury or illness, to
have been mislabeled, misbranded, or adulterated or to otherwise have violated applicable governmental regulations. We may also choose to
voluntarily recall or withdraw products that we determine do not satisfy our quality standards, whether for taste, appearance, or otherwise, in
order to protect our brand and reputation. Any future product recall or withdrawal that results in substantial and unexpected expenditures,
destruction of product inventory, damage to our reputation, and / or lost sales due to the unavailability of the product for a period of time, could
materially adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition. We also face the risk of exposure to product liability claims in the
event that the use of products sold by us are alleged to have caused injury or illness. We cannot be sure that consumption of our products will
not cause a health- related illness in the future or that we will not be subject to claims or lawsuits relating to such matters. Further, even if a
product liability claim is unsuccessful or is not fully pursued, the negative publicity surrounding any assertion that our products caused illness
or injury could adversely affect our reputation with existing and potential customers and our corporate and brand image. Our product liability
insurance plans may not continue to be available at a reasonable cost or, if available, may not be adequate to cover all of our liabilities. We
generally seek contractual indemnification and insurance coverage from parties supplying products to us, but this indemnification or insurance
coverage is limited, as a practical matter, to the creditworthiness of the indemnifying party and the insured limits of any insurance provided by
such suppliers. If we do not have adequate insurance or contractual indemnification available, product liability relating to defective products
could materially adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition. We may incur significant costs to comply with environmental
laws and regulations, and we may be subject to substantial fines, penalties and / or third- party claims for non- compliance. Our operations are
subject to various federal, state, and local laws, rules and regulations relating to the protection of the environment, including those governing: ¢
the discharge of pollutants into the air, soil, and water; * the management and disposal of solid and hazardous materials and wastes; « employee
exposure to hazards in the workplace; and ¢ the investigation and remediation of contamination resulting from releases of petroleum products
and other regulated materials. In the course of business, we operate, maintain, and fuel vehicles; store fuel in on- site above ground containers;
operate refrigeration systems; and use and dispose of hazardous substances and food waste. We could incur substantial costs, including fines or
penalties and third- party claims for property damage or personal injury, as a result of any violations of environmental or workplace safety laws
and regulations or releases of regulated materials into the environment. In addition, we could incur investigation, remediation and / or other
costs related to environmental conditions at our currently or formerly owned or operated properties. Litigation may materially adversely affect
our business, financial condition and results of operations. From time to time, we may be party to various claims and legal proceedings. For
example, as reported previously, the Company is subject to a non- public investigation by the SEC and has responded to various information
requests from the SEC in connection with that investigation. The Company is fully cooperating with the SEC’ s requests and cannot predict the
outcome of this investigation. See Part I, Item 3. Legal Proceedings to this Form 10- K for more information. We evaluate these claims and
proceedings to assess the likelihood of unfavorable outcomes and to estimate, if probable and estimable, the amount of potential losses. Based
on these assessments and estimates, we may establish reserves, as appropriate. These assessments and estimates are based on the information
available to management at the time and involve a significant amount of management judgment. Actual outcomes or losses may differ
materially from our assessments and estimates. Even when not merited, the defense of these lawsuits or legal proceedings, including potential
securities litigation and / or other legal actions, is expensive and may divert management’ s attention, and we may incur significant expenses in
defending these lawsuits or legal proceedings. The results of litigation and other legal proceedings are inherently uncertain, and adverse
judgments or settlements in some of these legal disputes may result in adverse monetary damages, penalties or injunctive relief against us,
which could negatively impact our financial position, cash flows or results of operations. Increased commodity prices and availability may
impact profitability. Many of our products include ingredients such as wheat, corn, oils, sugar, and other commodities. Commodity prices
worldwide have been increasing. While commodity price inputs do not typically represent the substantial majority of our product costs, any
increase in commodity prices may cause our vendors to seek price increases from us. We may not be able to mitigate vendor efforts to increase
our costs, either in whole or in part. In the event we are unable to mitigate potential vendor price increases, we may in turn consider raising our
prices, and our customers may be deterred by any such price increases. Our profitability may be impacted through increased costs to us which



may affect our gross margins, or through reduced revenue as a result of a decline in the number and average size of customer transactions. The
U. S. government is currently imposing increased tariffs on certain products imported into the U. S., including products imported from China,
which may have an adverse impact on our future operating results. We sell our products based on the cost of such products plus a percent
markup. The U. S. government has imposed is-eurrently-impeosing-and continues to propesing-propose increased tariffs on certain products
imported into the U. S., including products imported from China. Some of our imported products and imported products purchased from
domestic brokers are may-be-subject to these increased tariffs and accordingly, our purchase costs have wilbbe-increased and may increase
further . We may determine to increase our sales prices in order to pass these increased costs to our customers. In the event we determine to
take such action, our customers may reduce their orders from us, which could negatively affect our profitability and operating results. Severe
weather, natural disasters and adverse climate changes, as well as the legal, regulatory or market measures being implemented to address
climate change, may materially adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations. Severe weather conditions and other natural
disasters in areas where our distribution network covers or from which we obtain the products we sell may materially adversely affect our
operations and our product offerings and, therefore, our results of operations. Such conditions may result in physical damage to, or temporary or
permanent closure of, one or more of our distribution centers, an insufficient work force in our market regions and / or temporary disruption in
the supply of products, including delays in the delivery of goods to our warehouses and / or a reduction in the availability of products in our
offerings. In addition, adverse climate conditions and adverse weather patterns, such as drought or flood, that impact growing conditions and
the quantity and quality of crops may materially adversely affect the availability or cost of certain products within our supply chain. Any of
these factors may disrupt our businesses and materially adversely affect our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. There is an
increased focus around the world by regulatory and legislative bodies at all levels towards policies relating to climate change and the impact of
global warming, including the regulation of greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions, energy usage and sustainability efforts. Increased compliance
costs and expenses due to the impacts of climate change on our business, as well as additional legal or regulatory requirements regarding
climate change or designed to reduce or mitigate the effects of carbon dioxide and other GHG emissions on the environment, may cause
disruptions in, or an increase in the costs associated with, the running of our business, particularly with regard to our distribution and supply
chain operations. Moreover, compliance with any such legal or regulatory requirements may require that we implement changes to our business
operations and strategy, which would require us to devote substantial time and attention to these matters and cause us to incur additional costs.
The effects of climate change, and legal or regulatory initiatives to address climate change, could have a long- term adverse impact on our
business and results of operations. Our business may be affected by the impacts of unfavorable geopolitical events or other market disruptions
on consumer confidence and spending patterns. Our net sales, profit, cash flows and future growth may be affected by negative local, regional,
national or international political or economic trends or developments that reduce consumers’ ability or willingness to spend, including the
effects of national and international security concerns such as war, terrorism or the threat thereof. Fhe-Conflicts such as the Russian invasion
of Ukraine in February 2022 and the financial and economic sanctions and other measures imposed by the European Union, the Bnited-States
U. S., and other countries and organizations in response thereto ts-ereatingand-may-eontinte-to-create ymarket disruption and volatility and
instability in the geopolitical environment. The extent to which this or similar eenfliet-conflicts esealates— escalate to-other-eeuntries-and the
resulting impact on the global market remains uncertain. We are-menitering—-- monitor the-such eenfliet-conflicts , but do not, and cannot,
know if this-sttaatier-any such ongoing geopolitical conflicts will result in broader economic and security concerns or in material implications
for our business. These events could have a material adverse effect on our customers, our business partners and our third- party suppliers. We
rely on technology in our business...... effect on our results of operations. Our current indebtedness may adversely affect our liquidity position
and ability of future financing. As of December 31, 2022-2023 , we utilized $ 53-58 . 4-6 million of the $ 100 million asset- secured revolving
credit facility and $ 422-114 . -4 million of long- term mortgage and equipment loans, which could adversely affect our cash flow, our ability to
raise additional capital or obtain financing in the future, or react to changes in business and repay other debts. These bank loans contain
covenants that restrict our ability to incur additional debt and operate our business. We may not be able to generate a sufficient amount of cash
needed to pay interest and principal on our debt facilities or refinance all or a portion of our indebtedness, due to a number of factors, including
significant change of economic conditions, market competition, weather conditions, natural disaster, and failure to execute our business plan.
An i increase in mtere%t rates could advelqely affect our cash flow and financial condition. Central bank pollcy mterestWe—&re—s&bjeet—te

ﬁeet on overall economic activity and /

et or the fmanmal condmon aﬁd—fesu}ts—of our customers epef&&eﬂs—thefmefe— et—t-lﬁs—&me—rt—ts—net—pesstble—te—pﬁedief

v for -I:I-Be{%our products and 1ndustry demand generally
Al-tefﬁ&ﬁve—beﬁehmaﬂeRlsmg 1nterest Iates may cause credlt market dislocations which can impact funding costs reptace HHBOR-and
¢ deb pts- At-Additionally, our borrowings bear interest at variable rates and expose us

to interest rate rlsk Although we momtor and manage this t-rme—exposure mﬁxet-pes&rb}e-te-pfediet—t-he-effeet—e{laﬂ-yhchangcq into

mtanglble assets or other long- lived assets could adversely affect our hnancml condltlon and re%ulti of operatlon We review our amortizable
intangible assets and other long- lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not

be recoverable. We test goodwill and-other-indefinite—tved-ntangible-assets-for impairment at least annually, or more frequently if events or

changes in circumstances indicate an asset may be impaired. Relevant factors, events and circumstances that affect the fair value of goodwill
and-indefinite—tHved-intangible-assets-may include external factors such as macroeconomic, industry, and market conditions, as well as cost



factors, overall financial performance, other relevant entity- specific events, specific events affecting the reporting unit, or sustained decrease in
share price. We may be required to record a significant charge in our consolidated financial statements during the period in which any
impairment of our goodwill , amertizable intangible assets, or intangtbte-other long- lived assets is determined, which would negatively
affect our results of operations. Impairment analysis requires significant judgment by management and the fair value of goodwill, amortizable
indefinite—lived-intangible assets or other long- lived assets are sensitive to changes in key assumptions used in the projected cash flows, which
include forecasted revenues and perpetual growth rates, among others as well as current market conditions in both the United States and

¢ h v e~ To the extent that business conditions may deteriorate further-,
or if changes in key assumpt1ons and estlmates dlffer s1gn1ﬁcantly from management s expectations, it may be necessary to record adettionat
fatare-impairment charges, which could be material. For-mere-information-on-ourgoodwit-The Company completed its most recent annual
impairment assessment &nd—felated-for goodwﬂl as of the last day of the fourth quarter of ﬁscal year 2023 Wlth no -rmp&tﬂﬁeﬁt—lmpalrments
noted eharg : AL al-sta A
k- Risk Factors Relatmg to our Acqu1s1t1on Strategy Our c0nt1nued growth depends on future acquisitions of other d1str1butors or wholesalers
and enlarging our customer base. The failure to achieve these goals could negatively impact our results of operations and financial condition.
Historically, a portion of our growth has come through acquisitions, and our growth strategy depends, in large part, on acquiring other
distributors or wholesalers to access untapped market regions and enlarge our customer base. Successful implementation of this strategy is
dependent on sufficient capital support from financing, finding suitable targets to acquire, identifying suitable locations and negotiating
acceptable acquisition prices and terms. There can be no assurance that we will continue to grow through acquisitions. We may not be able to
obtain sufficient capital support for our expansion plan, or successfully implement the plan to acquire other competitors timely or within budget
or operate those businesses successfully. If we are unable to integrate acquired businesses successfully or realize anticipated economic,
operational and other benefits and synergies in a timely manner, our earnings may be materially adversely affected. A significant expansion of
our business and operations, in terms of geography or magnitude {sueh-as-with-the Business-Combination)-, could strain our administrative and
operational resources. Significant acquisitions may also require the issuance of material additional amounts of debt or equity, which could
materially alter our debt- to- equity ratio, increase our interest expense and decrease net income, and make it difficult for us to obtain favorable
financing for other acquisitions or capital investments. Our operating results will be adversely affected if we fail to implement our growth
strategy or if we invest resources in a growth strategy that ultimately proves unsuccessful. There is a scarcity of and competition for acquisition
opportunities. There are a limited number of operating companies available for acquisition that we deem to be desirable targets. In addition,
there is a very high level of competition among companies seeking to acquire these operating companies. Many established and well- financed
entities are active in acquiring interests in companies that we may find to be desirable acquisition candidates. Many of these entities have
significantly greater financial resources, technical expertise and managerial capabilities than we do. Consequently, we will be at a competitive
disadvantage in negotiating and executing possible acquisitions of such businesses. Even if we are able to successfully compete with these
larger entities, this competition may affect the terms of the transactions we are able to negotiate and, as a result, we may pay more or receive
less favorable terms than we expected for potential acquisitions. We may not be able to identify operating companies that complement our
strategy, and even if we identify a company that does so, we may be unable to complete an acquisition of such a company for many reasons,
including: e failure to agree on necessary terms, such as the purchase price; * incompatibility between our operational strategies and
management philosophies with those of the potential acquiree; « competition from other acquirers of operating companies; ¢ lack of sufficient
capital to acquire a profitable company; and ¢ unwillingness of a potential acquiree to work with our management. Risks related to acquisition
financing. We have a limited amount of financial resources and our ability to make additional acquisitions without securing additional financing
from outside sources is limited. In order to continue to pursue our acquisition strategy, we may be required to obtain additional financing. We
may obtain such financing through a combination of traditional debt financing and / or the placement of debt and equity securities. We may
finance some portion of our future acquisitions by either issuing equity or by using shares of our common stock for all or a portion of the
purchase price for such businesses. In the event that our common stock does not attain or maintain a sufficient market value, or potential
acquisition candidates are otherwise unwilling to accept our common stock as part of the purchase price for the sale of their businesses, we may
be required to use more of our cash resources, if available, in order to maintain our acquisition program. If we do not have sufficient cash
resources, we will not be able to complete acquisitions and our growth could be limited unless we are able to obtain additional capital through
debt or equity financings. The terms of our credit facility require that we obtain the consent of our lenders prior to securing additional debt
financing. There could be circumstances in which our ability to obtain additional debt financing could be constrained if we are unable to secure
such consent. To the extent we make any material acquisitions, our earnings may be adversely affected by non- cash charges relating to the
amortization of intangible assets. Under applicable accounting standards, purchasers are required to allocate the total consideration paid in a
business combination to the identified acquired assets and liabilities based on their fair values at the time of acquisition. The excess of the
consideration paid to acquire a business over the fair value of the identifiable tangible assets acquired must be allocated among identifiable
intangible assets including goodwill. The amount allocated to goodwill is not subject to amortization. However, it is tested at least annually for
impairment. The amount allocated to identifiable intangible assets, such as customer relationships and the like, is amortized over the life of
these intangible assets. We expect that this will subject us to periodic charges against our earnings to the extent of the amortization incurred for
that period. Because our business strategy focuses, in part, on growth through acquisitions, our future earnings may be subject to greater non-
cash amortization charges than a company whose earnings are derived solely from organic growth. As a result, we may experience an increase
in non- cash charges related to the amortization of intangible assets acquired in our acquisitions. Our financial statements will show that our
intangible assets are diminishing in value, even if the acquired businesses are increasing (or not diminishing) in value. We are not obligated to
follow any particular criteria or standards for identifying acquisition candidates. We are not obligated to follow any particular operating,
financial, geographic or other criteria in evaluating candidates for potential acquisitions or business combinations. We will determine the
purchase price and other terms and conditions of acquisitions. Our shareholders will not have the opportunity to evaluate the relevant economic,
financial and other information that our management team will use and consider in deciding whether or not to enter into a particular transaction.
We may be required to incur a significant amount of indebtedness in order to successfully implement our acquisition strategy. Subject to the
restrictions contained under our current credit facilities, we may be required to incur a significant amount of indebtedness in order to complete
future acquisitions. If we are not able to generate sufficient cash flow from the operations of acquired businesses to make scheduled payments
of principal and interest on the indebtedness, then we will be required to use our capital for such payments. This will restrict our ability to make
additional acquisitions. We may also be forced to sell an acquired business in order to satisfy indebtedness. We cannot be certain that we will be
able to operate profitably once we incur this indebtedness or that we will be able to generate a sufficient amount of proceeds from the ultimate
disposition of such acquired businesses to repay the indebtedness incurred to make these acquisitions. We may experience difficulties in
integrating the operations, personnel and assets of acquired businesses that may disrupt our business, dilute stockholder value and adversely
affect our operating results. A core component of our business plan is to acquire businesses and assets in the food distribution industry. There




can be no assurance that we will be able to identify, acquire or profitably manage businesses or successfully integrate our acquired businesses
without substantial costs, delays or other operational or financial problems. Such acquisitions also involve numerous operational risks,
including: « difficulties in integrating operations, technologies, services and personnel; ¢ the diversion of financial and management resources
from existing operations; * the risk of entering new markets; ¢ the potential loss of existing or acquired strategic operating partners following an
acquisition; * the potential loss of key employees following an acquisition and the associated risk of competitive efforts from such departed
personnel; ¢ possible legal disputes with the acquired company following an acquisition; and ¢ the inability to generate sufficient revenue to
offset acquisition or investment costs. As a result, if we fail to properly evaluate and execute any acquisitions or investments, our business and
prospects may be seriously harmed. Risk Factors Relating to our Common Stock A trading market for our common stock may not be sustained
and our common stock prices could decline. Although our common stock is listed on the Nasdaq Capital Market (" NASDAQ") under the
symbol “ HFFG ”, an active trading market for the shares of our common stock may not be sustained. Accordingly, no assurance can be given
as to the following:  the likelihood that an active trading market for shares of our common stock will be sustained; * the liquidity of any such
market; ¢ the ability of our shareholders to sell their shares of common stock; or ¢ the price that our shareholders may obtain for their common
stock. In addition, our common stock has historically experienced price and volume volatility. The market price and volume of our common
stock may continue to experience fluctuations not only due to volatile stock market conditions but also due to government regulatory action, tax
laws— law update-updates , interest rates, the condition of the U. S. economy and a change in sentiment in the market regarding our industry,
operations or business prospects. In addition to other factors, the price and volume volatility of our common stock may be affected by: ¢ factors
influencing consumer food choices; ¢ the operating and securities price performance of companies that investors consider comparable to us; ¢
announcements of strategic developments, acquisitions and other material events by us or our competitors; * changes in global financial markets
and global economies and general market conditions, such as tariffs, interest rates, commodity and equity prices and the value of financial
assets; * additions or departures of key personnel; * operating results that vary from the expectations of securities analysts and investors; * sales
of our equity securities common stock by shareholders, including the owners of businesses we have acquired, management, or our founder and
his affiliated trusts and family members; ¢ actions by shareholders; ¢ actions by the SEC or NASDAQ relating to investigations; and  passage
of' legislation or other regulatory developments that adversely affect us or our industry. If an active market is not maintained, or if our common
stock continues to experience price and volume volatility, the market price of our common stock may decline. Furthermore, our ability to raise
funds through the issuance of equity securities or otherwise by using our common stock as consideration is impacted by the price of our
common stock. A low stock price may adversely impact our ability to reduce our financial leverage, as measured by the ratio of total debt to
total capital. Continued high levels of leverage or significant increases may adversely affect our credit ratings and make it more difficult for us
to access additional capital. These factors may limit our ability to implement our operating and growth plans. Our current management does not
have extensive corporate governance experience, and we may need to recruit expertise on corporate governance to comply with the regulations
and effectively communicate with the capital markets, which may increase our operating expenses. We have built up and will continue to
expand our corporate management team from all areas of expertise. Lack of in- house talent could also have an adverse impact on both the
effectiveness of our operations and the full compliance with all applicable laws and regulations. In addition, recruiting talent for our
management team may increase operational costs substantially and may require longer hiring periods than ordinary employees. We have
identified material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting, which could affect our ability to ensure timely and reliable
financial reports, affect the ability of our auditors to attest to the effectiveness of our internal controls, and weaken investor confidence in our
financial reporting. The Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002 requires, among other things, that we design, implement and maintain adequate internal
controls and procedures over financial reporting. Our management has concluded that (1) our internal controls over financial reporting were not
effective as of December 31, 2622-2023 , (2) there existed material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting as of December
31,2022-2023 , and (3) our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective as of December 31, 2022-2023 . Please see-refer to the
discussion of these conclusions below , under Item 9A. “ Controls and Procedures ” of this Annual Report on Form 10- K. We have taken and
will continue to take appropriate actions to remediate such material weakness and inadequate disclosure controls and procedures; however, such
continuous measures are still wetleworks - in- progress and may not be sufficient to address the material weaknesses identified or ensure that
our disclosure controls and procedures are effective. We may also discover other material weaknesses in the future. Any failure to maintain or
implement required new or improved controls, or any difficulties we encounter in the implementation of such controls, could cause us to fail to
meet our periodic reporting obligations or result in material misstatements in our financial statements and affect the ability of our auditors to
attest to the effectiveness of our internal controls over financing reporting. In addition, substantial costs and resources may be required to rectify
any internal control deficiencies. If we cannot produce reliable financial reports, investors could lose confidence in our reported financial
information, the market price of our common stock could decline significantly, and our business and financial condition could be adversely
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etrte-atry-stte aettor-steecesstaty-and rttaHy-harmtreo st stratesteplamand-finanetal-eondition—F uture sales of our
common stock may cause our stock price to decline. As of March 2722 , 2023-2024 , there were 53-52 , 827155 , 534968 shares of our
common stock outstanding. Of this number, approximately $3-52 . 8-2 million shares of common stock were freely tradable without restriction,
unless the shares were held by our affiliates. The remaining shares of common stock were “ restricted securities ” as that term is defined under
Rule 144 of the Securities Act. None of our directors, executive officers or employees are subject to lock- up agreements or market stand- off
provisions that limit their ability to sell shares of our common stock. The sale of a large number of shares of our common stock, or the belief
that such sales may occur, could cause a drop in the market price of our common stock. Zhou Min Ni has significant influence over the
Company and may have interests that conflict with those of our other shareholders. The Company’ s former Chairman and Co- CEO Zhou Min
Ni, directly and indirectly through the trustee of the trusts established for the benefit of his family, beneficially owns approximately 25-22 % of
our common stock. As a result, Mr. Ni has sufficient voting power to significantly influence matters requiring shareholder approval, including
the election of directors and approval of significant corporate transactions. Further, the possibility that Mr. Ni may sell all or a large portion of
his common stock in a short period of time could adversely affect the trading price of our common stock. The interests of Mr. Ni may not align
with the interests of other holders of our common stock. Mr. Ni’ s significant beneficial ownership may also adversely affect the trading price of
our common stock due to investors’ perception that conflicts of interest may exist or arise. We do not currently intend to pay dividends on our
common stock and, consequently, investors’ ability to achieve a return on investment will depend on appreciation in the price of our common
stock. We have not declared nor paid dividends on our common stock and we do not intend to do so in the near term. We currently intend to
invest our future earnings, if any, to fund our growth. Therefore, investors are not likely to receive any dividends on common stock in the near
term, and capital appreciation, if any, of our common stock will be an investor’ s sole source of gain for the foreseeable future. Anti- takeover
provisions contained in our amended and restated bylaws, as well as provisions of Delaware law, could impair a takeover attempt. Anti-
takeover provisions contained in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws, as well as
provisions of Delaware law, could impair a takeover attempt. Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, amended and
restated bylaws and Delaware law contain provisions which could have the effect of rendering more difficult, delaying, or preventing an
acquisition deemed undesirable by our board of directors. Among other things, our amended and restated certificate of incorporation
and amended and restated bylaws include provisions: ¢ authorizing “ blank check ” preferred stock, which could be issued by our
board of directors without stockholder approval and may contain voting, liquidation, dividend and other rights superior to our
common stock; ¢ limiting the liability of, and providing indemnification to, our directors and officers; * limiting the ability of our
stockholders to call and bring business before special meetings; * requiring advance notice of stockholder proposals for business to be
conducted at meetings of our stockholders and for nominations of candidates for election to our board of directors; and ¢ controlling the
procedures for the conduct and scheduling of stockholder meetings. These provisions, alone or together, could delay or prevent hostile
takeovers and changes in control or changes in our management, and amendment of our amended and restated certificate of
incorporation to change or modify certain of these provisions requires approval of a super- majority of our stockholders, which we may
not be able to obtain. As a Delaware corporation, we are also subject to provisions of Delaware law, including Section 203 of the
Delaware General Corporation law, which prevents certain stockholders holding more than 15 % of our outstanding common stock
from engaging in certain business combinations without approval of the holders of at least two- thirds of our outstanding common stock
not held by such 15 % or greater stockholder. In addition, in April 2023, we implemented a stockholder rights plan (the Rights
Agreement), also called a “ poison pill, ” that may have the effect of discouraging or preventing a change of control by, among other
things, making it uneconomical for a third party to acquire us without the consent of our board of directors. Any provision of our
amended and restated certificate of incorporation, amended and restated bylaws or Delaware law that has the effect of delaying,
preventing or deterring a change in control could limit the opportunity for our stockholders to receive a premium for their shares of
our common stock, and could also affect the price that some investors are willing to pay for our common stock. [TEM 1B.
UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS. None. ITEM 1C. CYBERSECURITY Cybersecurity Risk Management and Strategy The
Company assesses, identifies, and manages cybersecurity risks using a risk management program intended to reduce risks to the
Company, its employees, customers and stockholders. Our process for identifying and assessing material risks from cybersecurity
threats operates alongside our broader overall enterprise risk assessment procedures. Our cybersecurity- specific risk assessment and
management procedures help identify cybersecurity threat risks. Our cybersecurity risk assessment program includes the following: *
Annual cybersecurity vulnerability and maturity assessments based on the Center for Internet Security (CIS) Critical Security
Controls framework. * Annual internal / external penetration testing conducted by a third- party offensive security vendor. A
significant cybersecurity incident may result from actions by our employees, suppliers, third- party administrators, or unknown third
parties or through cyber- attacks and could affect our data framework or cause a failure to protect the personal information of our
customers, suppliers or employees, or sensitive and confidential information regarding our business and could give rise to legal liability
and regulatory action under data protection and privacy laws. The Company describes whether and how risks from identified
cybersecurity threats have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect the Company under the heading “ We rely
on technology in our business and any cybersecurity incident, other technology disruption or delay in implementing new technology
could negatively affect our business and our relationships with customers, ” in Item 1A of this Annual Report on Form 10- K. To date,
there have not been any cybersecurity threats or incidents that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect,
the Company, including its financial condition, results of operations, or business strategies. Governance Our Board of Directors
oversees our overall risk management strategy. Our information security program is managed by a dedicated Head of Information
Technology, who has over twenty years of experience in IT application management, infrastructure and security across a variety of
industries including Financial Services, Defense Contracting, Manufacturing and Distribution, whose team is responsible for
maintaining our enterprise- wide cybersecurity strategy, policies, standards, architecture and processes. Our program is assessed both
internally and externally by third parties, including our virtual Chief Information Security Officer (“ vCISO ) partner. Our Head of
Information Technology provides reports at least quarterly to our Audit Committee, as well as our Disclosure Committee, which
comprises senior management and key stakeholders, as appropriate. The reports provided include updates on our cyber risks and
threats, key updates to our information security systems and programs as well as the current threat environment. ITEM 2.
PROPERTIES. As of the date of this report, we owned and / or operated +8-eighteen distribution centers and cross- docks with a total of
approximately 1. 3 million square feet of warehouse space including approximately 400 thousand square feet of refrigerated storage utilizing a
mix of leased (31 %) and owned (69 %) facilities for distribution, warehousing inventory, service and administrative functions. The table below



lists the aggregate square footage, by state for these operating facilities as of December 31, 2622-2023 . LocationNumber of FacilitiesTotal
Square FeetArizonal 51, 000 €aliferntas36+-California5295 . 666-500 Colorado153, 000 Flondal 136, 200 Georgial 123, 000 Illinois1135, 000
North Carolina2236, 000 Texas265, 000 Utah281, 000 Washington165, 000 Virginial43, 000 Totals181, 289-283 , 700 We 206-n-additton;we
lease our corporate headquarters ylocated in Las Vegas, Nevada, consisting of approximately 5, 000 square feet with a term of 6. 5 years
beginning-that began on March 17, 2021 . We also lease office space for a corporate location in Los Angeles, California . We believe that,
in the aggregate, our real estate is suitable and adequate to serve the needs of our business. ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS. From time to
time, we are a party to various lawsuits, claims and other legal proceedings that arise in the ordinary course of business. When we become
aware of a claim or potential claim, we assess the likelihood of any loss or exposure. In accordance with authoritative guidance, we record loss
contingencies in our financial statements only for matters in which losses are probable and can be reasonably estimated. Where a range of loss
can be reasonably estimated with no best estimate in the range, we record the minimum estimated liability. If the loss is not probable or the
amount of the loss cannot be reasonably estimated, we disclose the nature of the specific claim if the likelihood of a potential loss is reasonably
possible and the amount involved is material. We continuously assess the potential liability related to our pending litigation and revise its
estimates when additional information becomes available. Adverse outcomes in some or all of these matters may result in significant monetary
damages or injunctive relief against us that could adversely affect our ability to conduct our business. There also exists the possibility of a
material adverse effect on our financial statements for the period in which the effect of an unfavorable outcome becomes probable and
reasonably estimable. As previously disclosed, in March 2020, an analyst report suggested certain improprieties in the Company’ s operations,
and in response to those allegations, the Company’ s Board of Directors appointed a Special Committee of Independent Directors (the “ Special
Investigation Committee ) to conduct an internal independent investigation with the assistance of counsel. These allegations became the
subject of two putative stockholder class actions filed on or after March 29, 2020 in the United States District Court for the Central District of
California generally alleging the Company and certain of its current and former directors and officers violated the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 and Rule 10b- 5 promulgated thereunder by making allegedly false and misleading statements (the “ Class Actions ). These Class Actions
have since been dismissed and are now closed. In addition, the SEC initiated a formal, non- public investigation of the Company, and the SEC
informally requested, and later issued a subpoena for, documents and other information. The subpoena relates to but is not necessarily limited to
the matters identified in the C lass Actions. The Special lm estigation Committee and the Compdny are—have been coopuatmg with the gl:( Oon

has—made—eeftam—ﬁclual ﬁndmas basud on ev 1dmcu adduud by the Specnal Investlgatlon Commlttee dLlImL its mternal inv ullganon were
incorporated into the Company’ s restatement filed on January 31 , and-2023. After the conclusion of its internal investigation, the
Special Investigation Committee made recommendations to management regarding improvements to Company operations and structure,
including but not limited to its dealings with related parties. The Company has is-werking-to-tmpltementimplemented these-numerous
improvements and continues to improve its compliance program . We-have-The Company has also instituted structural changes including
the retirement-appointment of an mdependent Chalrman 0f the Board to replace the former Co- Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of

the Board. In addition W v and-, as of January 31, 2023, three other independent directors
serve on the Company’ s B()dld ofDlrectors Oul senior executive team now includes a General Counsel and Chief C ompliance Officer, a
Chief Operations Officer who was hired in May 2022, and a new Chief Financial Officer who joined the Company in August 2022. We also
hired a Vice President and Head of Internal Audit in April 2022 who reports directly to the Chief Financial Officer and to the Audit Committee
Chair . In serd-i-November 2022, we hired a Vice President of Compliance and Associate General Counsel, who reports directly to the
General Counsel and Chief Compliance Officer . The Company also created a Special Litigation Committee which determined to pursue
claims against certain former officers and directors. As a result, pursuant to the previously disclosed settlement agreement (as amended
on November 1, 2023, the “ Settlement Agreement ”’) between the Company and certain parties to the verified stockholder derivative
complaint filed by James Bishop in the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware, on October 16, 2023, the Company received $ 1. 5
million on behalf of Zhou Min Ni, a former Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and Chan Sin Wong, a former
President and Chief Operating Officer of the Company (together, the “ Ni Defendants ”’). Subsequently, on December 1, 2023, the
Company received 1, 997, 423 shares (valued at $ 7. 75 million) of the Company’ s common stock, based on the closing price of $ 3. 88
on October 13, 2023, plus a cash payment of approximately $ 0. 1 million of accrued interest through the date of payment, in
satisfaction of the Ni Defendant’ s payment obligations totaling $ 9. 25 million under the Settlement Agreement. Pursuant to the terms
of the Settlement Agreement, Mr. Ni, Ms. Wong and Jonathan Ni, the former Chief Financial Officer of the Company, agreed to give
up any rights to indemnification or the advancement of fees in connection with the SEC investigation and any actions the SEC might
take against them relating to the SEC investigation. On October 13, 2023, the Company received a “ Wells Notice ” from the staff of the
SEC (the “ Wells Notice ”) relating to the previously disclosed formal, non- public SEC investigation of allegations that the Company
and certain of its current and former directors and officers violated the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and Rule 10b- 5 promulgated
thereunder by making allegedly false and misleading statements. A Wells Notice is neither a formal charge of wrongdoing nor a final
determination that the recipient has violated any law and invites recipients to submit a response if they wish. The Company made a
submission in response to the Wells Notice explaining why an enforcement action would not be appropriate. Following that submission,
the staff of the SEC determined that it would no longer be recommending that the SEC file an enforcement action against the Company
at this time pending a potential agreed- upon resolution between the Company and the SEC. The Company is in negotiations with the
SEC over a potential resolution, which could include fines and penalties, but the terms of that settlement are not set and the Company
has made no formal offer of settlement to the SEC as of this filing . I[TEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES. Not applicable. PART 11




ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’ S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES
OF EQUITY SECURITIES. Shares of our common stock are listed for trading on NASDAQ under the symbol “ HFFG, ” and have been
publicly traded since September 7, 2017. Prior to that date, there was no public market for our stock. Holders of Record As of March 2722 ,
2023-2024 , there were 53-52 , 827155 , 5314968 shares of our common stock outstanding held by 41 shareholders of record. The number of
record holders was determined from the records of our transfer agent and does not include beneficial owners of common stock whose shares are
held in the names of various security brokers, dealers, and registered clearing agencies. Dividends We have not paid any cash dividends on our
common stock to date. The payment of cash dividends in the future will be dependent upon our revenues and earnings, if any, capital
requirements and our general financial condition. The payment of any dividends will be within the discretion of our Board of Directors at such
time. It is the present intention of our Board of Directors to retain all earnings, if any, for use in our business operations and, accordingly, our
Board of Directors does not anticipate declaring any dividends in the foreseeable future. In addition, our Board of Directors is not currently
contemplating and does not anticipate declaring any stock dividends in the foreseeable future. Further, if we incur any indebtedness, our ability
to declare dividends may be limited by restrictive covenants we may agree to in connection therewith. Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities
Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities On December 1, 2023, pursuant to the settlement agreement (as amended, the « Settlement
Agreement ”’) between the Company and certain parties to the verified stockholder derivative complaint (the “ Delaware Action ”) filed
by James Bishop in the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware, the Company received 1, 997, 423 shares of the Company’ s
common stock (the “ Settlement Shares ), from Zhou Min Ni, a former Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and
Chan Sin Wong, a former President and Chief Operating Officer of the Company (together with Mr. Ni, the “ Ni Defendants ), in
addition to cash. All of the Settlement Shares received as consideration from the Ni Defendants have been placed by the Company in
treasury. See Note 16- Commitments and Contingencies to the consolidated financial statements and Part I — Item 3. — Legal
Proceedings in this Annual Report on Form 10- K for more information. Stock Performance Graph The following graph compares the
cumulative total return on our common stock with the cumulative total returns on the Standard & Poor’ s 500 Composite Stock Price
Index (“ S & P 500 ”), and the Standard and Poor’ s Food and Staples Retailing Index from December 31, 2018 to December 31, 2023.
The graph assumes an investment of $ 100 in our common stock and each of the indices on December 31, 2018 and the reinvestment of
dividends, as applicable. The cumulative total return on our common stock as presented is not necessarily indicative of future
performance. 12 /31 /201812 /31 /201912 /31 /202012 /31 /202112 /30/202212 /29 / 2023HF Foods Group Inc. $ 100 $ 147 $ 57 $ 64
$31540S & P 5009$100$1318156%2008 16485 207S & P Food and Staples Retailing Index $ 100 $ 127 $ 148 $ 185 $ 166 $ 192 ITEM
6. [ RESERVED ] ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’ S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS. The following discussion and analysis provides information about our business, the results of operations, financial condition,
liquidity and capital resources of HF Foods Group Inc. This information is intended to facilitate the understanding and assessment of significant
changes and trends related to our results of operations and financial condition. This discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with
the consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes presented elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10- K. Discussions of
2026-2021 items and year- to- year comparisons between 2022 and 2021 and-2626-that are not included in this Annual Report on Form 10- K
can be found in ¥ Part I — Item 7 — — Management' s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations %> of our
Annual Report on Form 10- K for the year ended December 31, 26242022 , as filed with the SEC on January-March 31, 2023. Overview We
market and distribute Asian specialty food products, seafood, fresh produce, frozen and dry food, and non- food products primarily to Asian
restaurants and other foodservice customers throughout the United States. HF Greup-Foods was formed through a merger between two
complementary market leaders, HF Foods Group Inc. and B & R Global. On December 30, 2021, HF Greup-Foods acquired a leading seafood
supplier, the Great Wall Group, resulting in the addition of 3-three distribution centers, located in Illinois and Texas (the “ Great Wall
Acquisition 7). On April 29, 2022, HF Greup-Foods acquired substantially all of the assets of Sealand Food, Inc. (the £ Sealand Acquisition *
»), one of the largest frozen seafood suppliers servicing the Asian / Chinese restaurant market along the eastern seaboard, from Massachusetts
to Florida, as well as Pennsylvania, West Virginia, Ohio, Kentucky, and Tennessee. See Note 8-7 - Acquisitions to the consolidated financial
statements in this Annual Report on Form 10- K for additional information regarding recent acquisitions. We have grown our distribution
network to +8-eighteen distribution centers and cross- docks servicing 46-forty- six states and covering approximately 95 % of the contiguous
United States with a fleet of over 400 refrigerated vehicles. Capitalizing on our deep understanding of the Chinese culture, with over 1, 000
employees and subcontractors and supported by two call centers in China, we have become a trusted partner serving ever-approximately 15,
000 Asian restaurants, providing sales and service support to customers who mainly converse in Mandarin or other Chinese dialects. We are
dedlcated to servmg the vast dlldy of Asian and Chinese 1estdul ants in need of hlgh qudllty and specmllzed food i ingr edlents at Competmve
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Pcrformamc In assessing our pcrtormancc we consider a varlcty of puform'mu, and fmanual measures, including principal growth in net
revenue, gross profit, distribution, selling and administrative expenses, as well as certain non- GAAP financial measures, including EBITDA
and Adjusted EBITDA. The key measures that we use to evaluate the performance of our business are set forth below: Net Revenue Net
revenue is equal to gross sales minus sales returns, sales incentives that we offer to our customers, such as rebates and discounts that are offsets
to gross sales; and certain other adjustments. Our net revenue is driven by changes in number of customers and average customer order amount,
product inflation that is reflected in the pricing of our products and mix of products sold. Gross Profit Gross profit is equal to net revenue minus
cost of revenue. Cost of revenue primarily includes inventory costs (net of supplier consideration), inbound freight, customs clearance fees and
other miscellaneous expenses. Cost of revenue generally changes as we incur higher or lower costs from suppliers and as the customer and



product mix changes. Distribution, Selling and Administrative Expenses Distribution, selling and administrative expenses consist primarily of
salaries, stock- based compensation and benefits for employees and contract laborers, trucking and fuel expenses, utilities, maintenance and
repair expenses, insurance expenses, depreciation and amortization expenses, selling and marketing expenses, professional fees and other
operating expenses. Discussion of our results includes certain non- GAAP financial measures, including EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA, that
we believe provides an additional tool for investors to use in evaluating ongoing operating results and trends and in comparing our financial
performance with other companies in the same industry, many of which present similar non- GAAP financial measures to investors. We present
EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA in order to provide supplemental information that we consider relevant for the readers of our consolidated
financial statements included elsewhere in this report, and such information is not meant to replace or supersede GAAP measures. Management
uses EBITDA to measure operating performance, defined as net income before interest expense, interest income, income taxes, and
depreciation and amortization. In addition, management uses Adjusted EBITDA, defined as net income before interest expense, interest
income, income taxes, and depreciation and amortization, further adjusted to exclude certain unusual, non- cash, or non- recurring expenses.
Management believes that Adjusted EBITDA is less susceptible to variances in actual performance resulting from non- recurring expenses, and
other non- cash charges and is more reflective of other factors that affect our operating performance. The definition of EBITDA and Adjusted
EBITDA may not be the same as similarly titled measures used by other companies in the industry. EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA are not
defined under GAAP and are subject to important limitations as analytical tools and should not be considered in isolation or as substitutes for
analysis of HF Greup-Foods ’ s-results as reported under GAAP. For example, Adjusted EBITDA: « excludes certain tax payments that may
represent a reduction in cash available; * does not reflect any cash capital expenditure requirements for the assets being depreciated and
amortized that may have to be replaced in the future; ¢ does not reflect changes in, or cash requirements for, our working capital needs; and *
does not reflect the significant interest expense, or the cash requirements, necessary to service our debt. For additional information on EBITDA
and Adjusted EBITDA, see the section entitled “ EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA ” below. Financial Review Highlights for 2622-2023
included: « Net revenue: Net revenue was $ 1, 476-148 . 5 million in 2023, compared to $ 1, 170. 5 million in 2022, eempared-to-a decrease of
$796-22 . 9-0 million fn%@%—l—&n—mefe&se—e%%—é—mi%ﬂ— or46-1 . 9 %. This inerease-decrease was primarily attributable to reeent
aequisitions-deflationary pricing in imported frozen seafood , produet-eostinflation-Asian Specialty, poultry . and, to a lesser extent, the
exit strongreeevery-of our chicken processing businesses fesfaﬁfaﬂ&deﬁk&ﬁd—ffeﬁk&}e-%%—}g-p&ﬁdeﬂﬂe- Gross profit: Gross profit was
$ 204. 0 million in 2023 compared to $ 205. 5 million in 2022 eempared-te-, a decrease of $ 541 . 5 million #2621, or aninerease-of$54-
0 mithen;er35- 67 %. The inerease-decrease was primarily attributable to lower the-addittenal-revenuc generated-due-toreeent-aequisitions-.
Gross profit margin of 17. 8 % for 2622-2023 deereased-increased from +9-0-%-11262+te-17. 6 % in 2022-the prior year . » Distribution,
selling and administrative expenses: Distribution, selling and administrative expenses increased by $ #2-0 . 9-1 million, or 59-0 . -1 %, mainly
due to settlement amounts received partially offset by an increase in payroll and related labor costs and-salesrelated-as well as insurance
eest-costs . During 2023 | driven-by-we received legal settlements amounts totaling $ 9. 25 million and $ 1. 7 million, of which we paid $
0. 9 million, for a nect revente-growth-andrecent-aequisitions-settlement totaling $ 10. 0 million. These net settlement amounts were
recorded as a reduction of distribution . selling along-with-inereased-professionatfees-and delivery-eosts-administrative expenses .
Distribution, selling and administrative expenses as a percentage of net revenue increased to 17. 0 % in 2023 from +5-3-%-12621te-16. 7 % in
2022, primarily due to the costs disclosed above partialy-effsetby-streng-combined with the decrease in revenuc grewth-year over year . ¢
Net (loss) income attributable to HF Foods Group Inc.: Net tnreeme-loss attributable to HF Foods Group Inc. was $ 2. 2 million in 2023

compared to net income of $ 0. 5 million in 2022 eompared-tonetineome-of $22+mithonin202+ The decrease of $ 242 . 6 million was
prlmarlly dnven by the-a deuease in gﬁess—pfoﬁt—mafgm—our income from operatlons of $1.6 ml]llon, a-ﬂd» an t-he—mcredse in mterest

aggfeg&te—pufehase—pﬂe&ot $ %9—4 () mllllon -m—e&s-h— as—wel-l—&s—a change in fair value of interest rate swap contracts of $ +4-2 . 4 million ,
of aequired-saleable-inventory-and add-tt—reﬂai—ﬁ*ed—assefs—fbﬁappfoxmﬁfebka change in other income of $ 0.57 |m]]|on , partlally offset by a
favorable change in lease guarantee expense of $ 6 . atotig
processing businesses: During the second half of 2023, we exited both of our low margm chicken processmg businesses on the East-east
and west Ceast-coast —fromMassachusettsteHloridaas part of our commitment to refocusing on our core business wel-asRennsylvanta;
West-Virginta;-Ohte; Kentueley;-and-Tennessee-. Comparison of Year Ended December 31, 2023 to Year Ended December 31, 2022 The
following table sets forth a summary of our consolidated results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 and2082+- The
historical results presented below are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for any future period. Year Ended December
31, Change ($a$ in thousands) 20232022AmountNet 2022202t Ameunt-%Netrevenue $ 1, 148,493 § 1, 170, 467 $ 796-(21 , 974) 88453735
58346-99%Cost of revented64— revenue944 , 462 964 , 955 645-(20 . 372-319,-58349-493 ) —5-%-Gross prefit205-profit204 , 031 205, 512
+54H(1, 481) SH2-54;-000-35-6% Distribution, selling and administrative expensest94-expenses195 , 062 194 , 953 109 -1—2—2—9%9—7—2—92—3—59—8
Yo-Income from eperationsto-operations8 , 969 10 . 559 29:-482-( +8-1 . 923-590 ) (642 % Interest expense7expensell , 478 7, 457 4,
0210ther income (1, 091 ) 3;-36682-3-%Otherineeme( 1, 829) 698)—61—32—19%69—94%-Ghaﬂge-738Change in fair value of interest rate swap
eentraets-contractsl , 580 (817) 2 (-, 425960842 % Lease-397Lease guarantee (income) expense5— expense (377) 5, 744 —5-(6 , 744
+66-6-%-121) (Loss) -I-ﬁee-memcome before income tax-taxes provistond27-324- 272 , 326-621 ) 4 ( +66-0-2, 625 ) %o-Income tax expense
(benefit) previsten-41 (23 1) 272Net 4,563 loss 4;734-) (F05-—1%Net-income and comprahcnsl\ ¢ (loss) ireome235—-- income 22,824+ 22-2
,586-662 ) 235 (99-0-2, 897 ) Y%-Less: net €loss 3 attributable to noncontrolling interests ( 488) (225) 676~ 96+-263 ) (433-3)%Net
(loss) income and comprehensive (loss) income attributable to HF Foods Group Inc. $ (2, 174) $ 460 $ 22,445-$-( 24-2 , 685-634 ) (97+-9H%
The following table sets forth the components of our consolidated results of operations expressed as a percentage of net revenue for the periods
indicated: Year Ended December 31, 20222624Net-20232022Net revenuel00. 0 % 100. 0 % Cost of revenue82. 2 % 82. 4 %4-8+-6-% Gross
profitl7. 8 % 17. 6 % +9-Distribution, selling and administrative expenses17 . 0 % 16 Distribution;selling-and-administrative-expensest6-. 7
% +5-3%Income @essy-from operationsO. 8 % 0. 9 % 3-Interest expensel . 7-0 % Interestexpense-0. 6 ¥F%(0-5)-"% Other income sretd-(0.
1) % (0. 2 ) %—2% Change in fair value of interest rate swap contracts0. 1 % (0. 2-1) % Lease guarantee expense £— % 0. 5 % (Loss)
income before income taxes (0. 2 ) % — % Income before-ineeme-tax previstenrexpense (benefit) — %

% Net (loss) income and comprehensive (loss) income ( 0. 5-2) % Netineome-— %2-9-% Less: net ineeme-loss attributable to
noncontrolling interests — % — 8—+% Net (loss) income and comprehensive (loss) income attributable to HF Foods Group Inc. (0. 2) % — %
2-8-% Net revenue for the year ended December 31, 2022-2023 inereased-decreased by $ 373-22 . 6-0 million, or46-1 . 9 %, compared to the
same period in 2024-2022 . Fhe-This irnerease-decrease was primarily attributable to deflationary pricing product categories such as frozen
seafood, poultry, Asian Specialty and packaging. The revenue decrease duc to pricing was partially offset by higher volume and the
aéd-rt-teﬂa-l—Seafood revenue gcnu ated by—feeeﬂt—due to the Sealand aeguisitions— Acquisition and-everalt-produet-eostinflatton—Organte
which shifted-otrproduet-mix-to-higher-Seafoodsales-has a full year of revenue in




2023 compared to the-same-period-a partial year in 2024-2022 eentributed-the-remaining-$252-5-millen. Gross profit was $ 204. 0 mllllon
for the year ended December 31, 2023 compared to $ 205. 5 million fer-in the same period in 2022 eem-pafeel—te— a decrease of 5 +5+1 .

million t-the-prier-year-, or aninerease-of$54-0 mithon;or35-. 67 %. The gross profit inerease-decrease was primarily attributable to
decreases in revenue from Meat and Poultry, and to a lesser extent, Packaging and Other, partially offset by the increased revenue
from Asian Specialty, the additional Seafood revenue generated due to reeent-the Sealand aequisitions— Acquisition and the successful
execution of our Seafood centralized purchasing program. During the year ended December 31, 2023, poultry pricing came down from
the elevated levels we benefited from durmg the same perlod in 2022 (110\\ plotn mar, gin t01 %92—2—2023 of 17 8 % deefeased—mcreased
from -l-9—9%—l-n—2-92—l—te-l 7.6 % in b f

tei a-hi thcpnol year dueto o v o-abovep
+9—pandem+e—levels—m%92—l— D1sll1but10n \LlllllL zmd admmlstmmc expenses tereased-of $ 195 1 mllhon for the year ended December 31
2023 remained consistent with prior year expenses of $ 195. 0 million. For 2023, there was a decrease in professional fees as a result of
the net settlement amounts received totaling $ 10. 0 million, partially offset by increases of $ 72-7 . 3 9-milion;-or-660-%;primarily-duete
an-erease-of-$28—8-million in payroll and related labor costs, inclusive of the additional costs due to reeent-the Sealand aequisittons—-
Acquisition , inereased-and $ 2. 0 million in insurance related costs. professional-Professional fccs ef-decreased $ +4-12 . +-9 million, or $
2. 9 million net of the settlement amounts received, to $ 13. 9 million for the year ended December 31, 2023 , from $ -1—2—7—mrl-l-len—m%92—l-

te—$—26 8 ml]llon ‘l-ﬁ-f()r the year ended December 31, 2022 In addition , we recognlzed primardy-drivenrby-tegal-eosts-and-inereased

g-to-an asset lmpalrment -SEGeemmeﬁt—letteﬁaﬂd—t-he
filingof eu%del-mqﬁeﬂt—reperts—as—wel-l—as—aﬂ-% $1. 4—2 m1llmn inerease-in-sates—related y §
to the exit of our chlcken processmg fac1llty D1sll1but10n scllmg and 1dmm|sllal1\c c\pcnscs asa puccnlaac 01 net revenue 111c1cascd Lo-l-é
17 . 70 % in 5 artly ofes ri-Charg
Interestexpense-for thc year cndcd Dcccmbu 31, 2023 from 16.7 % in the same perlod in 7077 mefeased—by—$—3—, prlmarlly due to the
costs disclosed above combined with the decrease in revenue year over year . 4mitlion-Interest Expense Interest expense or-for 82-3-%;
eeomparedte-the year ended December 31, 2024-2023 increased by $ 4. 0 million or 53. 9 %, compared to the year ended December 31,
2022 , primarily due to a sharply higherutilization-ofourline-oferediteoupledwiththe-higher interest- rate environment s-and;te-altesser
extent;-. Average floating interest rates on our floating- rate debt for thc year ended December 31, 2023 inerease-increased ef-$46-by
approximately 3 . 6-millionrto-our4 % on the line of credit and 3. 4 % on the JPMorgan Chase mortgage- secured term loan , compared to
the same period in 2022 . Our average daily line of credit balance inereased-decreased by $ 38-10. 2 million, or 18 . 5 %, to $ 44. 9 million 5
erfor 233—1-%-the year ended December 31 , +6-2023 from $ 55. 0 million in-for the year ended December 31, ()2“ #em—$—l—éé—mx-l—l+eﬂ—m
%92—1—, and our average daily fea-l-estate—JPMorgan Chase mortgage- secured term loan balancc mueascd by ‘1» 42—6 2—5 mllllon or 59—6 3—4

%, to $ H3-108 . 4-6 million 41 ; y ates

2023 from $ 102 1 mllllon for the year ended December 31 02

: vhieh i PeRs lncome Ta\
Expense (Bcncm) P—Fe-V‘I-S-lﬁﬁ-lllCOlll(. tax expense (bul(.lll) pfeﬂs-teﬁ-\\ as an income tax Joenet—'rt—expense of approx1mately $ 41, 000 62
mithen-for the year ended December 31, 2022-2023 , compared to income tax provisterrbenefit of $ 4-0 . 5-2 million for the year ended
December 31,2024-2022 . primarily due to deereased-ineome-before-the impact of non- deductible items, change in valuation allowance,
and state taxes —Net—l-neeme—ﬁ:tﬁ‘-rbﬁtab-le- partially offset by the explratlon of the statute of hmltatlons in relatlon to unrecognlzed tax
benefits, tax credits, and other tax adjustments during Our-ShareholdersNetineome brtable-to-o A a
the year ended December 31, 2022-2023 ;eempared-. Net (Loss) Income Attrlbutable to HF Foods Group Inc. Net loss attrlbutable to HF
Foods Group Inc. was $ 222 42 million for the year ended December 31, 2624-2023 , compared to net income of $ 0. 5 million for the
year ended December 31, 2022 . The decrease of $ 24-2. 6 million was primarily driven by a decrease in our income from operations of $
1. 6 million, an increase in interest expense of $4.0 mllhon, a change in falr value of 1nterest rate swap contracts of $ 2. 4 m11110n, and a
change in other income of $ 0 . 7 million arthy o v :
desertbed-above-, partially offset by ey v
favorable nen—reeurring-eharge-change in lease guarantee expense of § 5—6 -7—1 mllllon felated—te—a—gua-ra—ntee—ef—a—le&seebl-rg&t—ren— Thc
following table reconciles EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA to the most directly comparable GAAP measure: Year Ended December 31,
Change (18 in thousands) 20222024 Ameunt%Net- 20232022 AmountNet (loss) income $ (toss-2, 662 ) $ 235 § 22824-$-( 222 , 586-897 )
990y 9%-Interest expense7-expensell , 4787 . 4574, 0913, 366823-%Ineeme-021Income tax previsienrexpense (benefit) 41 (231) 45034,
P05 %Depreetation-272Depreciation and amertizattenZ4-amortization25 | 93619-91824 | 1265-936982EBITDA34 |, 77532 810364
LEBIFDA32-, 397560-3972 | S48 44359 % Lease-378Lease guarantee (income) expenseS— expense (377) 5, 744 —5-(6 , 121)
F441H66-0-%-Change in fair value of interest rate swap eentraets-contractsl , 580 (817) 2 (-, 4253-668-(42-H%-Steek-397Stock - based
compensation expenset— expense 3 , 3521, 2572, 095Business transformatlon 25763562298-0-% Aequisitionand-integrationeestst— costs
(1) 929 ;1361690403 %tmpairment422-— 422100-0-%Adjusted-929A cquisition- related costs — 1, 130 (1, 130) Other non- routine
expense (2) 3, 124 — 3, 124Asset impairment charges1, 200422778Adjusted FB]TD/\ % 44, 583 $ -1() H? $ 4, 69-450
8415 16,70821-1) Represents non- recurring costs associated with %A d i

-$—49—l—m1-l-heﬁ—feﬂhe launch yem&eneled—BeeembeHH@%—E—a—éeere&se—ot strateglc prOJects 1nclud1ng supply chaln management

lnltlatlves 2) Includes contested proxy and ad-mﬂ-tst-ratﬁe—e*peﬁses—related legal and consulting costs and facility closure costs . Liquidity
and Capital Resources As of December 31, 28222023 , we had cash of approximately $ 24-15 . 3-2 million, checks issued not presented for
payment of $ 234 . 9-5 million and access to approximately $ 46-37 . 8-6 million in additional funds through our $ 100. 0 million line of credit,
subject to a borrowing base calculation. We have funded working capital and other capital requirements primarily by cash flow from operations
and bank loans. Cash is required to pay purchase costs for inventory, mlallcs fuel dlld tr uc]\m" cxpcnscs scllm«r c\pcnscs 1cnta] cxpcnscs
income taxes, other operating expenses and to service debts. We etitren S § ehha stg
quaﬁeﬁﬂﬂe&ﬂ%&etﬁbf%ﬂeeﬁ@@\%ﬁ—ﬁ%&?eﬁ@%@ﬂ%behe\e that our cdsh ﬂo\\ generated 1‘10m opemtmm is suﬁluent to meet
our normal working capital needs for at least the next twelve months. However, our ability to repay our current obligations will depend on the
future realization of our current assets. Management has considered the historical experience, the economy, the trends in the foodservice
distribution industry to determine the expected collectability of accounts receivable and the realization of inventories as of December 31, 2622
2023 . ©n-We are party to an amortizing interest rate swap contract with JPMorgan Chase for an initial notional amount of $ 120. 0




million, expiring in March 34;2022-2028 , as a means to partially hedge our existing floating rate loans exposure. Pursuant to the
agreement , we amended-will pay the €redit-swap counterparty a fixed rate of 4. 11 % in exchange for floating payments based on CME
Term SOFR. Effective as of April 20, 2023, we and certain parties to the Delaware Action reached an Agreement-agreement to settle the
Delaware Action on the terms and conditions set forth in a binding term sheet (the “ Binding Term Sheet ), which was incorporated
into a long- form settlement agreement on May 5, 2023 and filed with the - R Meorgan-extending-our-Court line-of ereditforfive-years
Chancery on May 8, 2023 . The amendment-Binding Term Sheet provided for , among other things, the dismissal of the Delaware Action
with prejudice, thereby resolving all existing and potential liability against all named defendants in the Delaware Action, in exchange
for Zhou Min Ni, a former Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and Chan Sin Wong, a former President and Chief
Operating Officer of the Company, making a payment to the Company in the sum of $ +66-9 . 6-25 million asset-(the “ Settlement
Amount ”). The full terms of the settlement of the Delaware Action were incorporated into the long - seeured-revelvingereditfaeility-with
aform settlement agreement, which was subject to approval of the Court of Chancery (as amended on November | —menth-SOFRplasa
ereditadjustmentof0-, 2023, the “ Settlement Agreement ”’) . On September 8, 2023, the Court of Chancery approved the proposed
settlement and an application by Bishop’ s counsel for an award of attorneys’ fees and expenses. On October 16, 2023, after approval of
the settlement had become final, the Ni Defendants paid the Company $ | %phis-. S million of the Settlement Amount. On December | -
375 % perannurm-, 2023, the Company received 1, 997, 423 shares of the Company’ s common stock as weH-consideration for the
remaining $ 7. 75 million balance due under the Settlement Agreement. All of the shares of Company common stock received as an
inerease-consideration for the Settlement have been placed by the Company in treasury Please refer to Part L. ﬁtrﬁmeﬁgage—-seetrred—teﬂﬁ
- Item 3 -}o&n—frem—$-€r9— Legal Proceedmgs 6-m ; ;
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chml on Form 10- K and Note 16- Commltments and Contlngencles to —Gﬂﬂ*pfx-l—}%%%—w&eemp-}eted—lhc -Sea-l-aﬂd—Aequ-ts-rt—m
consohdated financlal statements hereln t01 addltlonal mformatlon eash—eenﬂder&&eﬂ-ef—ﬂ%%@—

Management believes we have sumucm funds to mcct our w ()F](Iﬂ" capital |cqulrcmcnts and debt
oblwatlons in thc next tw cl\e months. HO\\ ever, thcle are a numbel ot tactms that could potentmllv ar 1se w hich might 1esult in shom‘ alls in

ef—@9¥l-9-—1-9—c0mpcmnc pncm0 in the foodservice dlsmbullon industry, and our bank and suppllcrs being ahlc to provide conlmucd suppml
If the future cash flow from operations and other capital resources is insufficient to fund our liquidity needs, we may have to resort to reducing
or delaying our expected acquisition plans, liquidating assets, obtaining additional debt or equity capital, or refinancing all or a portion of our
debt. As of December 31, 2622-2023 , we have no off balance sheet arrangements that currently have or are reasonably likely to have a material
effect on our consolidated financial position, changes in financial condition, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital
resources. The following table summarizes cash flow data for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 and2624-: Years Ended December
31, €hange-(In thousands) 20232022ChangeNet%Q2%%92—hArmeuﬂt4%—Net—cash provided by operating activities $ 15, 804 $ 31, 284 $ +7+(15,
480) 569513775787 % Net cash used in investing activities ( 1, 514) (50, 786) 49 ¢, 272 68297042369 Net cash (used in)
provided by financing aetivittes28—- activities (23, 347) 28 , 999 28-(52 , 346) 784-245-0—7F%Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash
equivalents $ (9, 057) $ 9, 497 $ 5-(18 , 554) 2H-$4 286 NM————  F  NM-—Netmeaningfal-Operating Activities Net cash
provided by operating activities consists primarily of net income adjusted for non- cash items, including depreciation and amortization, changes
in deferred income taxes and others, and includes the effect of working capital changes. Net cash provided by operating activities tnereased
decreased by $ 43-15 . 85 million, or 49 #8-F%, p1 imarily due to }ewefthe tlmlng of working capital requirementst-outlays. During the
year ended December 31, 2622-2023 as-, we implemented new enterprise accounting and
finance apphcatlons, whlch modlﬁed our accounts recelvable, accounts payable and treasury processes. As a direet-result of highersales

3 3 this transformation, we significantly paid down our
accounts payable, whlch negatlvely 1mpacted our net cash prov1ded by operating activities . Investing Activ mcs th cash used in 1m esting
activitics inereased-decreased by $ 9-49 . 7-3 million, or 97 23—6-%, primarily due to payments

$—1—7,—4—m—rH-teﬂ-pa*d—feﬁt1=}e—m¥eﬂ+er—aequed—1 elared to t-he—G-re&t—Wa-l-lAeqeﬂsrt—ren—acqulsltlons in the year ended December 31 7022

pa FHento 1011" term debt
fel-afed—for the year ended December 31, 2023 In addltlon, checks issued not presented for payment decreased s1gmﬁcantly for the year
ended December 31, 2023 compared to the year ended December 31, 2022 due to the reduction in checks issued as a result svarehetise
sa-l-e—eemp&fed—te—t-he—net—mrpaet—ot $—39—9—mrl-heﬂ—eﬂ—oul new enterprise accounting and finance applications line-ofereditfromnetproeeeds
- . Critical Accounting Estimates The discussion and analysis of our financial
u)ndltlon and results of operations are based upon our financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with GAAP. These
principles require management to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, sales-revenues and
expenses, cash flow and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. The estimates include, but are not limited to, aeeeuntsreeetrvable
inventory reserves , impairment of long- lived assets , impairment of goodwill, and ineeme-taxes-the purchase price allocation and fair
value of assets and liabilities acquired with respect to business combinations . We base our estimates on historical experience and various
other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates. To the extent that
there are material differences between these estimates and the actual results, future financial statements will be affected. We believe that among
our significant accounting policies, which are described in Note 2- Summary of Significant Accounting Policies to the consolidated financial
statements in this Annual Report on Form 10- K, the following accounting policies involve a greater degree of judgment and complexity.
Accordingly, we believe these are the most critical to fully understand and evaluate our financial condition and results of operations. Business
Combinations We account for our business combinations using the purchase method of accounting in accordance with ASC Topic 805 (*“ ASC
805 ), Business Combinations. The purchase method of accounting requires that the consideration transferred be allocated to the assets,
including separately identifiable assets and liabilities we acquired, based on their estimated fair values. The consideration transferred in an
acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the fair values at the date of exchange of the assets given, liabilities incurred, and equity instruments
issued as well as the contingent considerations and all contractual contingencies as of the acquisition date. Identifiable assets, liabilities and



contingent liabilities acquired or assumed are measured separately at their fair value as of the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any
noncontrolling interests. The excess of (i) the total of cost of acquisition, fair value of the noncontrolling interests and acquisition date fair value
of any previously held equity interest in the acquiree over, (ii) the fair value of the identifiable net assets of the acquiree, is recorded as
goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognized directly in
earnings. We estimate the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination. While we use our best estimates and
assumptions to accurately value assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date, its estimates are inherently uncertain and subject
to refinement. Significant estimates in valuing certain intangible assets include, but are not limited to future expected revenues and cash flows,
useful lives, discount rates, and selection of comparable companies. Although we believe the assumptions and estimates we have made in the
past have been reasonable and appropriate, they are based in part on historical experience and information obtained from management of the
acquired companies and are inherently uncertain. During the measurement period, which may be up to one year from the acquisition date, we
may record adjustments to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed with the corresponding offset to goodwill. On the conclusion of the
measurement period or final determination of the values of assets acquired or liabilities assumed, whichever comes first, any subsequent
adjustments are recorded to our consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss). Goodwill Geedwill represents the
excess of the purchase price over the fair value of net assets acquired in a business combination. We test goodwill for impairment at least
annually, as of December 31, or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate th'it goodw1ll mlght be 1mpa1red We have concluded we
are one aggregated—ruportmg unit for purposes of testing goodwill for impairment du 3 o ¢
. We review the carrying value of goodwill whenever events or changes in circumstances mdlcate that such
carrying values may not be recoverable and annually for goodwill and-indefintte-tived-intangible-assets-as required by ASC Topic 350,
Intangibles — Goodwill and Other. Factors that may be considered a change in circumstances, indicating that the carrying value of our goodwill
eﬂﬂdeﬁn-tte—l-ived-imaﬂgib-}e—asﬁets—nny not be recoverable, include a sustained decline in stock price and market capitalization, reduced future
cash flow estimates and slower growth rates in our industry. This guidance provides the option to first assess qualitative factors to determine
whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying value. If, based on a review of qualitative factors,
it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying value, we perform a quantitative analysis. If the
quantitative analysis indicates the carrying value of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value, we measure any goodwill impairment losses as the
amount by which the carrying amount of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value, not to exceed the total amount of goodwill allocated to that
reporting unit. As a result of our 2023 financial performance in comparison to previous forecasts, combined with our level of stock price,
we performed a quantitative impairment assessment. A quantitative goodwill impairment analysis requires valuation of the respective
reporting unit, which requires complex analysis and judgment. We use a combination of discounted cash flow (‘“ DCF ) medels—- model and
market data-approaches , such as public company earnings—based-multiplesforcomparable eempantes-analysis and comparable
acquisitions analysis to determine fair value . BEF-medels-The income approach and market approaches were weighted equally to
estimate fair value. The income approach reguire-requires detailed forecasts of cash flows, including significant assumptions such as
revenue growth rates, gross profit margin rates-, and and- an eapita-nvestments;and-estimates— estimate of weighted- average cost of capital
which we believe appreximates— approximate the rate-assumptions from a market participant’ s perspective . The market approaches are
primarily impacted by an enterprise value multiple of EBITDA . These estimates incorporate many uncertain factors which could be
impacted by changes in market conditions, interest rates, growth rate, tax rates, costs, customer behavior, regulatory environment and other
macroeconomic changes. We categorize the fair value determination as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy due to its use of internal projections
and unobsewable measurement mputs -Feﬁ-he—yea-feﬂéed—The results of testmg as of December 31, %92—2—2023 —we-eenstdefed—t-he—deehﬁe—ef

5 Lonnluded that the estlmdted fair leue exteeded carrying value, dnd no 1mpd1rment
ex1sted as of that date. In addition, we corroborated the reasonableness of the total fair value of the reporting unit by assessing the implied
control premium based on our market capitalization. Our market capitalization is calculated using the number of common shares eutstanding
issued and common stock publicly traded price. We also consider the amount of headroom for the reporting unit when determining whether an
impairment existed. Headroom is the difference between the fair value of a reporting unit and its carrying value. The fair value of the
reporting unit exceeded the reporting unit carrying value by approximately $ 10 %, or $ 45. 0 million. No goodwill impairment was
recorded for the year ended December 31, 20242023 . See Note 9-8 - Goodwill and Acquired Intangible Assets to the consolidated financial
statements in this Annual Report on Form 10- K for additional information. Assumptions used in impairment testing are made at a point in
time and require significant judgment; therefore, they are subject to change based on the facts and circumstances present at each
impairment test date. Additionally, these assumptions are generally interdependent and do not change in isolation. We performed
sensitivity analyses on the key inputs and assumptions used in determining the estimated fair value of our reporting unit by utilizing
changes in assumptions that would reasonably likely occur. Assuming all other assumptions and inputs used in the fair value analysis
are held constant, a 100 basis point increase in the discount rate assumption, a 1x decrease in the respective EBITDA multiple
assumptions, a 25 basis point decrease in the gross profit margin assumption, and a 50 basis point decrease in the long- term revenue
growth rate assumption would result in a decrease in the fair value of our reporting unit of approximately $ 14. 8 million, $ 36. 9
million, $ 8. 4 million, and $ 22. 6 million, respectively. These estimated changes in fair value are not necessarily representative of the
actual impairment that would be recorded in the event of a fair value decline. [f, in future periods, the financial performance of the
reporting unit does not meet forecasted expectations, or a prolonged decline occurs in the market price of our common stock, it may cause a
change in the results of the impairment assessment and, as such, could result in an impairment of goodwill. Impairment of Long- lived Assets
We assess our long- lived assets such as property and equipment and intangible assets subject to amortization for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount of an asset or asset group may not be recoverable. Factors which may indicate
potential impairment include a significant underperformance related to the historical or projected future operating results or a significant
negative industry or economic trend. Recoverability of these assets is measured by comparison of their carrying amounts to future undiscounted
cash flows which the assets or asset groups are expected to generate. If property and equipment and intangible assets are considered to be
1mpdned the impairment to be recognized equals the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds their fair value. We impaired

machinery used in the operations within HF Foods Industrial, Inc. and recognized impairment expense
of $ 6-1 . 42 million in distribution, selling and administrative expenses in the consolidated statements of operations during the year ended
December 31,2022-2023 . We didnotreeerd-any-impaired our acquired developed technology attributable to Syncglobal, Inc. and
recognized impairment loss-orrourtong—tived-assets-expense of $ 0. 4 million in distribution, selling and administrative expenses in the
consolidated statements of operations during the year ended December 31, 20242022 . Recent Accounting Pronouncements For a discussion



of recent accounting pronouncements, see Note 2- Summary of Significant Accounting Policies to the consolidated financial statements in this
Annual Report on Form 10- K. ITEM 7A. QUANFHFATNVEAND-QUAHTATHVEDISCEOSURES ABOUTF-MARKET RISK-Quantitative
and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk . [nterest Rate Risk Our debt exposes us to risk of fluctuations in interest rates. Floating rate
debt, where the interest rate fluctuates periodically, exposes us to short- term changes in market interest rates. Fixed rate debt, where the interest
rate is fixed over the life of the instrument, exposes us to changes in market interest rates reflected in the fair value of the debt and to the risk
that we may need to refinance maturing debt with new debt at higher rates. We manage our debt portfolio to achieve an overall desired
proportion of fixed and floating rate debts and may employ interest rate swaps as a tool from time to time to achieve that position. To manage
our interest rate risk exposure, we entered into three-four interest rate swap contracts to hedge the floating rate term loans. See Note +8-9 -
Derivative Financial Instruments to the consolidated financial statements in this Annual Report on Form 10- K for additional information. As of
December 31, 2022-2023 , our aggregate floating rate debt’ s outstanding principal balance without hedging was $ +64-60 . 8 million, or 94-35 .
+2 % of total debt, consisting primarily of our feng—termdebt-and-revolving line of credit (see Note H-10 - Debt to the consolidated financial
statements in this Annual Report on Form 10- K). Our floating rate debt interest is based on the floating 1- month SOFR plus a predetermined
credit adjustment rate plus the bank spread. The remaining 5-64 . 9-8 % of our debt are-is on a fixed rate or a floating rate with hedging. In a
hypothetical scenario, a 1 % change in the applicable rate would cause the interest expense on our floating rate debt to change by approximately
$4-0 . 6 million per year. Fuel Price Risk We are also exposed to risks relating to fluctuations sislein the price and availability of diesel fuel.
We require significant quantities of diesel fuel for our vehicle fleet, and the inbound delivery of the products we sell is also dependent upon
shipment by diesel- fueled vehicles. Additionally, elevated fuel costs can negatively impact consumer confidence and discretionary
spending and thus reduce the frequency and amount spent by consumers for food- away- from- home purchases. We currently are able to
obtain adequate supplies of diesel fuel, and average prices in 2622-2023 inereased-decreased in comparison 52—1-%;-eempared-to average
prices in 2624-2022 , decreasing 15. 5 % on average . However, it is impossible to predict the future availability or price of diesel fuel. The
price and supply of diesel fuel fluctuates based on external factors not within our control, including geopolitical developments, supply and
demand for oil and gas, regional production patterns, weather conditions and environmental concerns. Increases in the cost of diesel fuel could
increase our cost of goods sold and operating costs to deliver products to our customers. We do not actively hedge the price fluctuation of diesel
fuel in general. Instead, we seek to minimize fuel cost risk through delivery route optimization and fleet utilization improvement. ITEM 8.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA —HF Foods Group Inc. and Subsidiaries Consolidated Financial Statements
Index to Consolidated Financial Statements PageReport of Independent Registered Public /\ccountmgD Flrm Year Endcd Dccunbcr 31 2022
2023 aﬂd%@%—l—(BDO USA -H:P—P C.; Troy, Mrchrgcm PCAOB ID # 243) stered & ea

StatementSComolldated Balance Sheet§41C0n§011dated Statementq of Operations and Comprehensrve Income (Loss) 42Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows43Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity45Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements46
Shareholders and Board of Directors Opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements We have audited the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets of HF Foods Group Inc. (the “ Company ) as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 and-2021-, the related consolidated statements of
operations and comprehensive income (loss), changes in shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the the-three ycars in then— the
period ended December 31, 2023 , and the related notes (collectively referred to as the *“ consolidated financial statements ™). In our opinion,
the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company at December 31, 2023 and
2022 and2024-, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the the-three twe-ycars in then— the period ended December
31, 2023 , in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We also have audited, in accordance
with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (“ PCAOB ”), the Company' s internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2822-2023 , based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by
the Committee of Sponsormg Organizations ofthc Trcadway Commlsslon (“COSO ™) and our rt,port datcd March 3—1—26 29%3—2024
expressed an ddverse oplnron thereon —Resta 3 6

fa-keﬁ—as—a—whe-}e- Basls for Opmlon These consollddted hndnual 5tatement5 are the responsrbrllty of the Company’ s mdndgement Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’ s consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting
firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U. S. federal securities
laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB. We conducted our audits in
accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included performing
procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing
procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion. Critical Audit Matter-Matters The critical audit matter-matters communicated below are is-a-matter-matters
arising from the current period audit of the consolidated financial statements that svas-were communicated or required to be communicated to
the audit committee and that: (1) relates to accounts or disclosures that are material to the consolidated financial statements and (2) involved our
especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on
the consolidated financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matter-matters below, providing
separate opinions on the critical audit matter-matters or on the accounts or disclosures to which #-they relates— relate . Consolidated Financial
Statements- Impact of Control Environment and Information Technology General Controls As disclosed in management’ s report on internal
control over financial reporting, the Company identified material weaknesses as of December 31, 2023. These material weaknesses
included ineffective information technology general controls (ITGCs), and ineffective controls over certain non- routine transactions,
significant management estimates, and financial reporting. The completeness and accuracy of the consolidated financial statements,
including the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows, is dependent on, in part, the Company’ s ability to (i) design and
maintain an effective control environment, including maintaining a sufficient eemplement-number of qualified resources svith-to support an
and appropriatetevel-provide proper oversight and accountability over the performance of controls knewledge-and-expertise
commensurate-with-finanetalreporting requirements-, (i1) design and maintain effective ITGCs information-technology-general-eontrots-for

certain information systems relevant to the preparation of the financial statements, inetading-user-aeeess-and (iii) design and maintain
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general-eontrofs-resulted in several material weaknesses. Designing the appropriate procedures and evaluating audit evidence to ensure the

u)mplgtmus and accuracy of the consolidated financial statements, including higher risk areas, with an ineffective control environment ane
matien o eentrels-, required especially challenging and subjective auditor judgment due to the increased

extent of dlell effort including the need to modlfy the nature and extent of audlt ev1dence obtamed The primary ploudmu we per 101 med

to address this critical audit matter included: « Performing incremental We-a g § :

extentofprocedures to-be-performed-over material financial statement accounts &ﬁd—eﬁse}ﬁﬁrres—rﬂe}tﬁhﬂg—higher—ﬁslﬁﬁeas-suuh as revenue

~and receivables by i) increasing inventery;-andjournal-entries—We-inereased-thc sample sizes number-ofseleetions-to perform certain
audit procedures and Jewered-ii) lowering the testing thresholds and for investigating-differenees-journal entries by expanding the types of

entries to be tested. - We-utilized-Evaluating the impact of improper segregation of duties and designing incremental procedures over
disbursements. * Manually testing the completeness and accuracy of information provided by the Company and increasing the extent of
our testing for items to be selected and agreed to source documents . Goodwill Impairment — Valuation of Reporting Unit As disclosed in
Notes 2 and 8 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company’ s consolidated goodwill balance was $ 85. 1 million as of December
31, 2023. There is only one reporting unit at December 31, 2023. Goodwill is tested for impairment at the reporting unit level at least
annually, or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that goodwill might be impaired. In the valuation of goodwill,
management must make assumptions regarding estimated future cash flows to be derived from the Company’ s business. A change in
underlying assumptions could cause a change in the results of the impairment test and, as such, could cause fair value to be less than the
carrying amount and result in an impairment of goodwill in the future. In connection with the annual impairment test completed as of
December 31, 2023 using the quantitative goodwill impairment assessment, the Company determined the fair value of the reporting
unit, using an average of the income approach, specifically, the discounted cash flow method, and market approaches, specifically, the
comparable public company analysis and comparable acquisition analysis methods. The income approach uses a discounted cash flow
model that reflects management significant assumptions that mainly related to revenue growth rates, gross profit margins and a
discount rate. The comparable public company and comparable acquisition analysis methods apply a market multiple assumption to
the Company’ s EBITDA to calculate fair value. The fair value of the Company’ s reporting unit exceeded the carrying value, and
therefore the Company concluded no impairment was required to be recorded during the year ended December 31, 2023. We identified
certain assumptions used in the valuation of goodwill for the reporting unit as a critical audit matter. Management’ s determination of
the fair value of the reporting unit required the use of significant judgment due to the subjectivity and uncertainty of the revenue
growth rates, gross profit margins and discount rate assumptions used in the income approach, and the EBITDA multiple assumption
used in the comparable public company analysis and comparable acquisition analysis approaches. Auditing these elements involved
especially challenging and subjective auditor judgment due to the nature and extent of audit effort required to address these matters ,
including third-party-suppert-the extent of specialized skill for-— or knowledge needed. audit-evideneeratherthanrelyingon-systemreperts;
and—~ Evaluating We-evaluated-thc reasonableness everall-suffieteney-of audit-the forecasted revenue and gross profit margins by: 1)
evaluating the consistency of the revenue growth rates and gross profit margins with historical results, ii) evaluating the consistency of
the revenue growth rates and gross profit margins with the Company’ s objectives and strategies, and iii) comparing the forecasted
revenue growth rates and gross profit margins with external market data and cvidence obtained in based-on-the-other proeedures
performed-areas of the audit. « Utilizing personnel with specialized knowledge and skill with valuation to assist in assessing the
reasonableness of the discount rate incorporated in the income approach and the EBITDA multiples incorporated in the comparable
company analysis and comparable acquisition analys1s approaches S BD() US: \ HP-P. C. We ]m\ e serv ul as lhg C ompan\ S Audllol
since 7( )21. Mdl d1 3126 , 2-92—3—2024 R A p h

SHBSI-BH&&E—S—GGN—S@J:HBA:PEB—&*%NGE—SHEE:PS—(M lhouxands u\u.pl shau dala) Dcumbu 31, %Q%Beeember—2023December 31,
202HASSEFSCHRRENT-2022ASSETSCURRENT ASSETS: Cash § 15,232 $ 24, 289 $344;-792-Accounts receivable, aetd4—- net of
allowances of $ 2, 119 and $ 1, 44247, 524 44 , 186 36;28+Accounts receivable- related parttes243—- parties308 249-213 fnventoriest26-
Inventories105, 618 120 , 291 +062,-690-Prepaid expenses and other current assets8-assets10 , 145 8 , 937 5;559-TOTAL CURRENT
ASSEFSHO7- ASSETS178 , 827 197 , 916 +59-5H-Property and equipment, rett46-net133, 136 140 , 330 +45;-908-Operating lease right- of-
use assetst4-assets12 , 714 14 , 164 H5664-1.ong- term investments2, 388 2, 679 2;462-Customer relationships, ret-57net147 , 181 157 , 748
+59+6+Trademarks , trade names and other intangibles, ret36-net30 , 625 36 , 343 35;-89+Goodwill85, 118 86-85 , 257118 Other long-
term assets3-assets6 , 531 3 , 231 2;-032-TOTAL ASSETS $ 596,520 $ 637, 529 $596;946-.IABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS'



EQUITYCURRENT LIABILITIES: Checks issued not presented for payment $ 4,494 $ 21, 946 $+7-834-Line of eredit53-credit58 , 564 53
056 Accounts payableS1, 617 55, 293-AeeountspayableS5-515 57-F45-Accounts payable- related partiest-parties397 1 . 529 :5944+-Current
portion of long- term debt, neté-net5 , 450 6 , 266 5;-557FCurrent portion of obligations under finance feases2-leasesl , 749 2 | 254 2,274
Current portion of obligations under operating leases3, 706 3, 676 2;482-Accrued expenses and other Habtitiest9-liabilities17 , 287 19 , 648
12138 TOTAL CURRENT -I:I-PrB-I-I:I—T—I-E—S—l—éS—LIABILITIES143 264 163 , 89() +55;264-Long- term debt, net of current pertents
portion108 , 711 115 , 443 § OMISSOry 78 ed y Dbligations under finance leases, non- currentl 1, 229 11,
441 H5-67+6-Obligations under operating stcs non- eﬁﬁeﬂt—l-@-currentS’ 414 10 591 9;25+-Deferred tax Habitities34-liabilities29 , 028 34 .
443 Other long- term 39-455+ease-guarantee-tabitity-liabilities6 , 891 5 ﬂet—ef—eaﬁeﬁt—pemeﬂé—, 472 —TOTAL -I:IABH:I—"H—E—S%‘I-—I-
LIABILITIES308 , 537 341 , 280 36+;957COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES ( NOFE++Note 16 ) SHAREHOLDERS” EQUITY:

Series A Participating Preferred Stock, par value $ 0. 8604 001; 100 par-velue;45-000-, 000 shares authorized, no shares issued and
outstanding as-efPeeember3+— — Preferred Stock , 2022-$ 0. 001 par value; 1, 000, 000 shares authorized; no shares issued and 2624
outstanding — — Common Stock, $ 0. 0001 par value 55 100, 000, 000 shares authorized 5 54 , 153,391 and 53, 813, 777 shares issued and

52, 155, 968 and 53, 813, 777 shares outstanding as of December 31, 2622-2023 and 5—3—796—392—shafe3133tred-&ﬁd—eﬁstaﬂdmg—as-e€
December 31, 262452022, respectively 5 S Treasury stock, at cost; 1, 997, 423 shares as of December 31, 2023, and zero shares as of
December 31 2022 (7, 750) — Additional paid- in eapital598-capital603, 094 598 , 322 597, 227-Accumulated deficit ( 308, 688) (306, 514
306;284-) TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS” EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO HF FOODS GROUP INC. 286, 661 291, 813 296,948
Noncontrolling aterests4-interests1 , 322 4 . 436 4,044-TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS” EQUFY296-EQUITY287 , 983 296 . 249 294,989
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY $ 596, 520 $ 637, 529 $-596;,946-The accompanying notes are an integral part of
these consolidated financial statements. 41 CONSOHDATED-STATEMENTS-OF-ORERATHONS-AND-COMPREHENSIVEINCOME
H£OSS)In thousands, except share and per share data) Year Ended December 3 1, 202220242020Net+202320222021Net revenue- third parties
$ 1,142,648 $1, 163, 525 § 787, 829 $-553;-524-Net revenue- related partiesé-partiesS , 845 6 , 942 9, 055 43;368-TOTAL NET
REVENUEL, 148,493 1, 170, 467 796, 884 566;832-Cost of revenue- third parties958-parties938 , 815 958 , 775 636, 253 453;346-Cost of
revenue- related partiesé-partiesS , 647 6 , 180 9, 119 42;-739-TOTAL COST OF REVENUES64—- REVENUEY44 , 462 964 . 955 645, 372
466;-685-GROSS PROFTF265-PROFIT204, 031 205 , 512 151, 512 4064+ Distribution, selling and administrative expensest94
expenses195 , 062 194 . 953 122, 030 +96—35§—Gee&wﬂ-l—m-pawme&Hess—3—3—8—l—9—l—lN( OME =6SS>FROM OPERAHONSHO
OPERATIONSS , 969 10 , 559 29, 482 343;-799)-Otherexpenses-fineome)-Interest expense7-expensell , 478 7 , 457 4, 091 4:324+-Other
income (1, 091) (1, 829) (508 H096-) Change in fair value of interest rate swap eentraets-contractsl , 580 (817) (1, 425) 926-[ ease guarantee
(mcome) e*peﬁseS— expense (377) 5, 744 — (LOSS) —”Feta-l—@fheﬁexpenses—ﬂet—l-@%éé—z—lé-SHS—INCOMh HEOSS-BEFORE
INCOME FAX-TAXES P-RG¥I—S-I-QN4—(2 621) 4 27, 324 347944)-Income tax expense (benefit) proviston4l (231) 4, 503 (4725 NET
(LOSS) INCOME EOSS-AND COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INCOME (E068S-2, 662 ) 235 22, 821 343; 24931 ess: net (loss) income
attributable to noncontrolling interests ( 488) (225) 676 203-NET (LOSS) INCOME EOSS-AND COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INCOME
EOSSIATTRIBUTABLE TO HF FOODS GROUP INC. § (2,174) $ 460 $ 22, 145 $«( LOSS 343;:-542-) EARNINGS E0SSy-PER
COMMON SHARE- BASIC $ (0. 04) $ 0. 01 $ 0. 43 $-( LOSS 6-59-) EARNINGS @=0SS}-PER COMMON SHARE- DILUTED § (0. 04) $ 0.
01$0. 43 $6-59-WEIGHTED AVERAGE SHARES- BASICS53, 878, 237 53, 757, 162 51, 918, 323 52,-095;-585-WEIGHTED AVERAGE
SHARES- DILUTEDS3, 878, 237 53, 863, 448 52, 091, 822 52;-095:585-The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements. 42 HF FOODS-GROUPINE-Foods Group Inc . AND-SUBSIDIARIESCONSOHDATED-STATEMENTS-OF-CASH
FEOWS-and SubsidiariesConsolidated Statements of Cash Flows (In thousands) Year Ended December 3 1, 202220242026Cash—---
202320222021Cash flows from operating activities: Net (loss) income $ (1ess-2, 662 ) $ 235 § 22, 821 $-343;:249-Adjustments to reconcile
net (loss) income Hess)-to net cash provided by operating activities: Depreciation and amortization expense24-expense25 , 918 24 , 936 19, 126
48-Treasury stock received via legal settlement (7 . 750) 923-Goodwillimpatrmenttoss- 338-Asset impairment chargesl1 . 494200 422
— Gain from disposal of property and equipment ( 362) (1, 327) (1, 636 3H3448-) Provision for credit tosses&82-losses701 82 (433) 1564
Deferred tax benefit (5, 415) (5, 012) (6, 870 H59+6-) Chdnge in fair value of interest rate swap eentraets$+7—- contractsl, 580 817 (1, 425)
920-Stock- based eempensatient-compensation3 , 352 1, 257 635 —Non- cash lease expense4, 033 4, 442 861 533~ case guarantee expenses
- expense (377) 5, 744 Other non- cash expense (mcomt,) 456-493 (266) (85 H8+) Changes in operating assets and liabilities (excluding
effects of acquisitions): Accounts receivable (4,039) (8, 577) (10, 999) 23;--54FAccounts receivable- related parties36—- parties (95) 36 1, 020
2-964-Inventories-Inventories14 , 673 (3, 755) (19, 426) +8;99FAdvances to suppliers- related parties — — 197 $48-Prepaid expenses and
other current assets (1, 069) (4, 008) (944 3264-) Other long- term assets ( 3, 418) (1, 199) (1, 337) €298)-Accounts payablet5—- payable (3,
898) 15, 207 12, 978 5882 Accounts payable- related parties ( 1, 132) (412) (365 )—(—2—2—16—) Operating lease liabilities ( 3, 730) (4, 408)
(724 34563-) Accrued expenses and other Habilities? liabilities (2, 199) 7,070 4, 115 3:994-Net cash provided by operating aetivities34—

activities15, 804 31 . 284 17, 509 45:693-Cash flows from investing activities: Purchase of property and equipment ( 3, 514) ( 6, 287) (2, 2053
664) Ploceeds from sale of property and equipment7equipment2 , 000 7 , 794 3, 246 257-Payment made for acquisition of Sealand -B—&—R

—94,-004) Payment-made-for-aequisition-of Sealand-(34, 848) Payment made for acquisition of Great Wall Group — (17,
445) (37, 841) —Payment made for acquisition of noncontrolling interests — — (5, 000) —Settlement of interest rate swap contracts — —
718 —Net cash used in investing activities ( 1, 514) ( 50, 786) (41, 082) Cash flows from financing activities: Payments for tax withholding
related to vested stock awards ( 94-394 ) — — Checks issued not presented for payment (17 , 452) 4, 112 2, 994 Proceeds from line of
creditl, 237, 101 1, 200, 996 857, 304 Repayment of line of credit (1, 231, 647) (1, 203, 112) (820, 422) Proceeds from long- term debt —
45, 956 — Repayment of long- term debt (7, 591) (4H— 11, 336 ) H5336)(6,599 H6;590-) Payment of debt financing costs — (544) —
Repayment of obligations under finance leases (2, 480) (2, 626) (2,135 335846-) Repayment of promissory note payable- related party —
(4,500) (2,500) —Proceeds from noncontrolling interests sharehotders240---- shareholders — 240 480 —Cash distribution to shareholders
(884) (187) (338) F#5)-Net cash (used in) provided by financing aetivities28--- activities (23,347) 28 ,999 28,784 4376+ Nect inerease
(decrease) increase in eash9-- cash (9,057) 9 ,497 5,211 ¢4;95H-Cash at beginning of the yeart4-period24,289 14 ,792 9,581 +4;538-Cash at
end of the sear-period $ 15,232 § 24,289 § 14,792 $9;58+-The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements. 43 Year Ended December 31, 202320222021Supplemental 202220212020Cash flows from financing activities: Checks......, 792 §
9, 581 Supplemental disclosure of cash flow data: Cash paid for interest $ 10,407 $ 6, 230 $ 3, 177 $4;423-Cash paid for income taxes®
taxes4 , 040 8 , 655 9, 527 884-Supplemental disclosure of non- cash investing and financing activities: Right- of- use assets obtained in
exchange for operating lease liabilities $ 2,583 $ 6, 815 § 10, 983 $339-Property acquired ¥ia—&-in exchange for finance feaset-leasesl , 763 1
, 272 8, 947 +Treasury stock received via legal settlement7 , 375-750 — — Acquisition of noncontrolling interests1, 652 — — Netes—
Note payable-receivable rclated to property and equipment purehases-sales300 — 257 2,-528-Intangible asset acquired in exchange for
noncontrolling interests566---- interests — 566 — Common stock 155ued for Lonmderdtlon of quLllblTlon of Gredt Wdll Group ——14,541 —
Deferred consideration from Great Wall Acquisition — — 17, 330 ssHanee—-o AEEH 6 ealt




Subsidiaries——7-000-The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 44 CONSOHBATED
STATEMENTS-OF-CHANGES IN-SHAREHOEDERS-HF Foods Group Inc. and SubsidiariesConsolidated Statements of Changes in
Shareholders ' EQUTY-Equity (In thousands, except share data) Common StockTreasury StockAdditionalPaid- in€apttalRetainedEarnings
———————— inCapitalRetained Earnings (Accumulated Deficit) Total FotalSharehotders—---- Shareholders * Equity EquityAttributable—-----
Attributable toHF FeedsGreup-Foods Group Inc. NoncontrollingInterestsTotalSharcholders” EquitySharesAmountSharesAmountBalance at
December 31, %9-1-953—202051 959—913 241155 —€99§—H59—$ —(—l%—@%%)—% 599—587 6-1—7—579 S -15—(328 983—429) $ 692—259 667
155@4 %49—367"5 666

4—36-7—763 522 NL[ income — — —— 22,145 22, 145 676 22, 821 Acqumllon of nonwmrollm0 mlclcst ————(3,856) — (3, 856) (1,
144) (5, 000) Acquisition of Great Wall Group by issuance of common stock1, 792, 981 12,869 — 12, 869 12, 869 Capital
contribution by shareholders 480 480 Distribution to sharcholders (338) (338) Stock- based
compensation — — — — 635 — 635 — 635 Balance at December 31, 202153, 706,392 $5 —8$ — $ 597, 227 $ (306, 284) $ 290, 948 $ 4,
041 $ 294, 989 Cumulative effect of adoption of CECL (ASU 2016- 13) — — — — — (690) (690) — (690) Balance at January 1, 202253,
706,392 85 ——8597,227 $ (306, 974) $ 290, 258 $ 4, 041 $ 294, 299 Net income (loss) — — — — — 460 460 (225) 235 Capital
contribution by shareholders 806 806 Issuance of common stock pursuant to equity compensation plan139, 239

Shares withheld for tax withholdings on vested awards (31, 854) (162) — (162) — (162) Distribution to shareholders
——————— (186) (186) Stock- based compensation — — — — 1,257 — 1, 257 — 1, 257 Balance at December 31, 202253, 813,
77785 —8$—8598,322 §(306,514) § 291, 813 § 4,436 § 296, 249 Net income (loss) —— — — — (2,174) (2,174) (488) (2, 662)
Issuance of common stock pursuant to equity compensation plan391,983 —— — — — — — — Shares withheld for tax withholdings
on vested awards (52, 369) — — — (232) — (232) — (232) Treasury stock received via legal settlement — — 1, 997, 423 (7, 750) — —
(7, 750) — (7, 750) Distribution to shareholders —— — — — — — (884) (884) Dissolution of noncontrolling interests —— — — 1,
652 — 1, 652 (1, 742) (90) Stock- based compensation — — — — 3, 352 — 3, 352 — 3, 352 Balance at December 31, 202354, 153, 391 $§
51,997,423 $ (7,750) $ 603, 094 $ (308, 688) $ 286, 661 $ 1, 322 § 287, 983 The accompanying notes are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements. 45 NOFESFO-CONSOHDATED-FINANCIAL-STATEMENTS-Note |- Organization and Description of
Business Organization and General HF Foods Group Inc. and subsidiaries (collectively “ HF Greup-Foods ”, or the “ Company ) is an Asian
foodservice distributor that markets and distributes fresh produce, seafood, frozen and dry food, and non- food products to primarily Asian
restaurants and other foodservice customers throughout the United States. The Company' s business consists of one operating segment, which is
also its one reportable segment: HF Greup-Foods , which operates solely in the United States. The Company' s customer base consists primarily
of Chinese and Asian restaurants, and it provides sales and service support to customers who mainly converse in Mandarin or Chinese dialects.

$—1—9—1—3—m1-1-heﬂ—0n Decembel 30, 2021, the C ompdnv u)mpleted the acqmsmon of (neat Wall Qedfood gupply Inc. Gleat Wall Restamdnt
Supplier, Inc., and First Mart Inc. (collectively the “ Great Wall Group ), and substantially all of the operating assets ol the Great Wall Group’
s seafood and restaurant plodun,ls sales, marketing, and distribution businesses (the “ Great Wall Acquisition ). The acquisition was completed
as part of the Company’ s strategy to develop a national footprint through expansion into the Midwest, Southwest and Southern regions of the
United States. On April 29 2022, the Company completed the acquisition of substantially all of the operating assets of Sealand Food, Inc. ("
Sealand") including equipment, machinery and vehicles. The acquisition was completed to expand the Company' s territory along the East
Coast, from Massachusetts to Florida, as well as Pennsylvania, West Virginia, Ohio, Kentucky, and Tumusu, See Note 8—7 Acqulsmons for
addmonal mformatlon on feeeﬁt—the Great Wall Group and Sealand %qulslllons : 5 38 3 Q




455%—4—36—7%—263%—2—2—&151% of Presentation and leuples of Consolidation The duompdnvnw u)nsollddted hnancml statements have been
prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America (“ GAAP ). All adjustments
(consisting of normal recurring accruals) considered necessary for a fair presentation have been included . The accompanying
consolidated financial statements for 2023 include the accounts finanetal-statements-of HI' Greup-Foods , itssubstdiartes-and for 2022 FHSO
Frueking HEE-FUSOY-and the-Staffing-Agenetes(through-Deeember3+-2021 ¥, the accounts of HF Foods and certain variable interest
entities for which the Company was the primary beneficiary has-determined-to-be-V1Es-thatrequireseonselidation. All significant
intercompany inter—eempany-balances and transactions have been eliminated #per-in consolidation . For consolidated entities where we
own or are exposed to less than 100 % of the economics, the Company records net income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interest
in its consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss) equal to the percentage of the economic or ownership
interest retained in such entity by the respective noncontrolling party . GAAP provides guidance on the identification of a variable interest
entity (“ VEs— VIE ) and financial reporting for entities-an entity over which control is achieved through means other than voting interests.
The (‘ompan\' evaluates each of its interests in an entity to determine whether or not the investee is a VIE and, if so, whether the Company is
the primary beneficiary of such VIE. In determining whether the Company is the primary beneficiary, the Company considers if the Company
(1) has power to duect the activities that most significantly affect the economic performance of the VIE, and (2) has the obligation to absorb
losses or the right to receive the economic benefits of the VIE that could be potentially significant to the VIE. If deemed the primary
beneficiary, the Company consolidates the VIE. As of and for the year ended December 31, 2023, the Company has one VIE, AnHeart,
Inc. (“ AnHeart ), for which the Company is not the primary beneficiary and therefore does not consolidate. The Company did not
incur expenses from VIEs and did not have any sales to or income from any VIEs during the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022.
See Note 3-16 - VariableInterestEntittes-Commitments and Contingencies for additional information entities-million . AH-ransaetions-As of



J anuary 17,2020, the Company had no remalmng 1nvolvement wnh BRGR Reve-l-&&en—l-néusﬂand therefore 1s no longer cons1dered a

.AnHeart AnHeart was prewously a subsldlmy of the C ompany deslgbned to sell traditional Chinese medicine,sold to a thlrd pdrty in February
2019.As discussed in Note 6-7 - Leases,after the sale,the Company continued to provide a guarantee for all rent and related costs associated with
two leases of AnHeart in Manhattan,New York.The Company has determined that AnHeart is a VIE as a result of the guarantee.However,the
Company concluded it is not the primary beneficiary of AnHeart because it does not have the power to direct the activities of AnHeart that most
significantly impact AnHeart' s economic performance.Please refer to Note 6-7 - Leases for additional information regarding the Company' s
maximum exposure to loss relatedto AnHeart. The Company did not have any sales to or rental income from any of the other VIEs during the
three years ended December 31,2022.Note 4 . Noncontrolling Interests GAAP requires that noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries and affiliates
be reported in the equity section of the Company’ s consolidated balance sheets. In addition, the amounts attributable to the net income (loss) of
those noncontrolling interests are reported separately in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss). Oa-May28&
As of December 31 , 2624-2023 and December 31, 2022, noncontrolling interest equity consisted of the following: ($ in thousands)
Ownership ofnoncontrolling interest at December 31, 2023December 31, 2023December 31, 2022HF Foods Industrial, LLC (" HFFI")
(a) 45.00 % $ (759) $ 204 Min Food, Inc. 39. 75 % 1, 715 1, 704 Monterey Food Service, LLC35. 00 % 366 452 Ocean West Food
Services, LLC (b) — % — 1, 986 Syncglobal Inc. (¢) — % — 90 Total $ 1, 322 $ 4, 436 (a) During the year ended December 31, 2023 ,

the Company exited HFFI operations purehased-the-remaining33- 33-%noneontrollingequityinterests-Accordingly, the machinery used in
Kirntand-HFFI operations was impaired and subsequently sold. See Note 4- Balance Sheet Components for additional information. (b)
Effective June 30, 2023, Ocean West Food Distributien-Services , LLC fre—( " Kiratand™ Ocean West ” ) became for-$-5—0-mithen;
makingIirnland-a wholly- owned subsidiary of the Company . In accordance with ASC Topie 810 (“ ASC 810 ”), Consolidation , changes in
a parent’ s ownership interest while the parent retains its controlling financial interest in its subsidiary shall be accounted for as equity
transactions. No gain or loss was recognized. As a result of this transaction, noncontrolling interests and-of $ 1. 7 million was reclassified to

additional paid- in capital wereredueed-by-$1-on the consolidated balance sheets . (c) During the year ended +mithon-and-$3—9-millien;
fespeeﬁvel—y%s—ef—December 31, %92—2—2023 and%ea-l—neﬂeen&emﬂg—rmefest—equyheefmsfed—eﬁhe Company ceased operatlons of

West—Feed—Seﬁtees—]:I:%%—S@i%—l—%é—l—%%—Symglobdl Inc 43—and dlssolved the entlty 99%—99—"Fefa-l—$—4—4%6—$—4—94—1—Us<.5 of
Estimates The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during each reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates. Significant accounting estimates reflected in lhc Comp"my S eomo]ldalcd ﬁnanc1a1 statements include, but are not limited

to, allewanee-forexpeeted-ereditdosses;-inventory reserves , impairment of long-
lived assets, impairment ofbﬂg——tefm—m—vesﬁiﬂenfs—tmpaﬁmeﬁt—e#ﬂoodwl and the purehdse pllLe dllOLdthH dnd falr value of assets and
liabilities acquired with respect to business combinations yrealiza d A %P o hetiab o
insuranee-and-stoek—based-eempensation. Cash and Cash Equiv alcnts Thc Company eonqlders all hlghly llqmd mnv cqtmcntq purch’i%cd with an
original maturity of three months or shorter as cash equivalents. As of December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022 and2024- the Company
had no cash equivalents. Accounts at banks with an aggregate excess of the amount of outstanding checks over the cash balances are included in
checks issued not presented for payment in current liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets. Accounts Receivable, net Accounts receivable
represent amounts due from customers in the ordinary course of business and are recorded at the invoiced amount and do not bear interest.
Receivables are presented net of the allowance for expected credit losses in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The Company
evaluates the collectability of its accounts receivable and determines the appropriate allowance for expected credit losses based on a
combination of factors. The Company maintains an allowance for expected credit losses based on historic collection trends, write- offs and the
aging of receivables. The Company uses specific criteria to determine uncollectible receivables to be written off, including, bankruptcy filings,
the referral of customer accounts to outside parties for collection, and the length that accounts remain past due. As of December 31, 2023 and
December 31, 2022 and-2024-, allowances for expected credit losses were $ 2. | million and $ 1 . 4 mithen-and-$-6-—8-million, respectively.
The Company’ s inventories, consisting mainly of food and other foodservice- related products, are considered finished goods. Inventory costs,
including the purchase price of the product and freight charges to deliver it to the Company’ s warehouses, are net of certain cash consideration
received from vendors, primarily in the form of rebates. The Company adjusted-adjusts its inventory balance for slow- moving, excess and
obsolete inventories to the net recoverable value of such goods based upon inventory category, inventory age, specifically identified items, and
overall economic conditions. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value using the first- in, first- out (FIFO) method.
Property and Equipment, net Property and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation is
calculated using the straight- line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Following are the estimated useful lives of the Company’
s property and equipment: Estimated Useful LivesAutomobiles3 to 7 yearsBuildings and improvements7 to 39 yearsFurniture and fixtures4 to
10 yearsMachinery and equipment3 to 10 years Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the useful life of those
leasehold improvements and the remaining lease term. Repair and maintenance costs are charged to expense as incurred, whereas the cost of
renewals and betterment that extends the useful lives of property and equipment are capitalized as additions to the related assets. Retirements,
sales and disposals of assets are recorded by removing the cost and accumulated depreciation from the asset and accumulated depreciation
accounts with any resulting gain or loss reflected in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss) in distribution,
selling and administrative expenses. Software Costs In accordance with ASC 350- 40, Internal- Use Software, the Company capitalizes
certain computer software licenses and software implementation costs related to developing or obtaining computer software for
internal use. Subsequent additions, modifications or upgrades to internal- use software are capitalized only to the extent that they allow
the software to perform a task that it previously did not perform. Internal use software is amortized on a straight- line basis over a
three to five year period. Capitalized costs include direct acquisitions as well as software and software development acquired under
capitalized leases and internal labor where appropriate. Capitalized software purchases and related development costs, net of
accumulated amortization, were $ 5. 1 million as of December 31, 2023 and zero as of December 31, 2022, and are included in other
long- term assets on the consolidated balance sheets. The Company accounts for its business combinations using the purchase method of
accounting in accordance with ASC Topic 805 €“ASE8052)-, Business Combinations. The purchase method of accounting requires that the
consideration transferred be allocated to the assets, including separately identifiable assets and liabilities the Company acquired, based on their
estimated fair values. The consideration transferred in an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the fair values at the date of exchange of
the assets given, liabilities incurred, and equity instruments issued as well as the contingent considerations and all contractual contingencies as
of the acquisition date. Identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired or assumed are measured separately at their fair value as




of the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any noncontrolling interests. The excess of (i) the total of cost of acquisition, fair value of
the noncontrolling interests and acquisition date fair value of any previously held equity interest in the acquiree over, (ii) the fair value of the
identifiable net assets of the acquiree, is recorded as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognized directly in earnings. The Company estimates the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed in a business combination. While the Company uses its best estimates and assumptions to accurately value assets acquired and
liabilities assumed at the acquisition date, its estimates are inherently uncertain and subject to refinement. Significant estimates in valuing
certain intangible assets include, but are not limited to future expected revenues and cash flows, useful lives, discount rates, and selection of
comparable companies. Although the Company believes the assumptions and estimates it has made in the past have been reasonable and
appropriate, they are based in part on historical experience and information obtained from management of the acquired companies and are
inherently uncertain. During the measurement period, which may be up to one year from the acquisition date, the Company may record
adjustments to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed with the corresponding offset to goodwill. On the conclusion of the measurement
period or final determination of the values of assets acquired or liabilities assumed, whichever comes first, any subsequent adjustments are
recorded to the Company’ s consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss). Transaction costs associated with business
combinations are expensed as incurred, and are included in distribution, selling and administrative expenses in the Company’ s consolidated
statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss). The results of operations of the businesses that the Company acquired are included
in the Company’ s consolidated financial statements from the date of acquisition. Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the
fair value of net assets acquired in a business combination. The Company tests goodwill for impairment at least annually, as of December 31, or
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that goodwill might be impaired. The Company' s policy is to test goodwill for
impairment annually in-on the last day of the fourth quarter, or more frequently if certain triggering events or circumstances indicate it could
be impaired. Potential impairment indicators include (but are not limited to) macroeconomic conditions, industry and market considerations,
cost factors, overall financial performance, other relevant entity- specific events, specific events affecting the reporting unit, or sustained
decrease in share price. This guidance provides the option to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than not that
the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying value. If, based on a review of qualitative factors, it is more likely than not that the fair
value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying value, or at management’ s discretion, the Company performs a quantitative analysis. If the
quantitative analysis indicates the carrying value of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value, the Company measures any goodwill impairment
losses as the amount by which the carrying amount of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value, not to exceed the total amount of goodwill
allocated to that reporting unit. As of December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022 and2624-, the Company has one reporting unit for purposes
of testing goodwill for impairment . See Note 9-8 - Goodwill and Acquired Intangible Assets for additional information. Determining the fair
value of a reporting unit requires the application of judgment and involves the use of significant estimates and assumptions including,
projections of future cash flows, which include forecasted revenue, discount rate, and other factors which can be affected by changes in business
climate, economic conditions, the competitive environment and other factors. The Company also considers the use of market approaches, such
as the comparable public company analysis and comparable acquisitions analysis, to estimate the fair value of the reporting unit. The Company
bases these fair value estimates on assumptions management believes to be reasonable but which are unpredictable and inherently uncertain. A
change in underlying assumptions would cause a change in the results of the tests and, as such, could cause fair value to be less than the
carrying ameunts— amount and result in an impairment of goodwill in the future. Additionally, if actual results are not consistent with the
estimates and assumptions or if there are significant changes to the Company’ s planned strategy, it may cause the fair value of the reporting
unit to be less than its carrying amount and result in additionat-an impairments— impairment of goodwill in the future. The Company
corroborates the reasonableness of the total fair value of the reporting unit by assessing the implied control premium based on the Company’ s
market capitalization. The Company’ s market capitalization is calculated using the relevant shares outstanding and stock price of the
Company’ s publicly traded shares. In the event of a goodwill impairment, the Company would be required to record an impairment, which
would impact earnings and reduce the carrying amounts of goodwill on the consolidated balance sheet. Intangible Assets, net Intangible assets
are amortized on a straight- line basis over their estimated useful lives. The Company determines the appropriate useful life of its intangible
assets by measuring the expected cash flows of acquired assets. The estimated useful lives of intangible assets are as follows: Estimated Useful
LivesNon- competition agreement3 yearsTradenames10 yearsCustomer relationships10 to 20 years Long- term Investments The Company’ s
investments in unconsolidated entities consist of an equity investment and an investment without readily determinable fair value. The Company
follows ASC Topic 321 (“ ASC 321 ), Investments — Equity Securities, using the measurement alternative to measure investments in investees
that do not have readily determinable fair value and over which the Company does not have significant influence at cost, less any impairment,
plus or minus changes resulting from observable price changes in orderly transactions for identical or similar investments of the same issuer, if
any. The Company makes a qualitative assessment of whether the investment is impaired at each reporting date. If a qualitative assessment
indicates that the investment is impaired, the Company has to estimate the investment’ s fair value in accordance with the principles of ASC
Topic 820 (“ ASC 820 ), Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures. If the fair value is less than the investment’ s carrying value, the entity has
to recognize an impairment loss in earnings equal to the difference between the carrying value and fair value. Investments in entities in which
the Company can exercise significant influence but does not own a majority equity interest or control are accounted for using the equity method
of'accounting in accordance with ASC Topic 323 (“ ASC 323 ”), Investments- Equity Method and Joint Ventures. Under the equity method, the
Company initially records its investment at cost, which is included in the equity method investment on the consolidated balance sheets. The
Company subsequently adjusts the carrying amount of the investment to recognize the Company’ s proportionate share of each equity investee’
s net income or loss into earnings after the date of investment. The Company evaluates the equity method investments for impairment under
ASC 323. An impairment loss on the equity method investments is recognized in earnings when the decline in value is determined to be other-
than- temporary. The Company did not record any impairment loss on its long- term investments during the years ended December 31, 2023,
2022 rand 2021 and2626-. The Company assesses its long- lived assets such as property and equipment and intangible assets subject to
amortization for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount of an asset or asset group may not be
recoverable. Factors which may indicate potential impairment include a significant underperformance related to the historical or projected future
operating results or a significant negative industry or economic trend. Recoverability of these-an assets— asset or asset group is measured by
comparison of thet-its carrying ameunts— amount to future undiscounted cash flows the assets— asset are-or asset group is expected to
generate. If property and equipment, and intangible assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized equals the amount by
which the carrying value of the assets— asset or asset group exceeds thefrits fair value. The Company impaired machinery related to HFFI
and recognized impairment expense of $ 1. 2 million in distribution, selling and administrative expenses in the consolidated statements
of operations during the year ended December 31, 2023. The Company fully impaired its acquired developed technology associated with
the Syncglobal joint venture and recognized impairment expense of $ 0. 4 million in distribution, selling and administrative expenses in the
consolidated statements of operations during the year ended December 31, 2022 . Fair value was determined using Level 3 inputs at the time



of impairment . The Company did not record any impairment loss on its long- lived assets during the years— year ended December 31, 2021
and-2020-. Insurance and Claim Costs The Company maintains workers compensation and general liability insurance with licensed insurance
carriers. Beginning in April 2020, the Company is self- insured for auto claims less than $ 100, 000 per claim. Insurance and claims expense
represent premiums the Company paid and the accruals made for claims within the Company’ s self- insured retention amounts. A liability is
recognized for the estimated cost of all self- insured claims including an estimate of incurred but not reported claims based on historical
experience and for claims expected to exceed the Company' s policy limits. The Company establishes reserves for anticipated losses and
expenses related to auto liability claims. The reserves consist of specific reserves for all known claims and an estimate for claims incurred but
not reported, and losses arising from known claims ultimately settling in excess of insurance coverage using loss development factors based
upon industry data and past experience. In determining the liability, the Company specifically reviews all known claims and records a liability
based upon the Company’ s best estimate of the amount to be paid. In making the estimate, the Company considers the amount and validity of
the claim, as well as the Company’ s past experience with similar claims. In establishing the reserve for claims incurred but not reported, the
Company considers its past claims history, including the length of time it takes for claims to be reported to the Company. These reserves are
periodically reviewed and adjusted to reflect the Company’ s experience and updated information relating to specific claims. As of December
31,2023 and December 31, 2022 and-262+, the Company has recorded a self- insurance liability of $ 1. 3-7 million and $ 1. 6-3 million,
respectively, which is included in accrued expenses and other liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets. Revenue Recognition The Company
recognizes revenue from the sale of products when control of each product passes to the customer and the customer accepts the goods, which
occurs at delivery. The majority of customer orders are fulfilled within a day and customer payment terms are typically thirty days or
less from invoice date. Our 100 % satisfaction guarantee permits our customers to reject part of the order or the entire order within
twenty- four hours of receipt without any penalty. Sales taxes invoiced to customers and remitted to government authorities are excluded
from net sales. The Company follows ASC Topic 606 £~ASE-666")-, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The Company recognizes
revenue that represents the transfer of goods and services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company
expects to be entitled in such exchange. This requires the Company to identify contractual performance obligations and determine whether
revenue should be recognized at a point in time or over time, based on when control of goods and services transfer to a customer. The
Company’ s contracts contain performance obligations which are satisfied when customers have physical possession of each product. The
Company’ s revenue streams are recognized at a specific point in time. Cost of Revenue Cost of revenue primarily includes inventory costs (net
of vendor consideration, primarily in the form of rebates), inbound freight, customs clearance fees and other miscellaneous expenses.
Distribution, selling and administrative expenses consist primarily of salaries and benefits for employees and contract laborers, trucking and
fuel expenses for deliveries, utilities, maintenance and repair expenses, insurance expenses, depreciation and amortization expenses, selling and
marketing expenses, professional fees and other operating expenses. Shipping and Handling Costs Shipping and handling costs, which include
costs related to the selection of products and their delivery to customers, are included in distribution, selling and administrative expenses.
Shipping and handling costs were $ 76. 0 million, $ 83. 7 million ;-and $ 58. 3 mithenand-$37-=8-million for the years ended December 31,
2023, 2022 rand 2021 and-2626-, respectively, and includes estimates for labor associated with shipping and handling activities. Income Taxes
The Company accounts for income taxes under the asset and liability method, which requires the recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of events that have been included in the financial statements. Under this method, the
Company determines deferred tax assets and liabilities based on the-basts-efthe differences between the financial statement and tax bases-basis
of assets and liabilities by using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the differences are expected to reverse. The effect of a change in
tax rates on deferred tax assets and liabilities is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. The Company recognizes
deferred tax assets to the extent that it believes that these assets are more likely than not to be realized. In making such a determination, the
Company considers all available positive and negative evidence, including future reversals of existing taxable temporary differences, projected
future taxable income, tax- planning strategies, and results of recent operations. As-A valuation allowance is provided when it is more likely
than not that some portion or all of the net deferred tax assets will not be realized. Based on our assessment, it is more likely than not
that most of the net deferred tax assets will be realized through future taxable income. Management has established a valuation
allowance against certain deferred taxes attributable to the Company' s subsidiary, HFFI. Management believes the realization of these
deferred tax assets will be limited as the Company exited HFFI operations during the year ended December 31, 2622-2023 . As such , the
Company has recorded doesnothave-a valuation allowance of $ 0. 7 million on the deferred tax asset-assets of HFFI. The Company will
continue to assess the need for a valuation allowance in the future by evaluating both positive and negative evidence that may exist . The
Company records uncertain tax positions in accordance with ASC Topic 740 , Income Taxes (“ ASC 740 ) ;3neeme—TFaxes-, on the basis of a
two- step process in which (1) the Company determines whether it is more likely than not that the tax positions will be sustained on the basis of
the technical merits of the position and (2) for those tax positions that meet the more- likely- than- not recognition threshold, the Company
recognizes the largest amount of tax benefit that is more than 50 percent likely to be realized upon ultimate settlement with the related tax
authority. See Note 43-12 - Income Taxes for additional information. The Company adopted ASU 2019- 12 (* ASU 2019- 12 ), Income Taxes
(Topic 740): Simplifying the Accounting for Income Taxes, on January 1, 2021. ASU 2019- 12 is intended to simplify various aspects related to
managerial accounting for income taxes. The adoption had no material impact on the Company' s consolidated financial statements. In 2021,
the Organization for Economic Co- operation and Development (“ OECD ) published the Tax Challenges Arising from the Global
Anti- Base Erosion Model Rules (“ Pillar Two ), also referred to as the GloBE Rules or Pillar Two. The rules are designed to ensure
large multinational enterprises (“ MNEs ”) pay a minimum level of tax (15 %) on income of each jurisdiction and are expected to be
effective for the first time in January 2024. The legislation applies to MNEs with annual consolidated group revenues of at least € 750
million if at least one jurisdiction in which the MNE operates has enacted tax laws in accordance with the Pillar Two framework. The
Company continues to monitor the effects of Pillar Two but does not believe it will have a material impact on the financial statements
provided that the Company currently has no foreign operations that would be expected to result in the application of Pillar Two. The
Company accounts for leases following ASC Topic 842, Leases (" ASC 842"). The Company determines if an arrangement is a lease at
inception and also considers classification of leases as operating or finance. Operating leases are included in operating lease ROU assets, current
portion of obligations under operating leases, and obligations under operating leases, non- current on the Company’ s consolidated balance
sheets. Finance leases are included in property and equipment, net, current portion of obligations under finance leases, and obligations under
finance leases, non- current on the consolidated balance sheets. Operating lease ROU assets and operating lease liabilities are recognized based
on the present value of the future minimum lease payments over the lease term at commencement date. As most of the Company”’ s leases do
not provide an implicit rate, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate based on the information available at commencement date in
determining the present value of future payments. The operating lease ROU asset also includes any lease payments made and initial direct costs
incurred and excludes lease incentives. The Company’ s lease terms may include options to extend or terminate the lease when it is reasonably
certain that the Company will exercise that option. Lease expense for minimum lease payments is recognized on a straight- line basis over the



lease term. Variable rent payments related to both operating and finance leases are expensed as incurred. The Company' s variable lease
payments primarily consist of real estate, maintenance and usage charges. The Company has elected to exclude short- term leases from the
recognition requirements of ASC 842. A lease is short- term if, at the commencement date, it has a term of less than or equal to one year. Lease
expense related to short- term leases is recognized on a straight- line basis over the lease term. The Company has also elected to combine lease
and non- lease components when measuring lease liabilities for vehicle and equipment leases. In accordance with the guidance in ASC Topic
815, Derivatives and Hedging (" ASC 815") - DerivativesandHedging-, derivative financial instruments are recognized as assets or liabilities
on the consolidated balance sheets at fair value. The Company has not designated its interest rate swap (" IRS") contracts as hedges for
accounting treatment. Pursuant to GAAP, income or loss from fair value changes for derivatives that are not designated as hedges by
management are reflected as income or loss on the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss). Net amounts
received or paid under the interest rate swap contracts are recognized as an increase or decrease to interest expense when such amounts are
incurred. The Company is exposed to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the counterparty. Concentrations and Credit Risk Credit risk
Accounts receivable are typically unsecured and derived from revenue earned from customers, and thereby exposed to credit risk. The risk is
mitigated by the Company’ s assessment of its customers’ creditworthiness and its ongoing monitoring of outstanding balances. The Company
maintains cash balances with banks which at times exceed federally insured limits. The Company has not experienced any losses in such
accounts . Segment Reporting ASC Topic 280, Segment Reporting, establishes standards for reporting information about operating segments
on a basis consistent with the Company’ s internal organizational structure as well as information about geographical areas, business segments
and major customers in financial statements for details on the Company”’ s business segments. The Company uses the *“ management approach
in determining reportable operating segments. The management approach considers the internal organization and reporting used by the
Company’ s operating decision makers for making operational decisions and assessing performance as the source for determining the
Company’ s reportable segments. In 2021, former co- CEO Zhou Min Ni resigned, and Xiao Mou Zhang assumed the role of sole CEO and sole
Chief Operating Decision Maker (" CODM"). The CODM, reviews operating results and makes resource allocations on a consolidated basis
and thus the Company has concluded it has one opcrating and reportable segment. In June 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (
FASB ) issued Accounting Standards Update (£-ASU 2) 2016- 13 €“ASH20+6-13-3-, Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial
Instruments (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments. ASU 2016- 13 requires companies to measure credit losses
utilizing a methodology that reflects expected credit losses and requires a consideration of a broader range of reasonable and supportable
information to inform credit loss estimates. ASU 2016~ I% was tulther amended in November 2019 m ¢ Codification Improv um,nts to TO])IL
326, Fmanual Insnuments Credit -}esses-Losses > i al-yea

a-fter—Deeember—lé%GQ%—The ( ompany 2 adopted this ASU w 1thm the annual 1ep0rlm period ending as of December 31, 2022. The adoption of
this guidance resulted in an adjustment to retained earnings of § 0. 7 million as of January 1, 2022 as evidenced in the Company +’ s
consolidated statements of changes in shareholders’ equity. In Mareh-November 2020-2023 , the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update
(ASU )2626-2023 - 64-07 , Segment Reporting RefereneeRateReform-(Topic $48-280 ): Faetlitation-of the Effeets-of RefereneeRate
Referm-Improvements to Reportable Segment Dlsclosures, whlch requlres enhanced dlsclosures about segment expenses on an annual
and interim basis. This standard is effectlve W v

for (er—reeeg-mz-mg—lhe e

t d talHmpaet-o s consolldated financial stdtements for the year ending December 31,
2024 and for interim perlods beglnnmg in 2025 The 1mpact 0f the adoption of this ASU is not expected to have a material effect on the
Company’ s financial position, or operations, however, the Company is currently evaluating the impact of this standard on its
disclosures to the consolidated financial statements . [n Oetober-December 26242023 , the FASB issued ASU 2624-2023 - 68-09 , Business
Combinations-Income Taxes ( Fopte-865-ASC 740 ): Aeeounting-Improvement to Income Tax Disclosures, which requires (1) dlsclosure
of specific categories in the rate reconciliation and (2) additional information for Centraet-Assets-and-Contractiabilities-reconciling
items that meet a quantitative threshold. Additionally, the amendment requires disclosure of certain disaggregated information about
income taxes paid, lncome from Qm&&et&wﬁh-eustemefs-contmulng operatlons before income tax expense (beneﬁt) and income tax
expense (beneﬁt) ottt

t-he—aeqﬁ-is-it-ieﬁ—"l"—h-is—guédaﬁee—ls effective for interim and annual perlods begmnmg after December ...... cash ﬂows ofthe VlE mcluded in the
( omp”my s eonsolldaled ﬁnanc1al ba-}aﬂee—sheets—smemems 0 v

( ompany determmed—ls currently evaluatmg the lmpact of th1s standard on -rt—lts w&s—ﬂae—pfmaﬁkbeﬁeﬁeﬂny—feeﬂee—sta-ﬁﬁﬁgﬁgenefes
y ‘01150|Id’]lt,d financial the-Staffing-Agenetes;

d-statements efoperations-and
The Company d1d not have any
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following table plesents the Compcmy s net revenue dlsdumegdted by principal product Ldtes_ones Year Ended December 31,($in thousands)



20222021 Seafoed-202320222021Seafood $ 361, 219 31 % $ 354, 220 30 % $ 123, 808 16 % Asian Speeialty299-Specialty305 , 466 27 % 299
, 21526 % 236,489 29 % Meat and Peuktry238-Poultry215 , 789 19 % 238 , 276 20 % 214, 504 27 % Fresh Predueet26-Producel23 , 202 11
% 126, 560 11 % 103, 168 13 % Packaging and Other84-Other71, 245 6 % 84 , 489 7 % 69, 187 9 % Commedity67- Commodity71 , 572 6
% 67,707 6% 49,728 6 % Total $ 1, 148,493 100 % $ 1, 170, 467 100 % $ 796, 884 100 % Pue-to-systemreonstraints-priorto-Accounts
recelvable, net conslsted of the ye&ﬁended—followmg (In thousands) Decembel 31, %H&Geﬁxpan—rdidﬂet—preseﬂt—net—revenue—by

2023December 31, %Q%Beeembeﬁ}l—}@%h%eeeuﬂts-ZOZZAccounts receivable § 49 643 $ 45, 678 $—3—7’—l—2—l—Lus allov» ance for L\pcclcd
credit losses ( 2, 119) ( 1, 442 3848-) Accounts receivable, net $ 47, 524 $ 44, 186 $36;28+-Movement of allowance for expected credit losses
was as tollows Year hnded December 31, (ln thousands %QQ—Z%GQ—I%Q%Begmmng-———— 202320222021Beglnnlngbﬂ-}&nee—$—849—$—999—$—6%4

5 balalm $1, 447 $ 84() $909 Adjustment for adoptlon 0f the CECL standard
— 690 — Increase (decrease) in provision for expected credit losses / doubtful accounts701 82 (433) Bad debt (write- offs) recoveries
(24) (170) 364 Ending balance $ 2, 119 $ 1, 442 $ 840 Prepaid expenses and other current assets consisted of the following: (In
thousands) December 31, 2023December 31, 2022Prepaid expenses $ 4, 591 $ 1, 504 Advances to suppliers3, 340 4, 494 Other current
assets2, 214 2, 939 Prepaid expenses and other current assets $ 10, 145 $ 8, 937 Property and equipment, net consisted of the following: (In
thousands) December 31, 2022Beeember-2023December 3 1, 2624 Automobies-2022Automobiles $ 37, 883 $ 34, 891 $34+-577-Buildings63,
145 63, 045 68;-998-Building imprevements26-improvements22 , 120 20 . 637 +9;-8684-Furniture and fixtares444— fixtures474 244444
Land49, 929 5449 , 4+2-929 Machinery and equipmentt7equipment12 , 090 17 . 210 +H4;H4-Subtotalt86-Subtotall85 , 641 186 . 156 +85;
3+6-[ess: accumulated depreciation ( 52, 505) (45, 826 H395408-) Property and equipment, net $ 133, 136 $ 140, 330 $445:-9088-Depreciation
expense was $ 9. 6 million, $ 9. 2 million ;-and $ 8. | mithenand-$-8-0-million for the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 -and 2021 and
2020-, respectively . During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Company impaired machinery and recognized impairment expense
of $ 1. 2 million in distribution, selling and administrative expense in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive
income (loss). See Note 2- Summary of Significant Accounting Policies for additional information regarding the Company’ s operations
at HFFI . Long- term investments consisted of the following: ( In $4#-thousands) Ownership as of December 31, 2022Deeember
2023December 3 1, 2022Deeember-2023December 3 |, 2024Asahi-2022Asahi Food, Inc. (" Asahi") 49 % $ 588 $ 879 $-662-Pt. Tamron
Akuatik Produk Industri (" Tamron") 12 % 1, 800 1, 800 Total long- term investments $ 2, 679-388 $ 2, 462-679 The investment in Tamron is
accounted for using the measurement alternative under Accounting Standards Codification (“ ASC ”) Topic 321 Investments — Equity
Securities , which is measured at cost, less any impairment, plus or minus changes resulting from observable price changes in orderly
transactions for identical or similar investments, if any. The investment in Asahi is accounted for under the equity method due to the fact that
the Company has significant influence but does not exercise control over this investee. The Company determined Fhere-there was no
impairment durig-for the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 s-and 2021 ard-2626-for these investments. Accrued expenses and other
liabilities consisted of the following: (In thousands) December 31, 2022Peeember-2023December 3 |, 2024Aeerted-2022Accrued
compensation $ 7,941 $ 6, 798 $-5;-038-Accrued professional fees3-feesl , 353 3, 866 349-Acerued-income-taxes—-908-Accrued interest
and feesl, 276 1, 082 265-Self- insurance liability1, 723 1, 286 -1,—998—Acuugd other6-other4 , 994 6 , 616 3:-630-Total accrued expenses and
other liabilities S 17,287 $ 19, 648 $425438-Note 6-5 - Fair Value Measurements The following table presents the Company' s hierarchy for its
assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of the dates indicated: December 31, 2622Beeember-2023December 31,
2024Hevel2022Level 1 Level 2Level 3TotalLevel 1Level 2Level 3TotalQuoted Prices in Active Markets for Identical AssetsSignificant Other
Observable InputsSignificant Unobservable InputsQuoted Prices in Active Markets for Identical AssetsSignificant Other Observable
InputsSignificant Unobservable Inputs (In thousands) Assets: Derivative-instruments-Interest rate swaps $ — $4128 —$4125— $ 530§

$ 530 Liabilities: Interest rate swaps $ — $ (1,601) $ — $ (1, 601) $ — $ — S — S — Hiabilities: Derivative-instruments $—$5—$5—$

—$—$287$—$28FThe Company follows the provisions of ASC Topic 820 -ASE-820"-Fair Value Meastrements— Measurement
which and-Diselosures—ASE-826-clarifies the definition of fair value, prescribes methods for measuring fair value, and establishes a fair value
hierarchy to classify the inputs used in measuring fair value as follows: ¢ Level 1- Inputs are unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities available at the measurement date. « Level 2- Inputs are unadjusted quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in
active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets and liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are
observable, and inputs derived from or corroborated by observable market data. * Level 3- Inputs are unobservable inputs which reflect the
reporting entity’ s own assumptions about what assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on the best
available information. Any transfers of assets or liabilities between Level 1, Level 2, and Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy will be recognized
at the end of the reporting period in which the transfer occurs. There were no transfers between fair value levels in any of the periods presented
herein. The carrying amounts reported in the consolidated balance sheets for cash, accounts receivable, advaneesto-supphiers;other current
assets, accounts payable, checks issued not presented for payment and accrued expenses and other liabilities approximate their fair value based
on the short- term maturity of these instruments. Please refer to Note 9- Derivative Financial Instruments for additional information
regarding the Company’ s interest rate swaps. Carrying Value and Estimated Fair Value of Outstanding Debt- The following table presents
the carrying value and estimated fair value of the Company’ s outstanding debt as described in Note +4-10 - Debt of the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements, including the current portion, as of the dates indicated: Falr Value Measurements (In thousands) Level
1Level 2Level 3Carrying Beeember-ValueDecember 31, 2023 ; o

¥a1-uel:eve1—€$—rn—mﬂ-hensa—ﬂxcd rate dcbt Bank of Amerlca P-reﬁnsseﬁhnete—pay&ble—te—rel-ated—p&rt—y—% — % — 5151 -4%—% 169 Other

finance institutions v 170
Banle 43 45 4- 6 sttt e v Variab Varlable ratu dcbt HPMeorgantiH—--
JPMorgan —4-Chase $ — $ 106 079 $ — $ 106, 079 Bank of Amerlca — 2 193 —2,193 East West Bank — 5, 675 — S, 675 December
31, 2022Fixed rate debt: Bank of America $§ —$ —$ 1, 630 $ 1, 948 Other finance institutions — — 186 197 Variable rate debt:
JPMorgan Chase $ —$ 111,413 $ — §$ 111, 413 4-FLevel 2708708 Level 2Bank— Bank of Ameriea2— America — —3-2 3Fevel 22,
330 — 2, 330 East West Bank— 52—, 822 — 5, 822 Eevel2East-WestBank3—53—5Fevel23-53-—5Fevel2-The carrying value of the
variable rate debt approximates its fair value buausc of the variability of interest rates associated with these instruments a-ﬁd—t-he—eeﬂs-tsteﬂey—m
marketeondittons-sinee-theJoans-were-enterednte-. For the Company' s fixed rate debt, the fair values were estimated using discounted cash
flow analyses, based on the current incremental borrowing rates for similar types of borrowing arrangements. Please refer to Note +4-10 - Debt
and-Note4-RelatedPartyFransaetions-for additional information regarding the Company' s debt . Nonrecurring Fair Values The Company
measures fair value of certain assets on a nonrecurring basis when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
of the assets may not be recoverable. Adjustments to fair value resulted from the write- down of asset values due to impairment. During
the year ended December 31, 2023, the Company partially impaired machinery related to the operations of HFFI and recognized




impairment expense of $ 1. 2 million in distribution, selling and administrative expense in the consolidated statements of operations and
comprehensive income (loss). The machinery was sold during the year ended December 31, 2023. The impairment was based on sales
prices of similar equipment listed by third- party sellers and considered a Level 3 fair value measurement. During the year ended
December 31, 2022, the Company fully impaired its acquired developed technology associated with the Syncglobal, Inc. joint venture
and recognized impairment expense of $ 0. 4 million in distribution, selling and administrative expenses in the consolidated statements
of operations and comprehensive income (loss) during the year ended December 31, 2022 . The Company leases office space, warehouses
and vacant land under non- cancelable operating leases, with terms typically ranging from one to thirty years, as well as operating and finance
leases for vehicles and delivery trucks, forklifts and computer equipment with various expiration dates through 2051. The Company determines
whether an arrangement is or includes an embedded lease at contract inception. Operating and finance lease assets and lease liabilities are
recognized at commencement date and mmally mcasulcd based on the prcscnt value of lc%c paymcms over the dcilncd lc%c term. As—ef

fes-peeﬁvel—y—Opelath lease expense is Iecogmzed ona stlawht lme basis over the ledse term The Fer—ﬁn&nee—}eases—t-he-( ompany also
recognizes finance lease assets and finance lease liabilities at inception, with lease expense recognized as interest expense and amortization of
the lease payment. Variable lease costs were insignificant in the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 -and 2021 and-. As of December 31,
2020-2023 , the balances for operating lease right- of- use (" ROU") assets and liabilities were $ 12. 7 million and $ 13. 1 million,
respectively. As of December 31, 2022, the balances for operating lease ROU assets and liabilities were $ 14. 2 million and $ 14. 3
million, respectively . Operating Leases The components of operating lease expense were as follows: Year Ended December 31, ($ in
thousands) 2022202120200perating—--- 2023202220210perating lcase cost $ 4, 342 $ 4, 045 $ 967-$785Shert-—- 967Short - term lease cost §
1,507 $1,037 $ 1, 699Weighted 699-$1-424Weighted-average remaining lease term (months) 475640Weighted—- 424756 Weighted average
discount rate3-rated . 5 % 3 . 8 % 3. 9 %5—6-% Year Ended December 31, , (In thousands) 20222024+20200perating—---
2023202220210perating cash flows from operating leases $ 4, 234 $ 4, 005 $ 822 $99-Finance Leases The components of lease expense
were as follows: Year Ended December 31, (In thousands) 2622202420620 inanee—--- 202320222021Finance lcases cost: Amortization of ROU
assets $ 2,639 $ 2, 808 $ 2, 416 $4-978-Interest on lease Habilities787Fliabilities755 787 820 492-Total finance leases cost $ 3,394 $ 3, 595 §
3, 236 $25470-Supplemental cash flow information related to finance leases was as follows: Year Ended December 31, (In thousands)
2022202120200perating—--- 2023202220210perating cash flows from finance leases $ 657 $ 670 $ 701 $492-Supplemental balance sheet
information related to finance leases was as follows: ($ in thousands) December 31, 2022Beeember-2023December 3 |, 2024 Property
2022Property and equipment, at cost $ 22,203 $ 20, 339 $48-42-Accumulated depreciation ( 10, 288) ( 7, 615 H542F) Property and
equipment, net $ 11, 915 $ 12, 724 $43;285-Weighted average remaining lease term (months) 245245Weighted-219215Weighted average
discount rate5. 7 % 5. 87 % Maturities of lease liabilities are as follows: Operating Leases (In thousands) Related Party (1) Third
PartyTotalFinanceLeasesYear Ended December 31, 2623-2024 $ 321 342-$3;:-828-5 4, 140-253 $ 4, 574 $ 2, 396 844-20243213,444-3,7652;
616-2025331 3-4 ,343-3-216 4 , 674-547 1,399-747 2026 — 3-4 , 2073-164 4 , 267164 1, 618-365 2027 — 545-545-752-1, 696 1, 696 1, 100
2028 — 933 933 929 Thereafter — — — 16, 839-407 Total lease payments964— payments652 +4;:367-15, 331-24-262 15 , 862914 23, 944
Less: Imputed interest (5223 ) (42, 642771 ) (+2 ., 064794 ) (H-10 , 167966 ) Total $ 629 $942- 12,491 § 13, 355120 S +4-12 , 978 267
$143;:695-(1) Sce Note #4-13 - Related Party Transactions As of December 31, 2023 diseussednNote3—Variable Interest Entities-, the

C ompdny had addmonal pfeﬂded—a—guaf&ﬂfee—fer—&ve—sep&ﬂﬂe—lcascs that had not yet commenced -fer—%—pfepefﬂes—l-ee&ted—m—Maﬂh&ﬁan—

%%%ﬁfsﬂﬁﬁt—ﬁe-w hich totaled it aqsumed the lease of the premlses ...... the premises at a minimum cost ofS 27. 5—0 ml]llon The
Lease Amendment permlts sublettmg of. ..... Company agreed to stay htlgatlon ag,alnst AnHeart in exehaﬂge—fer—AnHeaft—s—paymeﬂt—eﬁeeﬁ&m

tees Iutmc minimum lease pavmcnt%pl-us—peteﬁt—ta-l—&éd%ﬁeﬂa{-paymenfs—te
eaﬂﬁ-ﬁy—maﬁﬁeﬁaﬁee—pfepeﬁy—ta-x—md ﬁsufaﬁee—requﬁements—uﬁdeewere excluded from the table above. These lcases with-arematning-term
ef—a-ppfe?ﬂmatel-y—l—l—comprlse vehicle leases expected to commence durlng the yeafs» year ended —"Fhe—Gempaﬂ-y—e*eefed—a—pel-ley—te—appl-y

years. Subsequent to December 31 2023 the ( ompany had—a—entered 1nt0 addltlonal vehlcle J:eﬁ‘se-leases whlch total guafanfee—l-tab-rl-rty—ef
$15. 5 =8-million —Fh red-th

po A AR . 9 o A po ndad 1) I q
%%%sHmptﬁed—iﬂfefest—H—?@é}—Tﬁal—mmmuﬁHmsc paymen’cs—$é—769—terms of 4 t0 6 years and were excluded from the table
above. Acquisition of Sealand On April 29, 2022, the Company completed the acquisition of substantially all of the operating assets of Sealand,
including equipment, machinery and vehicles. The acquisition was completed to expand the Company' s territory along the East Coast, from
Massachusetts to Florida, as well as Pennsylvania, West Virginia, Ohio, Kentucky, and Tennessee. The price for the purchased assets was $ 20.
0 million paid in cash at closing. In addition to the closing cash payment, the Company separately acquired all of the sellers' saleable product
inventory, for approximately $ 14. 4 million and additional fixed assets for approximately $ 0. 5 million —Fhe-Company-finalized-its-purehase

aeeounting-as-of Deeember3142622-. The Company accounted for this transaction under ASC 805 5-Business Combinations, by applying the
acquisition method of accounting and established a new basis of accounting on the date of acquisition. The assets acquired by the Company

were measured at their estimated fair values as of the date of acquisition. Goodwill is calculated as the excess of the purchase price over the net
assets recognized and represent synergies and benefits expected as a result from combining operations with an emerging national presence. The
transaction costs for the acquisition for the year ended December 31, 2022 totaled approximately $ 0. 7 million and were reflected in
distribution, selling and administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive income for-the-year-ended
Deeember312022-. The information included herein was has-beeaprepared based on the allocation of the purchase price using estimates of
the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed which were dctcrmmcd u%mg a combination ofquotcd malkct prlccs dlscounlcd caqh
flows, qnd other cstlmatcs madc by mamgcmcnl —Fhe ; o A

Prlce Allocatlon lhe total LOllSIdeldthH pdld to acquire the assets and lmbllmes of Sealand, as set 1‘01th be ow: (In thousands) Amountlm entory



$ 13, 846 Property plant, and equipmentl, 424 Right- of- use assets127 Intangible assets14, 717 Total assets acquired30, 114 Obligations under
operating leases127 Total liabilities assumed127 Net assets29, 987 Goodwill4, 861 Total consideration $ 34, 848 The Company recorded
acquired intangible assets of $ 14. 7 million, which were measured at fair value using Level 3 inputs. These intangible assets include tradenames
and trademarks of $ 4. 4 million, customer relationships of $ 8. 9 million and non- eempete-competition agreements of $ 1. 4 million. The fair
value of customer relationships was determined by applying the income approach utilizing the excess earnings methodology and Level 3 inputs
including a discount rate. The fair value of tradenames and trademarks was determined by applying the income approach utilizing the relief
from royalty methodology and Level 3 inputs including a royalty rate of 1 % and a discount rate. The fair value of non- competition agreements
was determined by applying the income approach and Level 3 inputs including a discount rate. Discount rates used in determining fair values
for customer relationships, tradenames and trademarks, and non- competition agreements ranged from 17. 5 % to 18. 0 %. The useful lives of
the tradenames and trademarks are ten years, customer relationships are ten years and non- eempete-competition agreements are three years,
with a weighted average amortization period of approximately nine years. The associated goodwill is deductible for tax purposes. On
December 30, 2021, the Company executed an Asset Purchase Agreement with Great Wall Group to purchase substantially all of the operating
assets of the Great Wall Group’ s seafood and restaurant products sales, marketing, and distribution businesses. The acquisition was completed
as part of the Company’ s strategy to develop a national footprint through expansion into the Midwest, Southwest and Southern regions of the
United States. The final aggregate price for the purchased assets was $ 43. 7 million with $ 30. 8 million paid in cash at closing and the issuance
of 1, 792, 981 shares of common stock of the Company (based on a 60- day VWAP of § 7. 36), with a fair value of $ 12. 9 million based on the
share price of $ 8. 11 per share at closing and an 11. 5 % discount due to a lock- up restriction. In addition to the closing cash payment, the
Company separately acquired all of the sellers’ saleable product inventory, for approximately $ 24. 3 million of which approximately $ 6. 8
million was paid during the year ended December 31, 2021 and $ 17. 4 million was recorded in accounts payable on the consolidated balance
sheets as of December 31, 2021. The Company also acquired additional vehicles for approximately $ 0. 2 million. As such, the total acquisition
price for all operating assets and inventory was approximately $ 68. 2 million. The Company accounted for this transaction under ASC 805,
Business Combinations, by applying the acquisition method of accounting and established a new basis of accounting on the date of acquisition.
The assets acquired by the Company were measured at their estimated fair values as of the date of acquisition. Goodwill is calculated as the
excess of the purchase price over the net assets recognized and represent synergies and benefits expected as a result from combining operations
with an emerging national presence. For the year ended December 31, 2021, transaction costs for the acquisition totaled $ 0. 9 million and were
reflected in distribution, selling and administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive income (loss). The
information included herein has been prepared based on the allocation of the purchase price using estimates of the fair value of assets acquired
and liabilities assumed which were determined using a combination of quoted market prices, discounted cash flow, and other estimates made by
management. The following table presents the allocation of the total consideration paid to acquire the assets and liabilities of the Great Wall
Group: (In thousands) AmountInventory $ 24, 728 Property plant, and equipmentl, 537 Intangible assets30, 145 Total assets acquired56, 410
Goodwilll1, 745 Total consideration $ 68, 155 The Company recorded acquired intangible assets of $ 30. 1 million, which included tradenames
and trademarks of $ 10. 5 million, customer relationships of $ 17. 2 million and non- competition agreements of $ 2. 4 million. The fair value of
customer relationships was determined by applying the income approach utilizing the excess earnings methodology using Level 3 inputs
including a discount rate. The fair value of tradenames and trademarks was determined by applying the income approach utilizing the relief
from royalty methodology and Level 3 inputs including a royalty rate of 1 % and a discount rate. The fair value of non- competition agreements
was determined by applying the income approach using Level 3 inputs including a discount rate. Discount rates used in determining fair values
for customer relationships, tradenames and trademarks, and non- competition agreements ranged from 11. 5 % to 14. 0 %. The useful lives of
the tradenames and trademarks are ten years, customer relationships are ten years and non- compete agreements are three years, with a
weighted average amortization period of approximately nine years. The associated goodwill is deductible for tax purposes. See Note 9-8 -
Goodwill and Acquired Intangible Assets for additional information on acquired intangibles in the Great Wall Acquisition. Since the Great
Wall Acquisition occurred on December 30, 2021, the amounts of revenue and earnings of the Great Wall Group included in the Company’ s
consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive income (loss) from the acquisition date to December 31, 2021 were immaterial.
Unaudited Supplemental Pro Forma Financial Information The following table presents the Company’ s unaudited pro forma results for the
years ended December 31, 2022 and202 respeetively, as if the Great Wall Acquisition and the Sealand Acquisition had been consummated
on January 1, 2021. The unaudited pro forma financial information presented includes the effects of adjustments related to the amortization of
acquired intangible assets and excludes other non- recurring transaction costs directly associated with the acquisition such as legal and other
professional service fees. Statutory rates were used to calculate income taxes. (In thousands, except share and per share data) Yecar Ended
December 31, Hi-theusandsexeept-share-and-pershare-datay-2022202 1 Pro forma net revenue $ 1, 202,296 $ 1, 072, 653 Pro forma net income
attributable to HF Grewp-Foods $ 35 $ 33, 724 Pro forma fessy-carnings per common share — basw $§—S$o0. 65 Pro forma dessycarnings per
common share — diluted $ — $ 0. 65 Pro forma welghted averag,e shares —— basic53, 757, 19953, 706, 392Pro forma wel&hted average
5hdres -_— d11uted53 757 19953 809 020 he-rev e




257 /\equlsmon of Scahnd Food, Inc. 4, 861 Balance at Deccmbu 31, %92—2—202285 118 No Goodw1ll acthlty Balance at December 31,
2023 $ 85,118 /\Lcumuldtud lmpdlrmcnt for Uoodmll is S 338 2 mllllon as 01‘ beth—Duunbu 31, 2023 2022 dnd 2021. Tewafds—t-he—eﬂd—e-f

onigotng-volatih i h There is only one wd-repomng unit at Deeember
31,2023 and 2072 &nd%@%—l— -Bﬂe—te-As a result 0f the sustaiﬂed—deehﬂe—rn—Company s results of operations compared to previous
forecasts, combined with the level of the Company’ s stock price during2622-, the Company performed a quantitative goodwill impairment
assessment as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 . The fair value was determined using an average of the income diseeunted-eash-flew-approach,
comparable public company analysis, and comparable acquisitions analysis. The fair value of the reporting unit exceeded the carrying value,
and therefore the Company concluded no impairment was required to be recorded during the year ended December 31, 2023 and December
31, 2022. For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company performed a qualitative goodwill impairment assessment and concluded no
impairment was required to be recorded during the year ended December 31, 2021. The 2023 impairment test resulted in an estimated fair
value that exceeded carrying value by approximately 10 % at December 31, 2023. The most critical assumptions in determining fair
value using the income approach were projections of future cash flows such as forecasted revenue growth rates, gross profit margins,
and the discount rate. The market approaches were primarily impacted by an enterprise value multiple of EBITDA. A significant
change in these assumptions or a sustained decline in the Company’ s stock price could result in an interim impairment test and / or
potential goodwill impairment in the future. In connection with the Sealand acquisition, the Company acquired $ 14. 7 million of intangible
assets, primarily representing tradenames-and-trademarks and trade names of $ 4. 4 million, customer relationships of $ 8. 9 million and non-
compete agreements of $ 1. 4 million. The useful lives of the-tradenames-and-trademarks and trade names are ten years, customer
relationships are ten years and non- compete agreements are three years, with a weighted average amortization period of approximately nine
years. The associated goodwill is deductible for tax purposes. In connection with the Great Wall Group acquisition, HF Greup-Foods acquired
$ 30. 1 million of intangible assets, primarily representing a non- competition agreement, tradenames-trademarks and trade names and
customer relationships, which have an estimated amortization period of approximately 3 years, 10 years, and 10 years, respectively. In
connection with the acquisition of B & R Global in 2019 , HF Greup-Foods acquired $ 188. 5 million of intangible assets, primarily
representing tradenames-trademarks and trade names dﬂd customer relationships which have an estimated amortization period of 10 and 20
years, respectively. he-ntangible-assets-are-as ws=December 31, 2022Beeember-2023December 3 1, 2624-2022 (In
thousands)
GrossCarryingAmountAccumulated AmortizationNetCarryingAmountGrossCarryingAmountAccumulated AmortizationNetCarryingAmountNon-
competition agreement $ 3, 892 $ (2,429)$ 1,463 $3,892 $ (1, 132) $ 2, 760 $2407-$5—3$2,407 Frademarks44-- Trademarks and trade
names44, 207 (15, 045) 29 162 44 , 256 (10, 673) 33,583 -39—8—3—3—66—3493—3—3—484—(ust0mel relationships185, 266 ( 38, 085) 147, 181 185,
266 (27,518) 157, 748 +76;-408-3F 24115916+ Total $ 233, 365 $ (55, 559) $ 177, 806 $ 233, 414 § (39, 323) $ 194, 091 $248:-648-$-(23;
596)-$195,-652-The Company evaluated possible triggering events that would indicate long- lived asset impairment assessment. The Company
impaired its acquired developed technology and recognized impairment expense of $ 0. 4 million in distribution, selling and administrative
expenses in the consolidated statements of operations during the year ended December 31, 2022. There were no triggering events identified for
the remaining acquired intangible assets at December 31, 2022. No impairment was recorded against acquired intangible assets for the years
ended December 31, 2023 and 2021 and2626-. HF Greup-Foods * s-amortization expense for acquired intangible assets was $ 16. 3 million, $
15. 7 million and #26225-5 10. 9 million #-for the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021 , respectively and-$1+0-9-mithenin
2020-. The estimated future amortization expense for intangible assets is presented below: (In lhousands) AmountYear ending December 31,
2023-2024 $ 106, 285 2024146;285-202515, 152 202614, 987 202714, 987 202814, 987 FhereafterHH6— Thereafter101 , 395-408 Total $ 194
177 , 69+-806 Derivative Instruments The Company utilizes interest rate swaps (" IRS") for the sole purpose of mitigating interest rate
fluctuation risk associated with floating rate debt instruments (as defined in Note +4-10 - Debt). The Company does not use any other derivative
financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes. On August 20, 2019, HF Greup-Foods entered into two IRS contracts with East West
Bank (the" EWB IRS") for initial notional amounts of $ 1. 1 million and $ 2. 6 million, respectively. Fhe EWBIRS-eontraets-were-entered-into
m—eﬁﬂjﬁﬂeﬁﬁﬂ—vﬁﬂi-on Aprll 20, 2023 the Company amended the corresponding mortgage term loans, which pegged the two mortgage
S W 1- month HIBORphis-Term SOFR (Secured Overnight Financing Rate) 2.
2529 % pc1 annum for the eﬂt-rre-remalmng duration of the term loans. The amended EWB IRS contracts fixed the two term loans at 4. 23 %
per annum until maturity in September 2029. On December 19, 2019, HF Greup-Foods entered into an IRS contract with Bank of America (the"
BOA IRS") for an Il’lltld] notlonal amount of $ 2.7 million in (,()IUUHLTIOH with a newlv contr acted mortgdge term loan ofu)l respondlng amount.

eefres-peﬂd%&g—B-@ArI-R—S-eeﬂ&ﬁet—On December 19, 2021, the Company enteled into the Second Amendment to Loan Agreement which
pegged the mortgage term loan to Term Seeured-OvernightFinaneingRateSOFR 2. 5 %. The BOA IRS was modified accordingly to fix
the SOFR based loan to approximately 4. 50 %. The term loan and corresponding BOA IRS contract mature in December 2029. On Jure24
March 15 , 2626-2023 , HE-Groeup-the Company cntered into an amortizing aferward-starting-IRS contract with JPMorgan Chase Bank-(the"
FPMHRSY-for a-fixed-an initial notional amount of $ §6-120 . 0 million netienatameunt-, effective from Jure-36-March 1 , 26242023 and



expiring in March endunre-36;,2025-2028 . as a means to partially hedge its existing floating rate loans exposure. Pursuant to the agreement
Qﬂ—Mafeh—Zv%Qi’-l— the Lompany ﬁﬂWﬁﬁﬂd—WIll pay thc swap counterparty HM—I—R—S—The—eeﬁ&&et—was—uﬂweuﬂd-wﬂ-h-a fixed rate view-that

FROT v t4i-he—yie}d—eufve— 11 % in exchange
for ﬂoatmg payments based on Term SOFR

342624 The Company evaluated the aforementioned IRS contr'ictﬂ Cullently in place and d1d not deqlgnate tho%e as ca@h flow hedge@ Hence,
the fair value change on these IRS contracts are accounted for and recognized as a change in fair value of IRS contracts in the consolidated
statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss). As of December 31, 2022-2023 and-202+-, the Company determined that the fair
watwe-values of the IRS contracts were $ 0. 54 million in an asset position and $ 6-1 . 3-6 million in a liability position . As of December 31 ,
respeetively-2022 , whieh-ts-the fair values of the IRS contracts were $ 0. 5 million in an asset position. The Company ineluded-includes
these in other long- term assets and aeerted-expenses-and-other long- term liabilities, respectively, on the consolidated balance sheets. In
determining fair value, the Company utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of
unobservable inputs to the extent possible, as well as consider counterparty credit risk in its assessment of fair value. The inputs used to
determine the fair value of the IRS are classified as Level 2 on the fair value hierarchy. Long- term debt at December 31, 2023 and December
31, 2022 and202+-is summarized as follows: ($ in thousands) Bank NameMaturityInterest Rate at December 31, 2622Deeember
2023December 3 |, 2022Peeember-2023December 3 |, 2624 Bank-2022Bank of America (a) Mareh-October 2623-2026 - December 20293
20294 . 73-34 %- 5—7 86-95 % $2,3628 4,315 -$é—l—34—East West Bank (b) Au;bust 2()27 Scptunbcr %97”_’-94-20297 25—64 %- 49 . 46-00 %
5, 6755, 822 JPMorgan Chase 5;-994-FirstHorizonBank—(c) Paid-o y : ha
January 26366-20307 . +6-32 %- 6-7 . 22-44 9,106, 337 111, 714 -7-9—866-Othe1 flnance 1nst1tut10ns (e—d )Apﬁ-l—January 2—92—3—2024 -Mafeh
July 20245. 99 %- 6. +4-17 % 45 160 83FTotal debt, prmmpal ameunti22-amount114 , 419 122 . 011 8%-402-Lcss: Debt-debt issuance costs (
258) (302 334-) Total debt, carrying vateet2d— valuell4, 161 121 , 709 873681 ess: Guﬁeﬂt—current portion ( 5, 450) (6, 266 H555F)
Long- term debt $ 108, 711 $ 115, 443 $84-8H-(a) Loan balance consists of real estate term loan -and equipment term teans— loan ;-and
wehteletermtoans-, collateralized by one real property and specific equipment and-vehtetes- The real estate term loan is pegged to TERM
SOFR 2. 5 %. (b) Real estate term loans with East West Bank are collateralized by -feu-ﬁthree 1eal propemes Balloon pdyments of $ 1.8
million and $ 2. 9 million are due at matunty in 2027 and 2029 1e§pect1vely (c tred a-property—D4

mllllOIl as of December 31 2023 and $ 111.4 mllllon as of December 31, 2022 aﬁd—$—69—-8—ﬁa1ﬁteﬁ—as—e%9eeember—3H92—l—15 secured by
assets held by the Company and has a maturity date of January 2030. Equipment term loan with a principal balance of $ 0. 02 million as of
December 31,2023 and $ 0. 3 million as of December 31, 2022 and-$4—-0-mithon-as-ef Deeember34+:2624-is secured by specific vehicles and
equipment as defined in loan agreements. Equipment term -}Gaﬂh loan mature-matured in Febraary2023-and-December 2023 and retired
after December 31, 2023 with the final payment of remaining outstanding principal . ( e-d ) Secured by vehicles. The terms of the various
loan agreements related to long- term bank borrowings require the Company to comply with certain financial covenants, including, but not
limited to, a fixed charge coverage ratio and effective tangible net worth. As of December 31, 2622-2023 , the Company was in compliance
with its covenants. On March 31, 2022, the Company amended the JPM Credit Agreement , defined below, extending the Real Estate Term
Loan for five years. The amendment provides for an increase in the Real Estate Term Loan from $ 69. 0 million to $ 115. 0 million with a 1-
month SOFR plus a credit adjustment of 0. 1 % plus 1. 875 % per annum. The future maturities of long- term debt as of December 31, 2622
2023 are as follows: (In thousands) AmountYear ending December 31, 2023-2024 $ 6-5 , 450 266-20245-774-20255, 789-378 20265, $10-385
20277, 497-194 20285, 229 Thereafter99-Thereafter85 , 573-525 Total $ 424-114 , 709-161 Credit Facility On November 4, 2019, the
Company entered into a credit agreement with JPMorgan Chase BanlgNA=—(the “ JPM Credit Agreement ”’). The JPM Credit Agreement
provided for a $ 100. 0 million asset- secured revolving credit facility maturing on November 4, 2022, with an option to renew at the bank’ s
discretion. On January 17, 2020, the Company and certain of the wholly- owned subsidiaries and affiliates of the Company as borrowers, and
certain material subsidiaries of the Company as guarantors, entered into the Second Amended Credit Agreement (“ Second Amended Credit
Agreement ). On December 30, 2021, the Company entered into the Consent, Waiver, Joinder and Amendment No. 3 to the Second Amended
Credit Agreement with JPMorgan Chase , as Administrative Agent, and certain lender parties thereto, including Comerica Bank. The Second
Amended Credit Agreement, as amended, provided for (i) a $ 100. 0 million asset- secured revolving credit facility maturing on November 4,
2022 (the “ Revolving Facility ™), (i) mortgage- secured term loan of § 75. 6 million, (the “ Term Loan ), and (iii) amendment in the
referenced interest rate from 1- month LIBOR to 1- month Secured Overnight Financing Rate (" SOFR") plus a credit adjustment of 0. 1 %
(difference between LIBOR and SOFR plus 1. 375 % per annum). The existing revolving credit facility balance under the Second Amended
Credit Agreement, was rolled over to the Revolving Facility on December 30, 2021. On the same day, the Company utilized an additional $ 33.
3 million drawdown from the Revolving Facility to fund the Great Wall Acquisition. The Second Amended Credit Agreement, as amended,
contains certain financial covenants, including, but not limited to, a fixed charge coverage ratio and-effeetive-tangible-netwerth- On March 31,
2022, the Company amended the JPM Credit Agreement extending the Revolver Facility for five years, with a maturity date of November 4,
2027. The amendment provides for a $ 100. 0 million asset- secured revolving credit facility with a one- month SOFR plus a credit adjustment
of 0. 1 % plus 1. 375 % per annum. As of Deeember 31, 2—9%2—2023 the Compdny was in complldnce w1th its covenants —Bﬂﬂ-ﬂg—t-he—yeaf

J-a-nuafy—3—1—292—3— The outqtandmg prmc1pa1 balance on the lme of c1ed1t as of December 31, %92—2—2023 was $ 5—3—58 -1—6 million and
outstanding letters of credit amounted to $ 3. 8 million leaving access to approximately $ 37. 6 million in additional funds through our $
100. 0 million line of credit, subject to a borrowing base calculation. Subsequent to December 31, 2023, on February 6, 2024, the
Company amended the JPM Credit Agreement to (i) remove a cap on permitted indebtedness in respect of capital lease obligations,
subject to certain enumerated conditions; (ii) create a reserve on the borrowing base, which will be reduced on a dollar- for- dollar
basis once the Company has made expenditures in excess of such amount relating to the development and construction of certain real
property, and which amounts shall be excluded from certain financial covenants under the JPM Credit Agreement and; (iii) remove
certain sublease income from various financial covenants . Note +42-11 - Earnings (Loss) Per Share The Company computes earnings per
share (“ EPS ”) in accordance with ASC Topic 260 (“ ASC 260 ), Earnings per Share. ASC 260 requires companies with complex capital
structures to present basic and diluted EPS. Basic EPS is measured as net income divided by the weighted average common shares outstanding
for the period. Diluted EPS is similar to basic EPS, but presents the dilutive effect on a per share basis of potential common shares (e. g.,
convertible securities, options, warrants and restricted stock) as if they had been converted at the beginning of the periods presented, or issuance
date, if later. Potential common shares that have an anti- dilutive effect (i. e., those that increase income per share or decrease loss per share) are
excluded from the calculation of diluted EPS. There were 44-862 , 260-182, 348, 610 and ne-130, 668 potential common shares related to



performance- based restricted stock units and restricted stock units that were excluded from the calculation of diluted EPS for the year-years
Llld(,d Ducmbu 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021 respectlvely, because lhur cllcu w ould have bcun anti- dllllll\(, ¥hefe—wefe-62—9%6-aﬂd-ﬁe-&m-r-

d 6 on 3 a 3 ptts— T he following
table sets forth the computatlon of basic dlld diluted EPS: Yedl bnded Decembel al (5 in thousands except share and per shdle data)
202220212020Numerator—--- 202320222021 Numerator : Net (loss) income éless)—attnbumble to HF Foods Group Inc. $ (2, 174) $ 460 §$ 22,
145 $343;-542y-Denominator: Weighted- average common shares outstanding53, 878, 237 53, 757, 162 51, 918, 323 52,-895,-585-Effect of
dilutive seeuritiestH06---- securities — 106 , 286 173, 499 —Weighted- average dilutive shares outslanduwa% 878, 237 53, 863, 448 52, 091,
822 52-095-585-Farnings (fess-Loss ) per common share: Basic $ (0.04)$0.01$0. 43 Diluted $ (60 .59-04 ) Bhuted-$ 0. 01 $ 0. 43 -$-(6—
593-The provision (benefit) for income taxes of the Company for the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 ;-and 2021 and-26268-consists of the
following: Year Ended December 31, (In thousands) 202220242020Current—--- 202320222021 Current : Federal $ 4,237 $ 3, 62089, 044 §
Statel, 219 |1 - 245-Statet-, 161 2, 329 (54)-Current income taxes4-taxesS , 456 4 , 781 11, 373 :,49H-Deferred income benefit: Federal (4,
550) (4,321) (2, 823) & HP-State ( 865) (691) (4, 047 HZ999-) Du‘crrcd income benefit: (5, 415) (5, 012) (6, 870) £5;946)-Total income tax
expense (beneht) $ 41 previstenforineometaxesS$ (231) § 4, 503 $4;725)-The Company' s effective income tax rates for the years ended
December 31, 2023, 2022 sand 2021 and20268-were (1. 6) %, (5, 148.7) % sand 16. 6 Y%andd-—4-"%, respectively. The determination of the
Company’ s overall effective income tax rate requires the use of estimates. The effective income tax rate reflects the income earned and taxed
in U. S. federal and various state jurisdictions basa,d on enacted tax law, pumam,nl differences between book and tax items, change in

valuatlon allowance, tax credits and the C ompan) Lhan% in relative i income in mch |un 15dmt10n —Due-to-the-ehanges-in-the-Company-s

e#feeﬁ*eﬁx—rafe—fer—ﬂ%e—yeafeﬁde&)eeembeﬁl—l@%%— ( han%s in tax la\x S and rates may affect lu.Olde dulcrrcd tax assets and 11ablllms
and the Company’ s (,HLLII\(, income tax rate in the future. The C ompanv hds no opuallons oulxldc the U. S., as such, no 101um income tax
\MISILLOIde et rees-and-ea A y e ax-assets-and-Ha e&s

%%MMMW%RQLOHU]MHOHS of the statutory income tax rate to the eﬁecm ¢ income tax Idte are
as follows: Year Ended December 31, %922%92—1—29%9%&&&1———— 202320222021Federal statutory tax rate (21 %) 21. 0 % 21. 0 % 21. 0 % State

statutory tax rate3— rate (13.9) % 3, 963.2 % 5. 8 % 6-U. S permanent differences (8 . 7 ) % ImpaetofgoodwiHmpairmenttoss—
pefm&ﬁeﬂt—d-rffefeaee—zm 1% 1. 9 % Noncontrolllng 1nterestsS 5% 3,164. 6 % — % Officers’ compensation ( 20-12 . 5) %H-S

! 64—6-"% — % — % Rate change — % (2 566.3) % (13.7) % Return
to prov1s10n21 6 % — % % Change in valuatlon allowance (35 9) % — % — % Tax credits6. 7 % — % — % Uncertain tax pesitiens
p0s1t10ns14 9% (1() 573.0) % 0. 6 % Stock compensation (6. 6) % — % Other634— % Payable adjustments6 0 % — % — % Other0.
3% 634 .7 9% 1.0 % 6-Effective tax rate (1 . 2-6) % Ineemetax{benefityrproviston(5, 148. 7) % 16. 6 % Temporary differences and
carryforwards of the Company that created significant deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows: (In thousands) December 31,
2023December 31, 2022Deferred tax assets: Allowance for expected credit losses $ 523 $ 301 Inventoriesl, 216 | —, 185 Equity
compensation552 467 Compensation related accruals984 1, 031 Guarantee liability1, 326 1, 528 Fair value change in interest rate swap
contracts233 — Leases5, 325 6, 553 Accrued expenses902 304 Interest expense limitation415 — Equity investments80 — Net operating
loss carryovers706 38 Other49 — Total deferred tax assets12, 311 11, 407 Deferred tax liabilities: Property and equipment ( 4 %The-,
588) (5, 845) Intangible assets (32, 959) (35, 740) Right of use assets (3, 069) (3, 466) Equity investments — (649) Fair value change in
interest rate swap contracts — (150) Total deferred tax liabilities (40, 616) (45, 850) Less: Valuation allowance (723) — Net deferred
tax liabilities $ (29, 028) $ (34, 443) As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company kas-had $ 3. 0 million and no federal net operating
loss (" NOL") carryovers , respectively, with and-- an $-0-indefinite carryforward period . 8-millien-As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the
Company had state NOL carryovers as-of $ 2. 2 million and $ 0. 8 million, which will begin to expire in 2038. As of December 31, 2022
2023 —State-, the Company has established a full valuation allowance against the NOL carryovers eanrrelated to the Company’ s
subsidiary, HFFI which was recorded through income tax expense. In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management
considers whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will be realized earried-forward-indefinitely
. The ultimate realization Approximately-$2-0-millien-of totalstate NOL-earryovers-werettilized-deferred tax assets is dependent upon
the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary differences become deductible. During the year
ended December 31, 2022-2023 , management concluded that with the exception of certain deferred taxes attributable to the Company’ s
subsidiary, HFFI, it was more likely than not that the Company would be able to realize the benefit of the deferred tax assets in the
future. We based this conclusion on historical and projected operating performance, as well as our expectation that our operations will
generate sufficient taxable income in future periods to realize the tax benefits associated with the deferred tax assets. Management has
established a valuation allowance against certain deferred taxes attributable to the Company' s subsidiary, HFFI. Management believes
the realization of these deferred tax assets will be limited as the Company exited HFFI operations during the year ended December 31,
2023. As such, the Company has recorded a valuation allowance of $ 0. 7 million on the deferred tax assets of HFFI . Unrecognized Tax
Benefits Year Ended December 31, (In thousands) 202220242026Fetal----- 202320222021 Total unrecognized tax benefits on January 1, $ 350
$ 752 $ 752 $-646-Decrease related to positions taken on items from prior years ( 244) (402) —— Increase related to positions taken in the
current year — — +96— Total unrecognized tax benefits on December 31, $ 106 $ 350 $752-$ 752 It is reasonably possible that $ 0. 2-1
million of the total uncertain tax benefits w 111 reverse w 1thm the next 12 months and —"Fhe—tetal—ameuﬂt—e%tmfeeegﬂﬂed-tax—beﬂeﬁts—th&t—w ould
affect the effective tax rate if recognized 48
respeetively-. Due to the statute of l1m1tallons u(pmnu llu, unruoum/cd tax ]lab1l1t\ 101 lhg tax year cndud Duu,mbu 31, 2—9-1—8—2019 was
reversed, which was recorded in income tax (benefit) previstorrexpense on the consolidated financial statements, in the ametnts— amount of $
0. 4-2 million as-ef-during the year ended December 31, 2622-2023 . As of December 31, 2023 and 2022 and-262+, the Company had
accrued penalties of $ 17, 000 and $ 50 -000-and-$-93- 000, respectively and accrued interest of $ 10, 000 and $ 34 -000-ard-$-62- 000,
respectively. During the year ended December 31, 2822-2023 , the Company reversed accrued penalties and accrued interest of $ 43-28 , 000
and § 28-39 , 000, respectively. The Company recognized the reversal of interest accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits and penalties as
income tax benefit. The Company is subject to taxation in the United States and various states. As of December 31, 2022-2023 , tax years for
26492020 through 2824-2022 are subject to examination by the tax authorities. The Company makes regular purchases from and sales to




various related parties. Related party affiliations were attributed to transactions conducted between the Company and those business entities
partially or wholly owned by the Company, the Company' s officers and / or shareholders who owned no less than 10 % shareholdings of the
Company. Mr. Xiao Mou Zhang (“ Mr. Zhang ), the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and certain of his immediate family
(collectively greater than 10 % shareholders) have ownership interests in various related parties involved in (i) the distribution of food
and related products to restaurants and other retailers and (ii) the supply of fresh food, frozen food, and packaging supplies to
distributors. Mr. Zhang does not have any involvement in negotiations with any of the above- mentioned related parties. The Company
believes that Mr. Zhou Min Ni (“ Mr. Ni ) , and-Mr—2hangwere-thc Company’ s former Co- Chief Executive Offteers— Officer as-of
Deeember3+-, 2620-and20+9—-together with various trusts for the benefit of Mr. Ni 's four children subseguently-resignedfromat-ofhis
offieial-posts-onFebruary23-, 202+ Mr—Zhang-beeame-are collectively beneficial owners of more than 10 % of the outstanding shares of
the Company’ s common stock, and the— he sele-ChiefExeentiveMe—Niand certain of his immediate family members are-treated-as-have
ownership interests in reclated partics fer-purpeses-involved in (i) the distribution of food and related products to restaurants and this
report-beeatse-MrNiHs-a-prineipal-holderof the-other Company sseeuritiesretailers and (ii) the supply of fresh food, frozen food, and
packaging supplies to distributors . For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, North Carolina Good Taste Noodle, Inc. (% NC
Noodle *”') is-was disclosed as a related party due to Mr. Jian Ming Ni' s, a former Chief Financial Officer of the Company, continued
ownership interest in NC Noodle. RevelationrIndustey-As of January 1 , H6O-and BRGR-were-alse-2023, NC Noodle is no longer considered
Uneenselidated-V1Es-a related party since it as-has élseﬁssed—fuﬁheﬁﬁrNefe%——\#afwb}e—}mefest—En&tres-been three years since Mr. Jian
Ming Ni resigned from the Company . The related party transactions as of December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022 and-262+-and for the
years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 ;-and 2021 and-2626-are identified as follows: Related Party Sales, Purchases, and Lease Agreements
Below is a summary of purchases of goods and services from related parties recorded for the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021 5
and2020-, respectively: Year Ended December 31, (In thousands) Netare202226242020—--- Nature202320222021 (a) Conexus Food
Solutions AdstateTrading-Company; Tne—TFrade-$—$—3$309- b)y-formerly as Best Food Services, HEEFradet0-LLC) Trade $ 8,581 $ 10
,514 8, 341 57836-( eb ) Eagle Food Services, LLCTrade — — 4 +84( a-¢ ) Eastern Fresh NJ, H=€Fraded— LLCTrade — 1 . 093 5, 509 4;
—599—( ac ) Enson Greup-Seafood GA | Inc. (formerly as-Ensen-Group-“ GA- GW Seafood , H=C-Inc. ” ) Frade-Trade37 — 128 -1-43—(d) First
Choice Seafood, Inc. Fraded34--- Trade — 134 322 455+(d) Fujian RongFeng Plastic Co., EtdFrade372--- LtdTrade — 372 3, 108 3;-647( e
¢ ) Hanfeng Fajtanm)-Information Technology €e—(Jinhua) , Etd-Inc . Service %@%ﬁa}g—kﬁm&ﬂeﬁﬁe&mﬁ%@gf&kﬁhﬁa}—h&
W122 +435(ac )N & F Logistics, Inc. Trade — — 3 369+ £e ) North Carolina Good Taste Noodle, Inc. FradeFTradeN /A7 , 227
5, 520 37986~ a-¢ ) Ocean Pacific Seafood Group, Inc. Frade589-Trade381 589 452 568~ gf ) Revolution Industry s EECTrade—190-2;362
fa)—HGO—H—SA—I-ne—Pra&e—Z—H—M(h)—Hmeﬂ—Feeds— LLCTrade — — 4190 (¢) UGO USA , 247Inc. Trade — — 212 OtherFrade332—--
OthersTrade205 332 133 99-Total $9,204 S 20, 261 § 24, 044 $26;:362-(a) An MeNi-ewns-an-cquity interest inrthis-entity-is held by three
Irrevocable Trusts for the benefit of Mr. Zhang' s children . (b) Tina Ni, one of Mr. Zkang-previousty-ewned-Zhou Min Ni’ s family
members, owns an equity interest in this Lntlty mdlrcctly thlough its pamnt compdny as-of-Oetober34;2020-. This-(c) Mr. Zhou Min Ni owns
an equity interest in this entity. (d) was of Mr. Zhou Min Zhang-s-ehitdren-effeetive
Nevember 2020y Fina-Ni —eﬂe—M’—s—f&ﬁ&l-y—membefs—owns an equity interest in this entity indirectly through its parent company. (
arelated-party-previously owned an equity in this entity as of J-aﬁu&fy—l—%@%—s-mee—rt—lz / 31 /2019.The Company has been mformed by

three-years-sinee-Mr. Jian-Zhou Ming-- Min Ni that his equity interest was g
been-disetosed-disposed of on 1/1 /2020 .( £g ) Raymond Ni,one of Mr. %heu—Mm—Nl ‘rdmlly mcmbcrs owmd an cqulty interest in tlm

entity.On February 25,2021,the Company executed an asset purchase agreement to acquire the machinery and equipment of Revolution
Industry, LLC (" RIL").The Company acquired substantially all of the operating assets used or held for use in such business operation for the
amount of $ 250,000 plus the original wholesale purchase value of all verified,useable cabbage and egg roll mix inventory of RIL.Advances due
from RIL at the time of transaction were an offset to the purchase price paid to RIL.Going forward,the Company has taken the egg roll
plOduLthﬂ busmess in housc and Leased its \endm relanonshlp with RIL. Below-is-asummary-(h) Tina Ni,one of Mr.Ni’ s family members

, d) Serviee; HEE879-2;:864-4;605-(e)-Eastern Fresh NJ,LLC — — 155 5662
e—d ) Emon (noup Inc. ([‘01mgrly as Emon (noup LLC) — — 101 368« d ey EnsenPhiladelphia;lne——26-(e-) Enson Seafood GA,Inc.

(formerly as GA- GW Seafood,Inc.) — — 573 493+ £e ) First Choice Seafood,Inc. 31 35 99 ;378 £e ) Fortune One Foods,Inc. 42 115 418
3H-(ed ) Heng Feng Food Services,Inc.—— 163 669 e-d ) N & F Logistics,Inc. 6 40 531 +5627-(f) Union Food LLC27 — — Others—
Other — — 13 H6-Total $5,845 $ 6,942 $ 9,055 $43-(b) The Company , 368-through its subsidiary MF,owns an equity interest in this

entity. (a-c ) MrZhang-Tina Ni,one of Mr. Zhou Min Ni’s famlly members, owns an equ1ty mtelest in this entlty mdlrectly thr ough its
parent company. (e-d ) Mr. Zhou Min Ni p P

M%—@—Mﬁaﬂ&mg—Nhfeﬁﬁe%@h%e%Fmaﬂeﬁ@fﬁeeﬁm ns an equity interest in lhls Lnllly (e) Mr. Zhou Mm N1 prcvnously owm,d an

equity in this entity....... Ni’ s family members, owns an equity interest in thlb entlty ....... a) Mr. Zhang previously owned an equity interest in
this entity indirectly through its parent LOlnpdllyas-e{'—OefebeHHG%G- h iterest-was-transferred hreetrrevoeableTFrusts h
benefitof Mr—Zhang' s-ehildreneffeetive November ;2020 b

facilities to related p‘illl(,@ Thc (ompmy le%ud a [1c1111y to NC Noodle undc1 an opcratmg lease aglecmgm orlglnally LXplllllg in 2024. Thg
lease agreement was terminated in connection with the sale of the facility on November 3, 2021. The building and related land swas-were sold to
NC Noodle for $ 0. 8 million and a gain of $ 0. 5 million. Rental income for the years— year ended December 31, 2021 and2020-was $ 42, 000
. which is included in other income in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss).
The Compdny leased a mullty to UGO USA Inc. under an operating lease agreement which was mutually terminated by both parties effective
April 1,2021. Rental income for the years— year ended December 31, 2021 and2026-was § 7, 000 and-$42,-000;respeetively-, which is
included in other income in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss). The Company leased a facility to
iUnited Services, LLC (" iUnited"), which kas-had been determined to be a related party due to the equity ownership interest in iUnited of Mr.
Jian Ming Ni, the Company' s former Chief Financial Officer. The lease agreement was terminated in connection with the sale of the facility on
November 3, 2021. The building and related land was sold to iUnited for $ 1. 5 million and a gain of $ 0. 8 million. Rental income for the years
- year ended December 31, 2021 ard2020-was $ 50, 000 and-$25;-000,respeetively-, which is included in other income in the consolidated
statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss). The C ompany leased a warehouse to Enson Seafood GA Inc. (formerly GA- GW

Scafood Inc. ) undu an opu atmU ]LdbL aucumnt orlgmally prnmg on SLptcmer 21, 2027 Reﬂta-l—meeme—feﬁﬂae—wafs—eﬁded—]?eeembeﬁ-l—




a 559—On May 18, 2022, the Company sold the warehouse to Enson Seafood GA Inc. ;&
fe}afed—paft—y—lol approxumm,ly $7.2 mllllon I(,Log;,nl/\,d a gain of $ 1. 5 million and used a portion of the proceeds to pay the outstanding
balance of the Company's § 4. 5 million loan with First Horizon Bank . Rental income for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 was
$ 0. 2 million and $ 0. 5 million, respectively, which is included in other income in the consolidated statements of operations and
comprehensive income (loss) . The Company leased a production area to Revolution Industry, LLC under a § 3, 000 month- to- month lease
agreement. The lease agreement was terminated as a result of the asset purchase aLlu.anl LXL(.UI(.C] on l‘ebluar) 25, 7()71 Renlal income
ILLOIde for lhc yeafs— year Lndcd December 31, 2()2] &ﬂd—E-G%G—was $6 an hteh-is-ne roth

%e%aﬁu&ﬁ—l-é—Z—Q%@—W&s%—l-SS— ()( () w hl(,h is meluded in other income in the consolldated stalements ol opuatlons and n,ompu,hensl\e income
(loss). In 2020, the Company renewed a warehouse lease from Yoan Chang Trading Inc. under an operating lease agreement which expired on
December 31, 2020. In February 2021, the Company executed a new five- year operating lease agreement with Yoan Chang Trading Inc.,
effective January 1, 2021 and expiring on December 31, 2025. Rent ineurred-expense was $ 0. 3 million, $ 0. 3 million and § 0. +3 million for
the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021 ard-2020-, respectively, which is included in Distributien-distribution , sclling and
administrative expenses in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss). Beginning 2014, the Company
leased a warehouse to Asahi Food, Inc. under a commercial lease agreement which was rescinded March 1, 2020. A new commercial
lease agreement for a period of one year was entered into, expiring February 28, 2021, with a total of four renewal periods with each
term being one year. Rental income was $ 0. 1 million, $ 0. 1 million and $ 0. 1 million for the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and
2021, respectively, which is included in other income in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss). Related
Party Balances Accounts Receivable- Related Parties, Net Below is a summary of accounts receivable with related parties recorded as of
December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022 and2024- respectively: (In thousands) December 31, 2022Deeember-2023December 3 |, 2624+
2022 (a) ABC Food Trading, LLC $ 94 $ — $76-(b) Asahi Food, Inc. 69 81 72-(a) Conexus Food Solutions (formerly as Best Food
Services, LLC) 84 — (c) Eagle l~00d Service, HEE69—- LLC -1-6-— 69 (d) l:nson Seafood (JA Inc. (formml) as GA- GW Seafood, Inc.) 59 24
59 (e) Fortune One Foods, Inc. sFen s1n a 6
Union Food LLC2 — Total $ 308 $ 2 1 3 $%49— d—c ) Tina Nl, one 0f MI Zhou Mm Ni’s famlly members, m—aﬂ-equft—y—mtems{—m—t-h-ts
entity—e)yMr—N+owns an equity interest in this entity indirectly through its parent company. (f) Tina Ni, one of Mr. Zhou Min Ni’ s family
members, owns an equity interest in this entity. The Company has reserved for 86-100 % of the accounts receivable for Union Food LLC
as of December 31, 2023. The Company has reserved for 100 % of the accounts receivable for Enson Seafood GA, Inc . as of December 31 ,
aH-2023. This outstanding balance was reserved for 80 % as of December 31, 2022. All other accounts receivable from these related parties
are current and considered fully collectible. No ether-additional allowance is deemed necessary as of December 31, 2023 and December 31,
2022 and2624-. Accounts Payable- Related Parties All the accounts payable to related parties are payable upon demand without interest. Below
is a summary of accounts payable with related parties recorded as of December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022 and-2021- respectively: (In
thousands) December 31, 2022Deeember-2023December 3 |, 20242022 (a) Conexus Food Solutions (formerly as Best Food Services, LLC)
$379 $ 729 $699-(b )—Eaﬁem—Ffesh—PH—bb%%(e)—Fﬁﬁm—ReﬂgFeﬁg&l}&m&Ge—Hd—EQ{d-) North Carolina Good Taste Noodle, Inc.
N / —7-3—1—A731 595—9t-he1=369-0ther518 46—69 Total $ 397 H2-9—§ 1, 94-1—529 b) No longer considered a related party y-Mr—7Zhang

v ; neliree h eompany-as of Qefeber—Bv-l—January 1, %9%9—2023 smce it has

{d)—\/h ]ldll ]\/llng7 Ni res1gned from the Company As a result 2023 amounts have not been dlsclosed fbﬂﬁef—@h-lef—F—tﬁﬂﬂeﬂﬂ-@fﬁeefm&
anequity-interestinthis-entity-. Promissory Note Payable- Related Party The Company issued a $ 7. 0 million Ynseeured-unsecured
Subefd-m&ted—subordlnated Pfeﬂﬂsseﬂhpromlssory Nefe—note (LPremisseﬁ—Nefel)-to B & R Group Realty Holdmg, LLC (“ BRGR ”) -

here-is leased prlmarlly to

ﬂe—pfepajﬁeﬁt—pena-}ty—sheﬂ-}d-the ( ompany and is owned partlally by Mr. Zhang e&eet—te—pfepay—ﬁae—pfmerpal—m—p&ﬁ—eﬁm—fuﬂ—pﬁeﬁe

. During the year ended December 31, 2022,




Based Compcnsauon Thc Company has a slock bascd meloycg compcnsauon plan known as lhc HF Foods Group Inc 2018 Ommbus Equity
Incentive Plan (the *“ 2018 Incentive Plan ). The 2018 Incentive Plan allows for up to 3, 000, 000 shares of common stock reserved for issuance
of'awards to employees, non- employee directors, and consultants. The 2018 Incentive Plan provides for the grant of incentive stock options,
non- statutory stock options, restricted stock awards, restricted stock unit awards, stock appreciation rights, other stock awards, and performance
awards that may be settled in stock, or other property. The Company began issuing awards under the 2018 Incentive Plan in February 2021. As
of December 31, 26222023 , the Company had 598-810 , 325-944 time- based vesting restricted stock units (* RSUs ”) unvested, 382-665 , 662
932 performance- based restricted stock units (“ PSUs ”’) unvested, 462-531 , 536-222 shares of common stock vested and +-991 , 902 856;-563
shares remaining available for future awards under the 2018 Incentive Plan. RSUs granted to employees vest over time based on continued
service (vesting over a period between one to three years in equal installments). PSUs granted to employees vest based on (i) the attainment of
certain financial metrics, as defined by the Company' s compensation committee (“ Financial PSUs ) and (ii) for the 2021 grants, total
shareholder return of the Company’ s common stock (“ TSR PSUs ). Both types of PSUs vest over three years in equal installments based on
the performance metrics established for each year and also require continued service for vesting. A summary of RSU and PSU activity for the
year ended December 31, 2022-2023 is as follows: SharesWeighted Average Grant Date Fair ValueUnvested RSUs at December 31, 2624352
2022598 . 920-325 § 6-19-Granted424:386-5. 04-39 Granted520, 248 3. 86 Forfeited (36-54 ,322-589 ) 6-4 . 4294 Vested (442-253 . 659-040
)6-5 . 69-45 Unvested RSUs at December 31, 2622598-2023810 , 325-5-944 4 . 39-43 SharesWeighted Average Grant Date Fair ValueUnvested
PSUs at December 31, 2024443-2022382 , 278-662 $ 4. 95 Granted441, 288 3. 86 Forfeited (38, 926) 4. 19 Vested (119, 092) 5. 94
Gfaﬂfed%@%—Eé%—‘l—?é—Feffeﬁed—W—@%%é#%—Vested—(—w F85H-F39-Unvested PSUs at December 31, 2622382-2023665 , 662-932 4. 95-23
The weighted- average grant date fair value per share of RSUs granted during the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022, and 2021 was
$ 3.86, % 5.04 and $ 5. 22, respectively. The weighted- average grant date fair value per share of PSUs granted during the years ended
December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021 was $ 3. 86, $ 4. 76 and $ 4. 94, respectively. The total fair value of equity based awards that vested
during the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021 was $ 1. 5 million, $ 0. 8 million and zero, respectively. The Company accounts
for stock- based compensation in accordance with ASC Topie 718 Compensation- Stock Compensation (“ ASC 718 ). ASC 718 addresses all
forms of share- based payment awards including shares issued under employee stock purchase plans and stock incentive shares. The fair value
of the RSUs and Financial PSUs are measured using the closing price of the Company’ s common stock on NASDAQ Global Capital Market
on the date preceding grant date. The fair value of the TSR PSUs are determined using a Monte Carlo simulation model. No TSR PSUs were
granted during the year-years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022. The assumptions used to estimate the fair value of the TSR PSUs granted
during the years— year ended December 31, 2021 and valued under the Monte Carlo simulation model were as follows: 2021 PSU GrantsRisk-
free interest rate0. 20 %- 0. 34 % Expected dividend yield0. 00 % Expected term (years) 2. 56- 3. 15Expected volatility (1) 62. 08 %- 65. 74 %
(1) Expected volatility is based on a 50 / 50 blending of (i) the average historical volatility of a select group of industry peers with a look- back
period equal to the expected term, and (ii) the historical volatility of the Company with a look- back period of 0. 75 years- 1. 17 years, the time
from the valuation date to the date six months after the completion of the merger with B & R Global, using daily stock prices. The expected
volatility of peer companies was 54. 96 % — 63. 45 %. The expected volatility of the Company' s common stock was 66. 10 % — 69. 19 %. The
fair value of RSUs are amortized on a straight- line basis over the requisite service period for each award. For the PSUs, the Company
recognizes stock- based compensation expense on a straight- line basis for each vesting tranche over the longer of the derived, explicit, or
implicit service period for the vesting tranche. As of interim and annual reporting periods, the Financial PSUs stock- based compensation
expense is adjusted based on expected achievement of performance targets, while TSR PSUs stock- based compensation expense is not
adjusted. The Company recognizes forfeitures as they occur. Stock- based compensation expense is included in distribution, selling and
administrative expenses in the Company' s consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss). The components of stock-
based compensation expense for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 and 2021 were as follows: Year Ended December 31, (In
thousands) 20222024Steek-202320222021Stock - based compensation (RSUs) expense $2, 118 $ 897 $ 405 Stock- based compensation
(PSUs) expense366-expensel , 234 360 230 Total stock- based compensation expense $ 3,352 $ 1, 257 $ 635 Tax benefit of stock- based
compensation expense $ 931 $ 366 § 132 As of Ferthe-yearended-December 31, 2020-2023 ;there-wasno-steek—based-compensation-expense-
As-ef Deeember314;2022-, there was $ 4. 2 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to all non- vested outstanding RSUs and
PSUs outstanding under the 2018 Incentive Plan, with a weighted average remaining service period of 2-1 . 8-82 years. Of the total
unrecognized compensation cost, $ 2. 73 million is related to RSUs with time- based vesting provisions and $ 1. 59 million is related to PSUs
with performance and market- based vesting provisions. Note +6-15 - Employee Benefit Plan The Company sponsors a defined contribution
plan, the HF Foods Group, Inc. Employees 401 (k) Savings Plan (the “ 401 (k) Plan ”). Under the 401 (k) Plan, after six-one senths— month of
service, eligible employees may elect to defer up to 92-100 % of their compensation before taxes, up to the dollar limit imposed by the Internal
Revenue Service for tax purposes. The Company matches 100 % of the-first-an eligible employee’ s contributions, dollar for dollar, up to 3
% of eligible pay, the-partieipant—s-deferredeompensationplus 50 % of the-amount-eontributed-betweernreach additional dollar greater than

% and no more than 5% of ellglble pay fhe—p&rtterp&nt—s—éefefred—eeﬂq&eﬂs&&eﬂ— 401 (k) Plan pdrthldeltS are 1mmed1ately vestin

semee—saeh—th&t—t:he—p&mefpaﬂfs—beeeme—l 00 % vcstcd a-fteﬁsx—)eye&rs—e-f—&eﬁaee—ln the Company S non- dlscretlonary contrlbutlons to the
plan . For the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 --and 2021 and2626-, the Company recognized expensed— expense of $ 831, 000, $ 432,
000 rand $ 240, 000 and-$25;,-000-, rebpectlvely, and-werereeorded-in distribution, selling and administrative expenses —Nete+7=
Commitments-in the consolidated statements of operations and Centingenetes-comprehensive income (loss). From time to time, the
Company is a party to various lawsuits, claims and other legal proceedings that arise in the ordinary course of business. When the Company
becomes aware of a claim or potential claim, it assesses the likelihood of any loss or exposure. In accordance with authoritative guidance, the
Company records loss contingencies in its financial statements only for matters in which losses are probable and can be reasonably estimated.
Where a range of loss can be reasonably estimated with no best estimate in the range, the Company records the minimum estimated liability. If
the loss is not probable or the amount of the loss cannot be reasonably estimated, the Company discloses the nature of the specific claim if the
likelihood of a potential loss is reasonably possible and the amount involved is material. The Company continuously assesses the potential
liability related to its pending litigation and revises— revise its estimates when additional information becomes available. Adverse outcomes in
some or all of these matters may result in significant monetary damages or injunctive relief against the Company that could adversely affect its
ability to conduct #ts-business. There also exists the possibility of a material adverse effect on the Company’ s financial statements for the




period in which the effect of an unfavorable outcome becomes probable and reasonably estimable. As-previeusty-diselosed-Legal costs
associated with loss contingencies are expensed as incurred. Certain factual findings were made based on evidence adduced by the
Special Investigation Committee during its internal investigation. After the conclusion of its internal investigation , inMareh2020-the
Special Investigation Committee also made recommendations to management regarding improvements to Company operations and
structure , including but not limited to its dealings with related parties. The Company has implemented numerous improvements and
continues to improve its comphance program The Company has also 1nstltuted tructural changes lncludlng the appomtment of an
independent Chairman of analy g
aHegations-Board to replace the former Co— Chlef Executlve Ofﬁcer and Chalrman of the Board In addltlon as of January 31, 2023,
three other independent directors serve on the Company’ s Board of Directors appeinted-. The Company’ s senior executive team now
includes a General Counsel and Chief Compliance Officer, a Chief Operations Officer who was hired in May 2022, and a new Chief
Financial Officer who joined the Company in August 2022. We also hired a Vice President and Head of Internal Audit in April 2022
who reports directly to the Chief Financial Officer and to the Audit Committee Chair. In November 2022, we hired a Vice President of
Compliance and Associate General Counsel, who reports directly to the General Counsel and Chief Compliance Officer. The Company
also created a Special Litigation Committee ofndependent-which determined to pursue claims against certain former officers and
Direeters-directors . As a result, pursuant to the previously disclosed settlement agreement ( as amended on November 1, 2023, the “
Settlement Agreement SpeetaHnvestigation-Committee-) to-eonduet-between the Company an-and internal-independent-certain parties to
the verified stockholder derivative complaint filed by James Bishop in the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware, on October 16,
2023, the Company received $ 1. 5 million on behalf of Zhou Min Ni, a former Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
and Chan Sin Wong, a former President and Chief Operating Officer of the Company (together, the “ Ni Defendants ). Subsequently,
on December 1, 2023, the Company received 1, 997, 423 shares (valued at $ 7. 75 million) of the Company’ s common stock, based on
the closing price of $ 3. 88 on October 13, 2023, plus a cash payment of approximately $ 0. 1 million of accrued interest through the date
of payment, in satisfaction of the Ni Defendant’ s payment obligations totaling $ 9. 25 million under the Settlement Agreement. The
receipt of the settlement proceeds were recorded in distribution, selling, and administrative expense in the consolidated statement of
operations (as a recovery of previously recorded expenses related to the litigation) and cash and treasury stock in the consolidated
balance sheet. Pursuant to the terms of the Settlement Agreement, Mr. Ni, Ms. Wong and Jonathan Ni, the former Chief Financial
Officer of the Company, agreed to give up any rights to indemnification or the advancement of fees in connection with the SEC
investigation with-and any actions the SEC might take against the-them assistanee-of-eounset-relating to the SEC investigation . These-On
October 13, 2023, the Company received a “ Wells Notice ” from the staff of the SEC (the « Wells Notice ”) relatlng to the prevnously
dlsclosed formal non pubhc SEC 1nvest1gatlon of d“k.!(llloll\ that beeatne (o ne

v ging-the Company and certain of its
current and 101mu directors and officers violated the Securities Exchange Act of l‘)v-l dlld Ru]e ]()b 5 pmnullﬂdled lhuumdu by making
allegedly false and misleading statements {the“~Class-Aetions?)- Fh ass—Aetions been 3 ; At
A Wells Notice is neither a formal charge of wrongdoing nor a final determlnatlon that the reclplent has v1olated any law and 1nv1tes
recipients to submit a response if they wish. The Company made a submission in response to the Wells Notice explaining why an
enforcement action would not be appropriate. Following that submission, the staff of the SEC investigation;-determined that it would no
longer be recommending that there—- the SEC file is-alse-the-pessibility-of potential-fines-and— an penalties—At-enforcement action against
the Company at this time 7hewever;-pending a potential agreed- upon resolution between there-—-- the Company and the SEC. The
Company is in negotiations with the SEC over a potential resolution, which could include fines and penalties, but the terms of that
settlement are not set. The Company has made no formal offer of settlement to the SEC as of this filing, and therefore, a reasonable
estimate of the contingency cannot be made. AnHeart Lease Guarantee The Company provided a guarantee for two separate leases for
two properties located in Manhattan, New York, at 273 Fifth Avenue and 275 Fifth Avenue, for 30 years and 15 years, respectively. The
Company has determined that AnHeart is a VIE as a result of the guarantee. However, the Company concluded it is not been-any
d-emﬁ-ﬂd—ﬁ‘l-ade—by—lhe SEGneHs—prlmary beneﬁclary of AnHeart and therefore does not consolidate, because it does not have pessible-te
stimate-the-an an 7— the eeeur-power to direct the activities of AnHeart that most significantly
impact AnHeart' s economic performance . Nete—l-&-—Subsequent—Eveﬂts—"l"—he—On February 10, 2021, the Company entered into an
&mﬁrﬁﬂﬂg—mterest— T hL Lease \munhmnt pumlts sub]emn" m‘ thL DlLIll]SLS and tlk C ompdn\ intends to snbltase the new lx constr LlLtLd

~\nlleall had dtldulled on its obllglmons as tenant undu the ledse for 275 F 1llh Avenue. ()n F Lblll(ll\ 7,2022,the C Olllpdll\ undertook its
guaranty obligations by assuming responsibility for payment of monthly rent and other tenant obligations, mdudmg past due rent as well as
property tax obligations beginning with the January 2022 rent due.On February 25,2022,the Company instituted a legal action to pursue legal

remedies against AnHeart and Minsheng.In March 2022,the Company agreed to stay that-litigation against AnHeart rate swap-agreement-of 4.
55 %. As of December 31 . svith-aninitial notienal-ameunt-2023, the Company had a lease guarantee liability of $ 426-5 . 5 million. The
current portlon of the lease guarantee liability of $ 0.3 million is recorded in accrued expenses and other liabilities , while the intended

long- term debt-obligations-efportion is recorded in the-other long- term liabilities
on the consolidated balance sheet. The Company ' s monthly rental payments range from approximately $ 42, 000 per month to $ 63,
000 per month, with the final payment due in 2034 . The changes in the lease guarantee liability are presented below: (In thousands)
AmountBalance at December 31, 2021 $ — Lease guarantee liability recordedS, 942 Lease guarantee liability activity (182) Balance at
December 31, 20225, 760 Lease guarantee liability activity (288) Balance at December 31, 2023 $ 5, 472 The estimated future minimum
lease payments as of December 31, 2023 are presented below: (In thousands) AmountYear Ending December 31, 2024 $ 582 2025604
2026621 2027638 2028656 Thereafter3 822 Total6 923 Less: 1mputed interest (f&te—swap—beeame—eﬁéetﬁe—Mareh—l 451) Total mlnlmum
lease v a pay-the-swap-eounterp 3
m—e*eh&nge—feihﬂe&ﬂﬁg—pa\ ments based—eﬁ—@ME—"Fefm—S@F—R—$ 5 472 N ote 17- Subsequent Events Other than as dlsclosed elsewhere in
this report, no subsequent events have occurred that would require recognition in the consolidated financial statements or disclosure in
the accompanying notes . [TEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE. ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES. Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures Qur Hnder
the-superviston-and-with-the-partieipation-ef-our-management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial and accounting
officer, we-conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal controls over financial reporting, and disclosure controls and
procedures, as such term is defined in Rules 13a- 15 (e) and 15d- 15 (e) under the Exchange Act, as of the end of the period covered by this
report fiseal-yearendedDeeember34;2022- Based on this-that evaluation, our principal executive effteers— officer and principal financial
and accounting effteers— officer have-concluded that , due to as-aresuit-ofthe material weakness-weaknesses tn-our-internal-eontrotover




ﬁ-ﬁaﬁe-ra-l—fepeft-mg—as—dumbed belmx our disclosure (.01]1101\ and plOLLdLllL\ were not effective at the reasonable assurance level

Repml on lmunal (onuol ()\ er Fmdnual RepmlmU M(ma%mem is responsible for csmbllshmg and maintaining dqulelL. mtundl control over
financial reporting, as defined in Rules 13a- 15 (f) and 15d- 15 (f) of the Exchange Act. Our internal eentrel-controls over financial reporting is
a process designed under the supervision of our €htef-principal Exeeutive-executive Offieer-officer and €hiefprincipal Finanetal-financial
and accounting Offteer-officer to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Because of its inherent limitations, internal
control over financial reporting may not detect or prevent misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness to future
periods are subject to risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate. As of December 31, 2022-2023 , management assessed the effectiveness of our internal eentret-controls
over financial reporting based on the criteria for effective internal control over financial reporting established in “ Internal Control- Integrated
Framework 7, issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations (" COSO") of the Treadway Commission in 2013. In-eonneetion-with-the
auditotf A materlal weakness is a deficiency, et or eonselidated-a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial
reporting such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of our annual or interim financial statements will not
be prevented for- or the-year-ended-detected on a timely basis. Based on this assessment, our management concluded that our internal
control over financial reporting was not effective as of December 31, 2626-2023 and-20621-, due to the material weaknesses in our internal
control over financial reporting described below. As previously reported , we identified the following material weaknesses that-were
reperted-previousty-, which continue to exist as of December 31, 2622-2023 . We did not maintain appropriately designed entity- level controls
impacting the (1) control environment, (2) risk assessment procedures, (3) control activities, (4) information and communication, and (5)
monitoring activities to prevent or detect material misstatements to the financial statements and assess whether the components of internal
control were present and functioning properly. These deficiencies were primarily attributed to an insufficient number of qualified resources to
%uppml and plo\ 1de plopu oV usmht and a(.(.OLlnl'lbllllV over the puimmame of LOIH]OI\ These entlty- level material weaknesses resulted

d ¥ 6 v tg-in the following specific material
weaknesses: © Im‘m mation Tuhnolou (IT) General C ontlols —- We did not design dnd mamtdln Lﬁutl\ e information technology general
LOIHIOIS over lo"ual access aﬂd— pl()“ldm change management , and segregatlon of dutles ton l\e\ IT svstems As a Speetfiealtyaceessto

: v stemswas-Hotres d-b dministration-aeeessprivileges;resulting—-- result, inimpropersegregation
ef—elut-res—fehumm busmus proeesses—- process controls that are dependent upon mformatlon from these systems were also not effective
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Financial Reporting- We did not properly design or maintain effective contr ols over the ﬁnanclal reporting process to enable tlmely

reportmg of eemp%eaecomplete aeeemﬂﬁg—sagmﬁeaﬁt—maﬁagemeﬁt—es&mates,—and accurate ﬁnanclal mformatlon ﬁew—&eeeuﬁﬂﬁg

or detul a mqtuml misstatement, d1d not mnsmenllv perform fﬁéepeﬁdeﬁt—sufﬁmentfewew& review 0[ |0umal entries , or Lonslslemlv retain
adequate supporting documentation for financial statement balances and the related footnote disclosures. Astrelates-to-monttoring
Additionally, we did not design and maintain effective controls over certain non- routine transactions or significant management
estimates, including the review of underlying data and assumptions for completeness and accuracy. Remediation aetivities-Activities In
response to these material weaknesses, with oversight from the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, we have continued to
implement measures to improve our internal control structure. Specifically, we have : - We-did-notadequately-performtimely-Hired
additional finance and accounting personnel and also provided training in key financial reporting and internal control areas; ¢
Designed and implemented new entity- level controls (“ ELCs ) with greater alignment to the COSO 2013 Internal Controls
Framework; * Established requirements over documentation and retention of appropriate evidence to support the operation of ELCs,
business process controls, IT general controls; * Enhanced the structure, governance, and communication over related party
transactions; * Designed and implemented enhanced review procedures over technical accounting memos for non- routine transactions
and complex accounting matters; * Implemented new enterprise finance and human capital system and evaluated technology
alternatives to initiate a change from our legacy inventory and distribution system to better ensure data accuracy, completeness, and
continued progress towards and-- an ongoing-evaluations-improved operational and control environment; * Designed and implemented
uniform controls across all distribution centers and improved processes around our inventory cycle counts and year- end inventory
count procedures; * Designed and implemented controls over stock compensation, corporate tax, and year- end financial reporting
procedures with enhanced precision and control attributes; and, * Designed and implemented an enhanced control testing program
throughout the period to aseertain-evaluate our system of internal control to determine whether components of the internal control were
present and functioning properly in a more timely manner. We arc committed present-and-funetioning—Due-to ensuring the-foregoing
that as-ef Deeember34;2022-our internal eentrel-controls over financial reporting wwas-are
designed and operatmg ineffeetive—- effectively . We believe In-orderto-address-andreselve-the efforts taken foregoing-material-weaknesses;
we-have-begun-to implement-date and certain measurcs designed-te-that are in progress will improve the effectiveness of our internal eentret
controls over financial reporting and mitigate risks of material misstatement. We are still in the process of implementing these steps and
cannot assure investors that these measures will significantly improve or remediate the material weaknesses described above.
Additionally, while we believe these efforts will improve our internal control environment, our remediation is still in progress and
sub] ect to ongomg testmg 0f the des1gn and operatmg effectlveness over a suffic1ent perlod 0f tlme in order to effectlvely n.mcdml«. these




issted-an-auditrepert-enour internal contlol over ﬁnanc1a1 repor tmg as of December 31 2622-2023 has been audlted by BDO USA P C., an
independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their attestation report , which is included keretrrin Part I, Item 8 of this
Form 10- K. Changes in Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting and Disclosure Controls Other than the actions taken to continue
our material weaknesses remediation efforts, described above, there were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting
(as defined in Rules 13a- 15 (f) and 15d- 15 (f) under the Exchange Act) during the quarter ended December 31, 2023 that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting . Opinion on Internal
Control over Financial Reporting We have audited HF Foods Group Inc .’ s (the “ Company’ s ) internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2022-2023 , based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the “ COSO criteria ”) . In our opinion, the Company did not maintain, in all material
respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2622-2023 , based on the COSO criteria. We do not express an
opinion or any other form of assurance on management’ s statements referring to any corrective actions taken by the Company after the date of
management’ s assessment. We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States) (“ PCAOB ”), the consolidated balance sheets of the Company as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 and2024-, the related
consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss), shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the the-three years in
then— the period cnded December 31, 2023 . and the related notes (collectively referred to as “ the financial statements ) and our report dated
March 3426 , 2623-2024 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon. The Company’ s management is responsible for maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the
accompanying “ Item 9A, Management’ s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting ”. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on the Company’ s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the
PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with U. S. federal securities laws and the applicable
rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB. We conducted our audit of internal control over financial
reporting in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining
an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audit also included performing such other procedures as
we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the company’ s annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. The following
material weaknesses have been identified and included in the accompanying Management’ s Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting: The Company did not maintain appropriately designed entity- level controls impacting the (1) control environment, (2) risk
assessment procedures, (3) control activities, (4) information and communication, and (5) monitoring activities to prevent or detect material
misstatements to the financial statements and assess whether the components of internal control were present and functioning properly. These
def1c1en01es were }’)l‘lll]dllly attributed to an 1nsuﬁ1c1ent numbe1 of qualn‘led resources to support and pr0v1de p1 oper overslght and
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g axe .‘—Thc C ompany did not

material mlsst'itement dld not conslstently perform mdepeﬂdeﬂt—sufﬁcwntfeﬂe% review Of]ourml entries, or conslstently retain qdequate
supporting documentation for financial statement balances and lhe related toomote dlsc]osurcs ‘%e-Addltlonally, the C ompany did not
design adequately-perform-timely-and maintain effective engoing-evaluations-to-aseertain-wheth A

present-over certain non- routine transactions or significant management estimates, 1nclud1ng the review of underlylng data and
funetioning-assumptions for completeness and accuracy . These material weaknesses were considered in determining the nature, timing, and
extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the 2022-2023 financial statements, and this report does not affect our report dated March 3426,
2623-2024 on-these-finanetal-statemtents-. Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting A company’ s internal control
over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’ s internal control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’ s assets



that could have a material effect on the financial statements. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not
prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. +8-+
BBO-YUSA;EER-ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION. ITEM 9C. DISCLOSURE REGARDING FOREIGN JURISDICTIONS THAT
PREVENT INSPECTIONS. PART III. ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE. Information
required by this Item will be included in our Proxy Statement for the 2022-2024 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC,
within 120 days of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2822-2023 , and is incorporated herein by reference. ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE
COMPENSATION. ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS. ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE. ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES. PART IV. ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL
STATEMENT SCHEDULES. We have filed the following documents as part of this Annual Report on Form 10- K: 1. Consolidated Financial
Statements See Index to Consolidated Financial Statements in Part 11, Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10- K. 2. Financial Statement
Schedules All financial statement schedules have been omitted, since the required information is not applicable or is not present in amounts
sufficient to require submission of the schedule, or because the information required is included in the consolidated financial statements and
accompanying notes in this Annual Report on Form 10- K. 3. Exhibits The following exhibits are incorporated herein by reference or are filed
or furnished with this report as indicated below: Incorporated by ReferenceExhibit NumberDescriptionFormExhibit / AppendixFiling Date2.
IMerger Agreement dated March 27, 2018, by and among Atlantic Acquisition Corp., HF Group Merger Sub Inc., HF Group Holding
Corporation, the stockholders of HF Group Holding Corporation and Zhou Min Ni, as the stockholders’ representativeDEF14AA7 / 18 /20183.
1Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation8- K3. 1. 211 /5 /2019 Incorporated by ReferenceExhibit
NumberDescriptionFormExhibit / AppendixFiling Date3. 2Amended and Restated Bylaws8- K3. 0211 / 4 / 26224-20223 . 3Certificate of
Designation of Rights, Preferences and Privileges of Series A Participating Preferred Stock8- K3. 14 /12 /20233. 4First Amendment to
Amended and Restated Bylaws, dated April 25, 20238- K3. 14 /26 /20234 . 1 Specimen Common Stock CertificateS- 1/ A4.27/28/
20174. 2Form of Rights Agreement, dated August 8, 2017, by and between American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC and the
Registrant 8- K4. 18 /11 /20174. 3Form of Umt Purchase Optlon between the Reglstrant and Chardan Capltal Markets LLCS-1/A4.57/28/
20174. 4Preferred Stock Rights 4 es 3 ent-Agrecment, dated

Angust8-as of April 11 , 26472023 | by and between HF Foods Group Inc. and Amerlcan Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC and-the-,
as rlghts agentS- K4 14 /12 / 20234 5* Descrlpnon of Reglstrant 8——1&1—9— S Securltlele -1-8—/—1—1—/1”-9-1—7-1-9—2-Regrsﬁ=&t-teﬂ—Rights

steeldie*defs—e%HF—GreupS——Ié}Gﬁ%%MFeﬂﬁﬁ)f Reglstratlon nghts Agreement between the Company, HF Group Holdlngs
Corporatlon and Zhou Min Ni, as representatlve ofthe stockholders of HF GfeupS—Foodss KlO 98 /27 / 201810 3 —SGFeﬂ%of—I:eeler

: -
Employment Agreement as amended dated as ofAugust 22 2018 between HF Foods Group Inc and Zhou M1n N18 K10. 109 / 13 /201810. 48
4 1 Employment Agreement as amended dated as of August 22, 2018 between HF Foods Group Inc. and Chan Sin Wong8- K10. 119 /13 /
201810. H-5 ¥ Employment Agreement as amended dated as of August 22, 2018 between HF Foods Group Inc. and Jian Ming Ni8- K10. 129 /
13 /201810. +2Credit-6Credit Agreement dated as of January 5, 2012 between Han Feng, Inc. and East West Bank10- K10. 124 /1/201910.
BAmendment-7Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of May 21, 2013 by and between Han Feng, Inc. and East West Bank10- K10. 134/
1/201910. +4Seeend-8Second Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of December 10, 2013 by and between Han Feng, Inc. and East West
Bank10- K10. 144 /1 /201910. +5Fhird-9Third Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of July 1, 2016 between Han Feng, Inc. and East
West Bank10- K10. 154 /1/201910. +6Feurth-10Fourth Amendment to Credit Agreement dated July 18, 2017 between Han Feng, Inc. and
East West Bank10- K10. 164 /1/201910. +7€redit-11Credit Agreement dated as of February 26, 2018 between New Southern Food
Distributors, Inc. and Bank of America, N. A. 10- K10. 174 /1 /201910. +8Warehouse-12Warehouse [ casec Agreement dated as January 7,

2019 between Yoan Chang Tradmg and Klmland Food Serv1ce10 K10.184 /1 /201910 +9+Emp{eyﬁﬂeﬂh°:greemeﬂt—wtth—léeﬂg—Hmt—Vtetef

4—29%9+G—Q+9—2—1—1+9+29%9+9—2—1—Membersh+p~ 13Membershlp Interest Purchase Agreement among B & R Global Holdmgs Inc., B & R
Group Rcalty Holdmg, LLC and subsndlarlcs ofB & R Group Rcalty Holdmg, LLC dated January 17,202010- Q2. 15 /18 /%9%9—202010

b ; et6-. 22Seeond-14Second Amended and Restated
Credit Agreement among HF Foods Group Inc B& R Global Holdlngs InC subsldlarles of the Company, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N. A. (*
JPMorgan ), as Administrative Agent, and certain lender parties thereto, dated January 17, 202010- Q10. 15 /18 /202010. 23-15 7§ Letter
Agreement between HF Foods Group Inc. and Russell T. Libby10- Q10. 25 /18 /202010. 24Mutual-16Mutual Rescission Agreement between
HF G6reup-Foods and Rescinding Shareholders dated April 1,202010- Q10.35 /18 /202010. 25Assigament-17Assignment and Assumption of
Lease Agreement, dated as of January 21, 2021 between Anheart, Inc. and 273 Fifth Avenue, LLC10- K10. 253 /16 /202110. 26F-ease-18Lease
dated July 2, 2018, between Anheart Inc. and Premier 273 Fifth, LLC10- K10.263 /16 /202110. 27Amendment19Amendment of Lease,
dated as of January 21, 2021, between Anheart, Inc. and Premier 273 Fifth, LLC10- K10. 273 / 16 / 20244+0—- 2021 Incorporated by
ReferenceExhibit NumberDescriptionFormExhibit / AppendixFiling Datel10 . 28-20 + Scparation Agreement between HF Foods Group Inc.
and Zhou Min Ni, dated February 23, 202110- K10. 283 / 16 /202110. 29Fease-21Lease Agreement between Yoan Chang Trading, Inc. and
Kirnland Food Distribution, Inc., dated as of January 1, 202110- K10. 293 / 16 /202110. 38Steel22Stock Purchase Agreement, dated May 28,
2021, by and among Ki Tai Yeung, HF Group Holding Corp., and Kirnland Food Distribution, Inc. 8- K10. 16 /1/202110. 3+23 1 HF Foods
Group Inc. Amended and Restated Severance Plan8- K10. 11 /5/202310. 32-24 ¥ Employment Agreement between Christine Chang and HF
Foods Group Inc., dated as of July 29, 20218- K10. 28 /4 /202110. 33€Centinuing-25Continuing Guaranty, dated August 2, 2021, executed by
HF Foods Group Inc. in favor of JPMorgan Chase Bank, N. A. 8- K10. 19/9/202110.34-26 { Letter Agreement by and between HF Foods
Group Inc. and Valerie P. Chase, dated December 10, 20218- K5. 112 /15 /202110. 35€ensent27Consent , Waiver, Joinder and Amendment
No. 3 to Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement by and among HF Foods Group Inc., B & R Global Holdings, Inc. and certain of the
wholly- owned subsidiaries and affiliates of the Company, including Great Wall Seafood IL, L. L. C., and Great Wall Seafood TX, L. L. C., as
borrowers, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N. A. as Administrative Agent, and certain lender parties thereto, including Comerica Bank, dated
December 30, 20218- K10. 11 /4 /202210. 36Asset-28Asset Purchase Agreement by and among Great Wall Seafood Supply, Inc., Great Wall
Restaurant Supplier, Inc., First Mart Inc., Great Wall Seafood IL, L. L. C., Great Wall Seafood TX, L. L. C., Bo Chuan Wong and Qiu Xian Li,




dated December 30, 20218- K10. 21 /4 /202210. 3729 + Form of Restricted Stock AgreementS- 84. 76 / 15 /202110. 38Fhird-30Third
Amended and Restated Credit Agreement by and among HF Foods Group Inc., B & R Global Holdings, Inc. and certain of the wholly- owned
subsidiaries and affiliates of the Company, as borrowers, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N. A. as Administrative Agent, and certain lender parties
thereto, including Comerica Bank, dated March 31, 20228- K10. 14 /1 /202210. 39-31 1 Offer of Employment for Felix Lin dated April 15,
20228- K10. 14 /20 /202210. 40Asset-32Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of April 19, 2022, by and among Sealand Food, Inc., Connie
Wang, Jenny Wang and Great Wall Seafood VA, L. L. C. and, solely for purposes of Section 2. 1 (d) thereof, HF Foods Group, Inc. 8- K10. 14/
25/202210. 4433 1 Separation and Release Agreement, dated May 18, 2022, by and among HF Foods Group Inc. and Kong Hian Lee8- K10.
15/24/202210. 42-34 1 Offer Letter, dated July 8, 2022, by and among HF Foods Group, Inc. and Carlos A. Rodriguez8- K10. 17 /14 /
202210. 35 § Letter Agreement, dated June-36-January 17 , 2022, by and among HF Foods Group Inc. and Jese-MaretoS8-Prudence Kuai8 -
K10. 411 /719 /202310. 36Consent Under Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated October 26, 20228- K10. 110/31 /
202210. 43-37 + Offer Letter-Separation Agreement and Release of Claims , dated July-8-March 26 , 2022 -by-and-ameng HF Feods-Grotup;
Ine—and-Carlos-A-—Redriguez8—KI0—+7+1H4-1262216-- 2021 —44—’f'—]:et-te1ﬁ4:greemeﬂt—dafed—}aﬂﬁafy—l—7—2-92—2— by and among HF Foods Group
Inc. and PrudeneeKuai8-Caixuan Xul0 - K10. +-451 /+9-31 / 2623-202321 . 1 * Subsidiaries of Registrant23. 1 * Consent of BDO USA,
P. C. 31. 1 * Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a- 14 and Rule 15d- 14 (a), promulgated under the Securities
and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended31. 2 * Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a- 14 and Rule 15d- 14 (a),
promulgated under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended32. 1 * * Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to
18 U. S. C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002 ]ncoxporated by ReferengeFxhlblt
NumberDesu1pt10nF01mExh1b1t / Appendlellmg Date32 Patet6: dated
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1350 as adoptcd pursuam to Sucllon 906 ofthc Sarbancs Oxlu,y Act of%GGQ%Q—200297 21+ Pollcy for-"‘—@eft-rﬂe&&en—ef—eh-ref—llmaﬂefa-}
et-pH : -906-ofthe Recovery Sarbanes—OxdeyAet-of 200210+

Erroneously Awarded CompensatlonlOI * Inllne XBRL Dowment Set for the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes in
Part I, Item 8," Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" of this Annual Report on Form 10- K104 * Cover Page Interactive Data File
(formatted as Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101) * Filed herewith. * * Furnished herewith. { Indicates a management contract or
compensatory plan or arrangement. ITEM 16. FORM 10- K SUMMARY SIGNATURES Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15 (d)
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authorized. HF Foods Group Inc. Date: March 3426 , 2623B¥-2024By : / s / Xiao Mou ZhangXiao Mou ZhangChief Executive
OfficerDate: March 34-26 , 2023B-2024By : / s / CarlesRedriguezCarlosRedrignezChief Felix LinFelix LinInterim Chief Financial
Officer; President and Chief Operating Officer (Principal accounting and financial officer) Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities
and on the dates indicated. SignatureTitleDate / s / Xiao Mou ZhangChief Executive Officer and DirectorMarch 3426 , 2023%iae-2024Xiao
Mou Zhang /s / Russell LibbyChairman of the Board and DirectorMarch 3426 , 2623Russel-2024Russell Libby /s / Valerie
ChaseDirectorMarch 34-26 , 2023Valerie-2024Valerie Chase / s / Prudence KuaiDirectorMarch 34-26 , 2023 Prudenee-2024Prudence Kuai /s /
Hong WangDirectorMarch 3426 , 2623Heng-2024Hong Wang Exhibit 4. 45 DESCRIPTION OF THE REGISTRANT'S SECURITIES
REGISTERED PURSUANT TO SECTION 12 OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE /\CT OF 1934 DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK
The following description of the capital stock of HF Foods Group Inc. (the" Company,"" us,"" we," or" our") is a summary and does not purport
to be complete. It is subject to, and qualified in its entirety by, reference to our Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation ("
Certificate of Incorporation") and our Bylaws (" Bylaws"), each of which are incorporated by reference as an exhibit to the Annual Report on
Form 10- K of which this exhibit is a part. Authorized Shares Under our Certificate of Incorporation, our authorized capital stock consists of
101, 000, 000 shares of capital stock, consisting of 100, 000, 000 shares of common stock, par value $ 0. 0001 per share, and 1, 000, 000 shares
of preferred stock, par value $ 0. 001 per share. The number of authorized shares of any class or classes of our capital stock may be increased or
decreased (but not below the number of shares thereof then outstanding) by the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority in voting power of
our outstanding capital stock entitled to vote thereon, without a separate vote of the holders of the Preferred Stock, or any series thereof, unless
a vote of any such holders is required pursuant to any Preferred Stock Designation, and irrespective of the provisions of Section 242 (b) (2) of
the Delaware General Corporation Law (the" DGCL"). We may not authorize the issuance of any class, or series thereof, of nonvoting equity
shares. Our common stock 1s-and Preferred Stock Purchase Rights are registered under Section 12 (b) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended (the" Exchange Act"). Voting Rights Holders of our common stock are entitled to one vote per share on all matters voted on
by the stockholders, including in connection with the election of directors, as provided by law. Holders of our common stock do not have
cumulative voting rights. Except as otherwise required by the DGCL or our Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws, action requiring
stockholder approval may be taken by a vote of the holders of a majority of the voting power of the shares of stock of the Company present in
person or by proxy and entitled to vote on the relevant matter at a meeting at which a quorum is present. Dividend Rights After satisfaction of
any dividend rights of holders of preferred stock and subject to applicable law, if any, holders of common stock are entitled to receive
dividends, if any, as may be declared from time to time by our board of directors in its discretion. Liquidation and Other Rights Holders of our
common stock have no preemptive, subscription, redemption, conversion or exchange rights and no sinking fund provisions. All outstanding
shares of our common stock are duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid and non- assessable. Additional shares of common stock may be
issued, as authorized by our Board from time to time, without stockholder approval, except for any stockholder approval required by The
Nasdaq Capital Market. The rights, preferences and privileges of holders of common stock are subject to, and may be adversely affected by, the
rights of the holders of shares of any series of preferred stock that we may designate and issue in the future. Our board of directors has been
authorized to provide for the issuance of up to 1, 000, 000 shares of our preferred stock from time to time in one or more series without the
approval of stockholders. With respect to each series of our preferred stock, our board of directors has the authority to fix or alter the dividend
rights, dividend rate, conversion rights, voting rights, rights and terms of redemption, including sinking fund provisions, the redemption price or
prices, and the liquidation preferences of any wholly unissued class or series of Preferred Stock, and the number of shares constituting any such
series and the designation thereof, or any of them . On April 11, 2023, our board of directors authorized and declared a dividend
distribution of one right (each, a “ Right ”) for each outstanding share of common stock to stockholders of record as of the close of
business on April 24, 2023 (the “ Record Date ”). Each Right entitles the registered holder to purchase from the Company one one-




thousandth of a share of Series A Participating Preferred Stock, par value $ 0. 001 per share (the “ Series A Preferred Stock ), of the
Company at an exercise price of $ 19. 50 (the “ Exercise Price ), subject to adjustment. The complete terms of the Rights are set forth
in a Preferred Stock Rights Agreement (the “ Rights Agreement ), dated as of April 11, 2023, between the Company and American
Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC, as rights agent. Our board of directors adopted the Rights Agreement to protect stockholders
from coercive or otherwise unfair takeover tactics. The Rights Agreement functions by imposing a significant penalty upon any person
or group that acquires fifteen percent (15 %) or more of the shares of our common stock without the approval of the board of directors.
As a result, the overall effect of the Rights Agreement and the issuance of the Rights may be to render more difficult or discourage a
merger, tender or exchange offer or other business combination involving the Company that is not approved by the board of directors.
Distribution and Transfer of Rights; Rights Certificates Our board of directors has declared a dividend of one Right for each
outstanding share of common stock. Prior to the Distribution Date referred to below: ¢ the Rights are evidenced by and trade with the
certificates for the common stock (or, with respect to any uncertificated common stock registered in book entry form, by notation in
book entry), and no separate rights certificates will be distributed; * new common stock certificates issued after the Record Date
contain a legend incorporating the Rights Agreement by reference (for uncertificated common stock registered in book entry form, this
legend will be contained in a notation in book entry); and ¢ the surrender for transfer of any certificates for common stock (or the
surrender for transfer of any uncertificated common stock registered in book entry form) also constitute the transfer of the Rights
associated with such common stock. Rights will accompany any new shares of common stock that are issued after the Record Date.
Subject to certain exceptions specified in the Rights Agreement, the Rights will separate from the common stock and become
exercisable following (1) the 10th business day (or such later date as may be determined by the board of directors) after the public
announcement that a person or group of affiliated or associated persons (such person or group, an “ Acquiring Person ) has acquired
beneficial ownership of fifteen percent (15 %) or more of the common stock or (2) the 10th business day (or such later date as may be
determined by the board of directors) after a person or group announces a tender or exchange offer that would result in ownership by
a person or group of fifteen percent (15 %) or more of the common stock. For purposes of the Rights Agreement, beneficial ownership
is defined to include the ownership of derivative securities. A person or group who beneficially owned fifteen percent (15 %) or more of
the Company’ s outstanding common stock prior to the first public announcement by the Company of the adoption of the Rights
Agreement will not trigger the Rights Agreement so long as they do not acquire beneficial ownership of any additional shares of
common stock at a time when they still beneficially own fifteen percent (15 %) or more of such common stock, subject to certain
exceptions as set forth in the Rights Agreement. The date on which the Rights separate from the common stock and become exercisable
is referred to as the “ Distribution Date. ” After the Distribution Date, the Company will mail Rights certificates to the Company’ s
stockholders as of the close of business on the Distribution Date and the Rights will become transferable apart from the common stock.
Thereafter, such Rights certificates alone will represent the Rights. Series A Preferred Stock Purchasable Upon Exercise of Rights
After the Distribution Date, each Right will entitle the holder to purchase, for the Exercise Price, one one- thousandth of a share of
Series A Preferred Stock having economic and other terms similar to that of one share of common stock. This portion of a share of
Series A Preferred Stock is intended to give the stockholder approximately the same dividend, voting and liquidation rights as would
one share of common stock, and should approximate the value of one share of common stock. More specifically, each one one-
thousandth of a share of Series A Preferred Stock, if issued, will: * not be redeemable; ¢ entitle holders to quarterly dividend payments
of $ 0. 001 per one one- thousandth of a share of Series A Preferred Stock, or an amount equal to the dividend paid on one share of
common stock, whichever is greater; ¢ entitle holders upon liquidation either to receive $ 1 per one one- thousandth of a share of Series
A Preferred Stock or an amount equal to the payment made on one share of common stock, whichever is greater; * have the same
voting power as one share of common stock; and ¢ entitle holders to a payment per one one- thousandth of a share of Series A
Preferred Stock equal to the payment made on one share of common stock if the common stock is exchanged via merger, consolidation
or a similar transaction. Flip- In Trigger If an Acquiring Person obtains beneficial ownership of fifteen percent (15 %) or more of the
common stock, then each Right will entitle the holder thereof to purchase, for the Exercise Price, a number of shares of common stock
(or, in certain circumstances, cash, property or other securities of the Company) having a then- current market value of twice the
Exercise Price. However, the Rights are not exercisable following the occurrence of the foregoing event until such time as the Rights are
no longer redeemable by the Company, as further described below. Following the occurrence of an event set forth in preceding
paragraph, all Rights that are or, under certain circumstances specified in the Rights Agreement, were beneficially owned by an
Acquiring Person or certain of its transferees will be void. Flip- Over Trigger If, after an Acquiring Person obtains fifteen percent (15
%) or more of the common stock, (1) the Company merges into another entity, (2) an acquiring entity merges into the Company or (3)
the Company sells or transfers more than 50 percent of its assets, cash flow or earning power, then each Right (except for Rights that
have previously been voided as set forth above) will entitle the holder thereof to purchase, for the Exercise Price, a number of shares of
common stock of the person engaging in the transaction having a then- current market value of twice the Exercise Price. Redemption of
the Rights The Rights will be redeemable at the Company’ s option for $ 0. 001 per Right (payable in cash, common stock or other
consideration deemed appropriate by the board of directors) at any time on or prior to the 10th business day (or such later date as may
be determined by the board of directors) after the public announcement that an Acquiring Person has acquired beneficial ownership of
fifteen percent (15 %) or more of the common stock. Immediately upon the action of the board of directors ordering redemption, the
Rights will terminate and the only right of the holders of the Rights will be to receive the $ 0. 001 redemption price. The redemption
price will be adjusted if the Company undertakes a stock dividend or a stock split. Exchange Provision At any time after the date on
which an Acquiring Person beneficially owns fifteen percent (15 %) or more of the common stock and prior to the acquisition by the
Acquiring Person of 50 percent of the common stock, the board of directors may exchange the Rights (except for Rights that have
previously been voided as set forth above), in whole or in part, for common stock at an exchange ratio of one share of common stock
per Right (subject to adjustment). In certain circumstances, the Company may elect to exchange the Rights for cash or other securities
of the Company having a value approximately equal to one share of common stock. Expiration of the Rights The Rights expire on the
earliest of (1) 5: 00 p. m., New York City time, on April 11, 2024 or (2) upon the redemption or exchange of the Rights as described
above. Amendment of Terms of the Rights Agreement and Rights The terms of the Rights and the Rights Agreement may be amended
in any respect without the consent of the holders of the Rights on or prior to the Distribution Date. Thereafter, the terms of the Rights
and the Rights Agreement may be amended without the consent of the holders of Rights in order to (1) cure any ambiguities, (2) shorten
or lengthen any time period pursuant to the Rights Agreement or (3) make changes that do not adversely affect the interests of holders
of the Rights. Voting Rights Other Stockholder Rights The Rights will not have any voting rights. Until a Right is exercised, the holder
thereof, as such, will have no separate rights as stockholder of the Company. Anti- Dilution Provisions The board of directors may
adjust the Exercise Price, the number of shares of Series A Preferred Stock issuable and the number of outstanding Rights to prevent



dilution that may occur from a stock dividend, a stock split or a reclassification of the Series A Preferred Stock or common stock. With
certain exceptions, no adjustments to the Exercise Price will be made until the cumulative adjustments amount to at least one percent of
the Exercise Price. No fractional shares of Series A Preferred Stock will be issued and, in lieu thereof, an adjustment in cash will be
made based on the current market price of the Series A Preferred Stock. The distribution of Rights should not be taxable for federal
income tax purposes. However, following an event that renders the Rights exercisable or upon redemption of the Rights, stockholders
may recognize taxable income. For additional information regarding the Rights, the Rights Plan and the Series A Preferred Stock, see
our Registration Statement on Form 8- A filed with the SEC on April 12, 2023, and our Current Report on Form 8- K filed with the
SEC on April 12, 2023 . Anti- Takeover Effects of Provisions of our Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws Some provisions of Delaware law,
our Certificate of Incorporation and our Bylaws could delay or discourage some transactions involving an actual or potential change in control
of us or our management and may limit the ability of our stockholders to remove current management or approve transactions that our
stockholders may deem to be in their best interests. These provisions: a. allow our board of directors to issue any authorized but unissued shares
of common stock without approval of stockholders; b. authorize our board of directors to establish one or more series of preferred stock, the
terms of which can be determined by our board of directors at the time of issuance; c. provide an advanced written notice procedure with respect
to stockholder proposals and the nomination of candidates for election as directors, other than nominations made by or at the direction of our
board of directors, subject to the rights of stockholders to request inclusion of proposals in our proxy statement pursuant to Rule 14a- 8 under the
Exchange Act (or any successor provision of law); d. state that special meetings of our stockholders may be called only by the Chairman of our
board of directors, our President, or at the request of a majority of our board of directors; e. allow our directors, and not our stockholders, to fill
vacancies on our board of directors, including vacancies resulting from removal or enlargement of our board of directors, unless such vacancies
are created by the removal of a director by the stockholders; and f. grant our board of directors the authority to alter any provision of the Bylaws
without a stockholder assent or vote; provided, however, that such authority of our board of directors is subject to the power of the stockholders
to alter, amend, change, add to, repeal, rescind or make new Bylaws by the affirmative vote of the holders of at least a majority of the voting
power of the outstanding shares entitled to vote thereon. Delaware Anti- takeover Law The Company is subject to Section 203 of the DGCL,
which is an anti- takeover law. In general, Section 203 prevents a publicly- held Delaware corporation from engaging in a" business
combination" with any" interested stockholder" for a period of three years following the date that the person became an interested stockholder
unless (1) our board of directors approved either the business combination or the transaction that resulted in the stockholder becoming an
interested stockholder, (2) at least two- thirds of the outstanding shares not owned by that interested stockholder approve the business
combination, or (3) upon becoming an interested stockholder, that stockholder owned at least 85 % of the outstanding shares, excluding those
held by officers, directors and some employee stock plans. In general, a" business combination" includes, among other things, a merger or
consolidation involving us and the" interested stockholder" and the sale of more than 10 % of our assets. In general, an" interested stockholder"
is any entity or person beneficially owning 15 % or more of our outstanding voting stock and any entity or person affiliated with or controlling
or controlled by such entity or person. A Delaware corporation may" opt out" of these provisions with an express provision in its original
certificate of incorporation or an express provision in its certificate of incorporation or bylaws resulting from a stockholders' amendment
approved by at least a majority of the outstanding voting shares. We have not opted out of these provisions. Exclusive Forum Provision Unless
the Company consents in writing to the selection of an alternative forum, the sole and exclusive forum for certain legal actions involving the
Company will be the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware. If the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware lacks subject matter
jurisdiction over such action or proceeding, the sole and exclusive forum for such action or proceeding shall be another state or federal court
located within the State of Delaware or, if no court of the State of Delaware has jurisdiction, then the United States District Court for the
District of Delaware. Unless the Company consents in writing to the selection of an alternative forum, the federal district courts of the United
States of America will be the exclusive forum for the resolution of any complaint asserting a cause of action arising under the Securities Act of
1933, as amended and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.



